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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

DIVISION FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH 

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544 

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov 

May 16, 2019 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division For Behavorial Health, to enter 
into agreements with the vendors listed below, in an amount not to exceed $496,096, to provide Recovery 
Housing services and supports to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) effective upon Governor 
and Council approval, through September 29, 2020. 100% Federal Funds. 

Vendor Name Vendor Number Location Contract 
Amount 

Dismas Home of New 
#290061-800 1 102 Fourth Street Manchester, $100,001 

Hampshire NH 03102 

Families In Transition #157730-8001 122 Market Street $195,795 
Manchester, NH 03101 

Hope on Haven Hill #275119-8001 326 Rochester Hill Road $200,300 
Rochester, NH 03867 

Total: $496,096 

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2019, and are anticipated to be 
available in State Fiscal Year 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds 
in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust 
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified. 

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE 
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT. 

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total 
Amount 

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $144,529 

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $279,678 

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $71,889 

Total: $496,096 
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EXPLANATION 

The purpose of this request is to provide Recovery Housing services and supports to individuals 
with Opioid Use Disorder who need housing in a supported and safe recovery housing environment. New 
Hampshire has minimal capacity to serve individuals in need of recovery housing. There are few options 
for specialty populations who have complex needs and/or gender-specific housing. This request will fund 
recovery housing statewide to service specific populations with Opioid Use Disorder that includes 

• A Recovery Residence for females only; 

• A Recovery Residence for individuals who have complex criminal backgrounds 
that limit access to other publicly funded housing options; and 

• Recovery Residences to serve the general population who are in need of housing 
in a supported, safe, recovery environment. 

The State of New Hampshire received funding through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health 
Services Administration State Opioid Response grant opportunity. This grant is being used to make 
critical investments in the Substance Use Disorder system in order to reduce unmet treatment needs, 
reduce opioid overdose fatalities and increase access to Medication Assisted Treatment over the next 
two (2) years. The State is implementing evidence-based methods to expand treatment, recovery and 
prevention services to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder. These funds will strengthen established 
programs that have had a positive impact on the opioid crisis as well as expand the capacity for programs 
to assist individuals struggling with an Opioid Use Disorder. 

The Department is contracting for these services for the first time. The Contractors are expected 
to serve a maximum of eighty-four (84) individuals on any given day. The Department will be closely 
monitoring the numbers actually served as well as the lengths of stay and the coordination of care for 
other health and social services. 

The Doorways are responsible for providing comprehensive assessments at several time 
intervals, specifically at intake, three (3) months, six (6) months, and upon discharge; specifically data on 
client-related outcomes including, but not limited to recovery status, criminal justice involvement, 
employment, and housing needs at the time intervals listed above. This data will enable the Department 
to measure short and long-term outcomes associated with State Opioid Response-funded initiatives and 
to determine which programs are generating the best results for the clients served. 

The three (3) vendors included in this requested action were selected for this project through a 
competitive bid process. This request represents three (3) of the selected four (4) vendors. The 
Department anticipates awarding one (1) additional contract that will be submitted to Governor and 
Executive Council for approval for the next scheduled meeting. A Request for Applications was posted 
on the Department of Health and Human Services' website from October 22, 2018 through November 
13, 2018. In addition, on October 23, 2018 an email of notification of the RFA was distributed to 
stakeholders throughout the State. The Department received six (6) applications. The applications were 
reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program-specific knowledge. The review included a 
thorough discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the applications. The Score Summary is 
attached. 

As referenced in the Request for Applications and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement 
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of 
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council. 
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, Recovery Housing 
services and supports to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder who need housing in a supported, safe 
recovery housing environment may not be available, which could result in individuals backsliding during 
their road to recovery, which would intensify the Opioid Crisis and lead to an increase in overdose deaths 
in NH. 

Area served: Statewide 

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration, State Opioid Response Grant, (CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI081685) 

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be 
requested to support this program. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~.~· ~~i:~i~ner 

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families 
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence. 



Recovery Housing Services and Supports 
For Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder 

RFA Name 

Bidder Name 

1· Dismas Home of NH 

·2· FIT/NHNH, Inc. 

3· Harbor Homes, Inc. 

4
· Hope on Haven Hill 

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Office of Business Operations 
Contracts & Procurement Unit 

Summary Scoring Sheet 

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV 
RFA Number 

Max1mum 
Pass/Fail Points 

250 

250 

250 

250 

Actual 
Points 

239 

217 

131 

216 

Reviewer Names 

1 
Helen Hanks,-Commissioner Dept 

· of Corrections 

2 
Lindy Keller, Resources & 

· Development Admin, BOAS 

3 
Melissa Girard, Div Behavioral Hlth 

· Business Administrator Ill 

4 
Ciara Sablock, Intern, Bureau of 

· Drug & Alcohol Servs 

Barry Sandbefg,"Program 
5. Specialist IV, Div Behavioral Hlth 

5· Kristine Paquette, RN/Homestead Inn 250 197 

6
· Oxford House, Inc. 250 177 

---~ --



Fiscal Details 

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND 
HUMAN SVS DEPT OF, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF 
DRUG & ALCOHOL SCS, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT 

DISMAS HOME of NH, 290061-B001 

State Activity 
Fiscal Class/Object Class Title Budget 
Year 

Number 

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $38,566.67 

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $49,146.47 

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $12,286.67 

Total: $99,999.81 

HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, 275119-B001 

State 
Activity Fiscal Class/Object Class Title Budget 

Year Number 

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $73,330 
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $100,000 
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $26,970 

Total: $200,300 

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION - NEW HORIZONS, 157730-B001 

State Activity 
Fiscal Class/Object Class Title Budget 
Year Number 

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $32,632.50 
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $130,530 
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $32,632.50 

Total: $195,795 
Grand Total: $496,094.81 

Fiscal Details 
Page 1 of 1 

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV 



FOAA1 1\JMBER P-37 (version 5111/15) 

Subject: Rl'A-2019-BDAS.()2-R!iCQV.J!!/Recovcry !lousing for lndjyiduals with 0\JP 

Notice: This agn:ement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and 
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must 

be c learly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract. 

AG REEMENT 
The State of New Hampshire and the Contmctor hereby mutually agree as fo llows: 

GENERA l, PROVISIONS 

I . ID£NTIFICATION. 
1.1 State Agency Name 
NH Department of Health and !Iuman Se<vices 

1.3 Contractor Name 
Oismas Home of New Hampshire 

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Accoum Number 
Number 

603-782-3004 05-995-992-920510-7040-
0000-102-500731 

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 
Nathan D. White, Director 
Bureau of ContractS and Procurement 

1.11 Contractor Signature 

1.13 ~bite. County of 

I .2 State Agency Address 
129 Pleasant Streel 
Concord, NH 03301-3857 

1 .4 Contractor Address 
102 Fourth Street 
Manchester, NH 03102 

1. 7 Completion Date 

September 29, 2020 

1.8 Price Limitation 

$100,001 

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number 
603-271-9631 

On Agri\ n, Jo 11\ , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily 

pro•en to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that slhc cxeeuted this document in the capocity 

indicated in block 1.12. 

1.13. 1 Signature ofl\otary Public or Justice ofthe Peace 

By: 

OONNA L ST. CYR, Notary Public 
State of New Hampshire 

My Commission Expires Aprll2.0, 2.021 

1.1 5 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory 

\«:::-r o-- 'S _ H;< lJ•r...ec:f=br-

Director, On: 

1.17 Approval by the Attomey Ocncml (Form, Substance and llxecUlion) (if applicable) 

On: 

1. 18 (if applicable) 

By: On: 
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2. EMPLOYME IT OF CONTRACTORISERVICF.S TO 
BE PERFORMED. The State ofl\ew Hampshire, acting 
through the agency identified in block 1.1 {'-State"), engages 
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perfonn. 
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or 
both. identified and more particularly described in the attached 
liX I II RIT A which is incorporated herein by reference 
("Services''). 

3. EFFECTIVE DA TEICOMPLETION OF SERVIC ES. 
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and 
Executive Couocil of the State of New Hampshire, if 
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties 
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor 
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in 
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case 
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the 
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 
1.14 ("F.ft<.·t:tivc Date"). 
3.2 If the ContraCtor commences the Services prior to the 
Effective Date, all Setvices performed by the Contractor prior 
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the 
Contractor. and in the event that this Agreement does not 

become effi:ctivc, the State shall have no liability to the 
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay 
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services perfonned. 
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date 
specilied in block 1.7. 

4. CONDITIONAL NATUR E OF AGREEMENT. 
Notwithstanding any provision of this A!:rccmcnl to the 
contrary, aU obligations of the State hereunder. including. 
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are 
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation 
offunds. and in no event shall the State be liable for any 
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated 
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of 
appropriated funds, the S~1te shall have the right to withhold 
payrnellt until such funds become available, if ever, and shall 
have the right Lo terminate this Agreement immediately upon 
giving the Contractor notice of such t~=ination. The State 
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account 
tO the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that 
Account are reduced or unavailable. 

5. CO NTRACT PRICE/PRI CE LIMITATION/ 
PAYMENT. 
5.1 The contract price, method of payment. and tenns of 
payment are identified and more panicularly described in 
EX I lUI IT B which is incorporated herein by reference. 
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the 
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all 
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the ('_ontractor in the 
perfonnance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete 
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State 
shall ha•e no liability to the Contrnctor other than the contract 
price. 

S.3 The State resen.es the right to offset from any amounu 
othe<wise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement 
those liquidated amounu required or permitted by N.H. RSA 
80:7Lhrough RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law. 
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the 
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances. in 
no event shall the total of all payments authori1.ed, or actually 
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set fonh in block 
1.8. 

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS 
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY. 
6.1 In connection with the l'(:rfonnance of the Services, the 
Contra<:tor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations. 
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities 
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, 
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opponunity 
laws. This may include the requirement to uti lize auxiliary 
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication 
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can 
communicate with, rccci•e infonnation from, and convey 
infonnatioo to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor 
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws. 
6.2 During the tenn of this Agreement, the Contrnctor shall 
not discriminate against employees or applicants for 
employment hecausc of race. color, religion, creed, age, sex, 
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will t.nkc 
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination. 
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the 
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the 
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal 
Employment Opportunity~). as supplemented by the 
regulations of the United States Dcpartmcot ofLabor (41 
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules. regulations and guidelines 
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to 
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to 
permit the State or United States access to any of the 
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of 
ascertaining compliance wilh all rules, regulations and orders, 
and the covenants, tc.nns and conditions of this Agreement. 

7. PERSONNEL. 
7 .I The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all 
personnel DCCeSS8I)' to perfonn the Services. The Contractor 
warranu that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be 
qualified to perform the Services. and shall be properly 
licensed and otherwise aulhoriz•-d to do so under all applicable 
laws. 
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of 
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months aflcr the 
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire, 
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, linn or 
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effon to 
perfonn the Services to hire, any person who is a State 
employee or official, who is materially involved in the 
procurement, administration or perfonnance of this 
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Agreement. lllis provision shall survive termination of this 

Agreement. 
7.3 The Contracting Ollicer specified in block 1.9, or his or 
her succes.<;Or, shall be dte State's representative. In the event 
of any dispute conoerning the interpretation of this Agreement, 
dte Contracting Olliccr's decision shall be final for the State. 

8. I: VENT Ot' 0£FAU I,TIRE~l£DIES. 

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the 
Contractor shall constiiUte an event of default hereunder 
("F. vent of Default"): 
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on 
schedule; 
8.1.2 failure to submit any repon required hereunder: andlor 
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition 
of this AgJl)C!11Cnt. 
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State 
may take any one, or more, or all. of the following actions: 
8.2.1 give the Contractor n written notice specifying the Event 
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the 
absence of a greater or les>er specificat.ion of time. thiny (30) 
days from thedateofthe notice: and if the E•ent of Default is 
not timely remedied. terminate Ibis Agreement.. effective IWO 
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination: 
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event 
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this 
A&reement and ordering that the portion of the contract price 
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the 
period from the date of such notice until suoh time as the State 
determines that the Conlttlctor has cured the Event of Default 
shall never be paid tO the Contractor; 
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to 
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any 
Event of Default; andlor 
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its 
remedies at law or in cqui1y, or both. 

9. DATAIACCESSICONFID£NTIAU TYI 
PRF..SERYATlON. 
9.1 As used in this Agreement. the word -data- shall mean all 
information and things developed or obtained during the 
perfonnance of. or acquired or developed by reason ot~ this 
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, 
Iiies, formulae, surveys, maps, chans, sound recordings, video 
recordings, pictorial reproductions, dra,.;ngs. analyses, 
graphic representations, computer programs. computer 
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papen, and documents, 
all "nether finished or unfinished. 
9.2 All data and any propeny which has been received from 
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose 
under this Agreement, shall be the propcny of the State, and 
shall be rewrned to the St•tc upon demand or upon 
termination of this A&reement for any reason. 
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA 
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disci<XUrc of data 

requires prior written approval of the State. 

10. T ERM INATION. In the event of an early termination of 
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the 
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting 
Officer, not later than n fteen ( 15) days after the date of 
termination, a repon ("Termination Repon") describing in 
detai I all Services performed, and the contraet price earned, to 
and including the date of termination. The form, subject 
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination 
Repon shall be identical to those of any Final Report 
described in the attached llXHIBIT A. 

I 1. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO TliE STATE. In 
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all 
respectS an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor 
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its 
officers, employees, agents or members shall ha' e authority to 
bind the State or l'l!«ive any benefits, wort..crs' compensation 
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. 

12. ASSIGNMEN'fiOF.l.EGATION/SUllCONTRACI'S. 
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any 
interest in this A~,'rcement without the prior Mitten notice and 
consent of the State. one of the Services shall be 
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written 
notice and consent of the State. 

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend, 
indenmifY and hold harmless the State, its officers and 
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the 
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, 
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State. its officers 
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on accoum of, 

based or resulting from. arising out of(or "hich may be 
claimed to arise out ol) the acts or omissions of the 
Contractor. Notwithstand ing the foregoing. nothing berein 
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver ofthc 
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby 
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement. 

14. INSURAJ'ICE. 
14.1 The Contrnctor shall, at its sole exp<.'f\Se, obtain and 
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or 
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following 
insurance: 
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insuranoe against all 
claims ofbodily injury, death or propeny damage. in amounts 
of not less than SI.OOO.OOOper occurrence and $2.000.000 
aggregate ; and 
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form co><:ring all 
propeny subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not 
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the propeny. 
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall 
be on policy fonns and endorsements approved lor use in the 
State ofNcw Hampshire by the N.H. Department of 
Insurance, and issued by insurers lioensed in the State of New 
llampshire. 
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14.3 1be Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer 

identified in block 1.9, or his or her succes.'iOr, a certificatc(s) 

of insurance for all insurance required under Ibis Agreement. 
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer 
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor. certificatc(s) of 

insurance for all nenewal(s) of insutii/Kle required under this 

Agreement no later than lhirty (30) days prior to the expiration 
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of 

insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and arc 
incorporated herein by reference. F.ach ccrtificate(s) of 
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to 
provide the Contracting Officer iden!ified in block 1.9. or his 
or her successor, no less than lhiny (30) days prior written 

notice of cancellalion or modi tical ion oflhe policy. 

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. 
15.1 By signing this agneement, !he Contractor agrees. 
certifies and WlllTIIIlts that the Contractor is in compliance with 

or CJ<cmpl fiom. the requircmenls of .H. RSA chap!er 281·A 
( .. Workers · Compensation 'J. 
15.2 To the ex lent the Contractor is subject to the 
rcquiremems of N.H. RSA chapler 281·A, Contrac1or shall 
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee tO secure 
and maintain, payment ofWorlcers' Compensation in 
connection with activities wnich the person proposes to 
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Conlt8Cior shall 
furnish lhe Contracting Officer idenlilied in block 1.9, or his 

or her successor, pror>fof Worlcers' Compensation in !he 
manner described in N.ll. RSA chapter 281-A and any 
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be auached 1111d are 

incorporated herein by reference. 1'he State shall not be 
responsible for pa)ment of any Workers' Compensation 
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contrac:tor. or 

any subcontrac1or or employee of Contractor, which might 
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers' 
Compcnsalion laws in connection with the performance oflhe 
Services under this AgreemenL 

16. WAIVER O f 6R£ACR . No failure by the State to 
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall 

be deemed a waiver of its righlS wi!h regard to that Ev"nt of 
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No exp>·ess 

failure 10 enforce any Event of Defaull shall be deemed a 
waiver of the rigbl of the Stale 10 enforce each and all of the 
provisions hereof upon any further or olher Even! of Default 

on lhe pan of the Contractor. 

17. NOTICE. Any no1ice by a party hereto 10 the o1her party 

shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the 

time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United 
States Post Office addressed to the pani~'S at the addresses 
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein. 

1~. AMENUMENT. This Agreemenl may be amended. 
waived or discharged only by an instrument in wrili ng signed 

by !he parties hereto and only aRer approval of such 
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and 
Executive Council oflhe State of New Hampshire unless no 

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to 

State law, rule or policy. 

19. CONSTRUCI'ION OF AGREEMENT AND T ERMS. 
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with 1he 

la"''S of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and 

inures 10 the bencfil of the parties and their respective 
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement 

is the wording chosen by tbe parties 10 express their muwal 

intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or 

in favor of any party. 

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend 10 

benefit any third parties and Ibis Agreement shall not be 
construed to confer any such benefit. 

21. H£ADINGS. The headings lhrougbout the Agreement 

are for reference purposes only, and lhe "ords contained 
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or 
aid in the inlerprelation, construction or meaning of the 
provisions of this AgreernenL 

22. SPEC IAL PROVISIONS. Addi1ional provisions se1 
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are ineorpora!ed herein hy 

reference. 

23. SEVERA BILITY. In the event any oflhe provisions of 

!his Agneement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction 10 

be contrary to any stale or federal law, !he remaining 
provisions of !his Agrcemcnl will remain in full force and 

ciTcct. 

24. E 'Tl.RE AGREEM ENT. This Agreemen~ "hich may 
be executed in a number of coumerparts, each of which shall 

be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement nnd 

understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior 
Agreemenls and understandings relating hereto. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Recovery Housing for Individuals with Oploid Use Disorder 

Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services 

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance 

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure 

meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (1 0) days of the 

contract effective date. 

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New 

Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact 

on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify 

Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to 

achieve compliance therewith. 

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services 

shall continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for 

any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an 

appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature 

and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 biennia. 

1.4. The Contractor shall provide one (1) Recovery Residence for individuals with 

OUD, tailored for those who have complex criminal backgrounds, including 

those that limit their access to other publicly funded housing options, with all the 

support of a Recovery Residence in compliance with the appropriate National 

Alliance for Recovery Residences (NARR) standard. 

2. Scope of Services 

2.1. The Contractor shall provide a physical recovery housing facility to include, but 

is not limited to: 

2.1.1. Assistance to individuals to transition to independent living. 

2.1.2. Safe, stable and sober environment. 

2.1.3. Meeting state and/or local occupancy requirements. 

2.2. The Contractor shall meet the needs of applicants/residents requ1nng 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accommodations. Additionally, the 
Contractor shall: 

2.2.1 . Provide documentation and maintain the property is in compliance with 
local health and safety codes. 

2.2.2. Ensure the residence meets all Life and Safety codes, as required. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Recovery Housing for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder 

Exhibit A 

2.2.3. Ensure that all house managers and/or staff are trained to deliver 

Naloxone in the case of an overdose. 

2.2.4. Meet all information security and privacy requirements as set by the 

Department. 

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure Naloxone is available and accessible in the 

residence. 

2.4. OrganizationaliAdministrative Standards 

2.4.1. The Contractor shall be a legal business entity. 

2.4.2. The Contractor shall have a written mission and vision statement. 

2.4.3. The Contractor shall have a written code of ethics for the Recovery 

Residence. 

2.4.4. The Contractor shall carry general liability insurance. 

2.4.5. The Contractor shall comply with state and federal requirements. If 

required, documents such as licenses and certificates of occupancy 
must be visible for public view. 

2.4.6. The Contractor shall clearly identify the responsible person(s) 

responsible for the Recovery Residence to all residents. 

2.4.7. The Contractor shall provide a minimum qualifications, duties and 

responsibilities for the responsible person(s) of the residence. This 

information must be present in a job description and/or contract. 

2.4.8. The Contractor shall ensure the living environment is free from drugs 

and alcohol, in accordance with written policies and procedures. 

2.4.9. The Contractor shall establish procedures for continuous quality 
improvement to include, but is not limited to: 

2.4.9.1. Collect, evaluate and report accurate process. 

2.4.9.2. Collect, evaluate and report outcomes data. 

2.4.1 0. The Contractor shall provide proof of written permission to operate a 

Recovery Residence on the property from the land owner/landlord, if 
applicable. 

2.5. Fiscal Management Standards 

2.5.1. The Contractor shall keep accurate records and must have the ability 
to provide residents with statements upon request. The records and/or 

statements shall include, but are not limited to: 

Dismas Home of NH Exhibk A Contractor Initials ~ 
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2.5.1.1. Complete records of charges. 

2.5.1.2. Payments. 

2.5.1.3. Deposits. 

2.6. Operation Standards 

2.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure emergency procedures along with staff 
numbers are posted in a conspicuous location. 

2.7. Recovery Support Standards 

2. 7.1. The Contractor shall maintain a staffing plan, in accordance with NARR 
Standards. 

2. 7 .2. The Contractor shall implement an applicant screening process that will 
maintain a safe and supportive environment for all individuals in 
recovery. 

2.7.3. The Contractor shall ensure confidentiality laws are adhered to. 

2.7.4. The Contractor shall keep resident's records secure from unauthorized 

access. 

2.7.5. The Contractor shall establish and administer a grievance policy and 
procedure, as provided to each resident prior to enrollment. 

2.7.6. The Contractor shall provide a safe, structured and recovery supportive 
environment through established and written residents' rights and 
requirements. 

2.7.7. The Contractor shall establish an intake/assessment protocol for 
accepting new clients. 

2.1 .a. The Contractor shall establish an orientation process that will ensure all 
fees and charges residents incur are presented to applicants prior to 
residency. Contractor shall ensure policies are presented to potential 
applicants in writing and are verbally explained in a simple and easy 
manner conducive to the individual's understanding. 

2.7.9. The Contractor shall provide a mutually supportive and recovery­
oriented relationships between residents and/or staff through: 

2.7.9.1. Peer-based interactions; 

2.7.9.2. House meetings; 

2.7.9.3. Community gatherings; 

2.7.9.4. Recreational events; and/or 
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Exhibit A 

2.7.9.5. Other social activities. 

2. 7.1 0. The Contractor shall adopt recovery-supportive, alcohol and drug-free 

environments through written and enforced policies and procedures 

that address the following: 

2. 7.1 0.1. Residents that return to alcohol and/or drug use; 

2.7.10.2. Hazardous item searches; 

2. 7.1 0.3. Drug-screening and or toxicology protocols; and 

2.7.10.4. Prescription and non-prescription medication usage; and 

2.7.10.5. Prescription and non-prescription storage. 

2.7.11 . The Contractor shall work with residents to develop and participate in 
an individualized recovery plan. 

2.7.12. The Contractor shall inform residents on the wide range of local 

treatment and recovery support services available to them. 

2. 7 .13. The Contractor shall provide nonclinical, recovery support and related 

services. 

2.7.14. The Contractor shall encourage residents to attend supportive, self­

help groups and/or outside professional services. 

2.7.15. The Contractor shall provide access to scheduled and structured peer-

based services such as didactic presentations. 

2. 7.16. The Contractor shall provide third party clinical services. 

2.7.17. The Contractor shall provide life skills development services. 

2.7.18. The Contractor shall provide access to clinical services. 

2.8. Property Standards 

2.8.1. The Contractor shall ensure the residence meets all life, safety, health 

and building codes. 

2.8.2. The Contractor shall provide residents with storage for food and 

personal items. 

2.8.3. The Contractor shall provide fully-functioning fire extinguishers in plain 
sight and/or clearly marked locations. 

2.8.4. The Contractor shall install operational smoke detectors. 

2.8.5. The Contractor shall install operational carbon monoxide detectors if 
gas appliances are present. 
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RFA·2019-BDAS-02-RECOV·01 

El<hibit A 

Page 4 of7 

Contractor Initials ~ 
Date cf (/, 19 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Recovery Housing for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder 

Exhibit A 

2.8.6. The Contractor shall ensure a smoke/tobacco-free internal living 

environment. 

2.8.7. The Contractor shall provide a large community room that will 

accommodate house meetings. 

2.8.8. The Contractor shall provide sleeping quarters that adhere to local and 

state square footage requirements 

2.8.9. The Contractor shall provide lavatory facilities that adhere to local and 

state requirements if applicable. If there are no requirements, 
Contractor shall provide one (1) sink, one (1) toilet and one (1) shower 

per six (6) residents. 

2.8.1 0. The Contractor shall provide on-site laundry services. 

2.8.11. The Contractor shall maintain the interior and exterior of the residence 

in a functional, safe, and clean manner. 

2.8.12. The Contractor shall provide spaces to hold individual meetings 

accessible to each resident, as scheduled by the Contractor. 

2.8.13. The Contractor shall provide appliances in a good and working 

condition. 

2.8.14. The Contractor shall provide furniture in good condition. 

2.8.15. The Contractor shall provide routine and emergency repairs to all 

aspects of the residence. 

2.9. Good Neighbor Standards 

2.9.1. The Contractor shall provide the residence's responsible parties' 

information to neighbors upon request. The Contractor shall ensure the 

responsible party responds to neighbor's complaints. 

2.9.2. The Contractor shall establish and enforce rules regarding the 
following: 

2.9.2.1. Noise; 

2.9.2.2. Smoking; 

2.9.2.3. Loitering; and 

2.9.2.4. Parking. 

2.9.3. The Contractor shall establish and enforce parking rules when 
warranted. 
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3. Complete Criminal Background Check 

3.1 . The Contractor shall provide to the Department documentation that ensures 
each Contractor employee, who may have direct contact with clients under this 
agreement, has undergone a Criminal Background Check which demonstrates 
no convictions for the following crimes: 

3.1.1. A felony of any individual or neglect, spousal abuse, any crime against 
children, child pornography, rape, sexual assault, or homicide, but not 
including other physical assault or battery; 

3.1.2. A violent or sexually-related crime against a child or an adult which 
shows that the person might be reasonably expected to pose a threat 
to any individual; 

3.1.3. A felony for physical assault, battery, or a drug-related offense, and that 
felony conviction was committed within the past five (5) years in 
accordance with 42 USC 671 (a)(20)(A)(ii). 

3.2. The Contractor shall provide the required documentation to the Department 
prior to any such Contractor employee commencing work, subject to 
Department approval. 

4. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards 

4.1. The Contractor shall provide the Department with time lines and implementation 
plans associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place 
within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date. 

4.1.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required 
timeframe, the Contractor shall submit an updated implementation plan 
to the Department for approval to outline anticipated service start dates. 

4.1.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and 
liquidate unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90) 
days of the contract effective date. 

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure that clients receiving financial aid for recovery 
housing utilizing SOR funds shall only be in a recovery housing facility that is 
aligned with the National Alliance for Recovery Residences standards and 
registered with the State of New Hampshire, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol 
Services in accordance with current NH Administrative Rules. 

4.3. The Contractor shall assist clients with enrolling in public or private health 
insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage. 
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4.4. The Contractor shall accept clients for MAT and facilitate access to MAT on-site 

or through referral for all clients supported with SOR Grant funds, as clinically 

appropriate. 

4.5. The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs program for 

clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS. 

4.6. The Contractor shall ensure that all clients are regularly screened for tobacco 

use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of treatment planning. 
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RESIDENCE 

STAFF 
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LEVEL I 

Peer-Run 

Democratically run 

Manual or P& P 

Drug Screening 

House meetings 

Self help meetings 
encouraged 

Generally single family 
residences 

No paid positions within the 
residence 

Perhaps an overseeing 
officer 
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RECOVERY RESIDENCE LEVELS OF SUPPORT 

LEVEL II LEVEL Ill 

Monitored Supervised 

• House manager or senior • Organizational hierarchy 

resident Administrative oversight lor 

• Policy and Procedures service providers 

Policy and Procedures 

• licensing varies from state 
to state 

• House rules provide • Life skill development 

structure emphasis 

Peer run groups Clinical services utilized in 
outside community 

Drug Screening • Service hours provided in 

• House meetings house 

• Involvement in self help 
and/or treatment services 

• Primarily single family • Varies - all types of 
residences residential sel:tlngs 

Possibly apartments or 
other dwelling types 

• AlleMI 1 compensated • Facility manager 
position Certified staff or case 

managers 

~ L__ --~---- -

LEVEL IV 

Service Provider 

Overseen organizational 
hierarchy 

Clinical and administrative 
supervision 

Policy and Procedures 

Licensing varies from state 
to state 

Clinical services and 
programming are provided 
in house 

Life skill development 

All types - often a step 
down phase within care 
continuum of a treatment 
center 

May be a more institutional 
in environment 

Cradentieled lt8fl 
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National Association of Recovery Residences 

Member Standards 

1. OrganlzatlonaUAdminlstrative Standards Levell 

1.1. Recovery Residences are legal business entities as Strongly 
evidenced by business licenses or incorporation Recommend 
documents; 

1.2. Recovery Residences have a written mission and vision X 
statement; 

1.3. Recovery Residences have a written code of ethics; X 

1.4. Recovery Residences property owners/operators carry Strongly 

general liability insurance; Recommend 

1.5. Recovery Residences comply with state and federal 
requirements. 

X 
If required, documents such as licenses and certificates 
of occupancy are visible for public view; 

1.6. Recovery Residences clearly identify the responsible 
person(s) rn charge of the Recovery Residence to all X 
resideniS; 

1. 7. Recovery Residences clearly slate the minimum 
qualifications, duties, and responsibilities of the n/a 
responsible person(s) in a written job description and/or 
contract; 

1.8. Recovery Residences provide drug and alcohol free X 
environments; 

1.9. Recovery Residences collect and report accurate Strongly 
process and outcome dala for continuous quality 
improvement; 

Recommend 

1.10. Recovery Residences have written permission from the 
owner of record to operate a Recovery Residence on X 
their property; 

2. Fiscal Management Standards Levell 

2.1. Recovery Residences maintain an accounting system 
that fully documents all resident financial transactions X 
such as fees, payments and deposits; 

3. Operation Standards Levell 

3.1. Recovery Residences post emergency procedures and n/a 
staff phone number in conspicuous locations; 

3.2. Recovery Residences post emergency numbers, X 
protocols and evacuation maps; 

RFA·2019-80A$-02-RECOV E><hibkA·1 
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X 
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Strongly 
Recommend 
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Strongly 
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X 

Level II 
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Level II 

n/a 

X 

Level Ill Level IV 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

Level Ill Level IV 

X X 
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X X 
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National Association of Recovery Residences 

Member Standards 

4. Recovery Support Standards Levell 

4.1. Recovery Residences maintain a staffing plan; If Applicable 

4.2. Recovery Residences use an applicant screening 
process that helps maintain a safe and supportive 
environment for a specific group of persons in recovery; 

4.3. Recovery Residences adhere to applicable 
confidentiality laws; 

4.4. Recovery Residences keep resident records secure with 
access limited to authorized staff only. 

4.5. Recovery Residences have a grievance policy and 
procedure for residents; 

4.6. Recovery Residences create a safe, structured, and 
recovery supportive environment through written and 
enforced residents' rights and requirements; 

4. 7. Recovery Residences have an orientation process that 
clear1y communicates residents' rights and requirements 
prior to them signing any agreements; collects 
demographic and emergency contact information and 
provides new residents with written instructions on 
emergency procedures and staff contact information; 

4.8. Recovery Residences foster mutually supportive and 
recovery-oriented relationships between residents and/or 
staff through peer-based interactions, house meetings. 
community gatherings, recreational events, and/or other 
social activities: 

4.9. Recovery Residences foster recowry-supportive, 
alcohol and drug-free enviroM\ents through written and 
enforced poriCies and procedures that address: residents 
who return to alcohol and/or drug use: hazardous item 
searches: drug-screening and or toxicology protocols: 
and prescription and non-prescription medications usage 
and storage; 

4.1 0. Recovery Residences encourage each resident to 
develop and participate in their own personalized 
recovery plan; 

4.1 1. Recovery Residences inform residents on the wide 
range of local treatment and recovery support services 
available to lhem including: 12 step or other mutual 
support groups, recover community centers, recovery 
ministries, recovery-focused leisure activities and 
recovery ad\IOC8Cy opportunities; 
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National Association of Recovery Residences 

Member Standards 

4. Recovery Support Standards (Co nl) Levell 

4.12. Recovery Residences provide nonclinical, recovery 
support and related services; 

4.13. Recovery Residences encourage residents to attend 
mui\Jally supportive, self help groups and/or outside 
professional services; 

4.14. Recovery Residences provide access to scheduled and 
structured peer-based services such as didactic 
presentations; 

4.15. Recovery Residences provide access to 3rd party 
clinical services in accordance to State laws; 

4 .16. Recovery Residences offer l~e skills development 
services; 

4.17. Recovery Residences offer clinical services in 
accordance to State laws; 

5. Property Standards 

5.1. Recovery Residences abide by all local building and fire 
safety codes; 

5.2. Recovery Residences provide each residents with food 
and personal ~em storage; 

5.3. Recovery Residences place functioning fire 
extinguishers in plain sight and/or in clear1y marked 
locations ; 

5.4. Recovery Residences have functioning smoke detectors 
installed. If the residence has gas appliances, 
functioning carbon monoxide detectors are installed; 

5.5. Recovery Residences provide a non smoking internal 
living environment; 

5.6. Recovery Residences have a community room large 
enough to accommodate house meetings and sleeping 
rooms that adhere to local and state square footage 
reQuirements; 

5.7. Recovery Residences have one sink, toilet and shower 
per six residents or adhere to local and state 
requirements; 

5.8. Recovery Residences have laundry services that are 
accessible to all residents; 
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National Association of Recovery Residences 

Member Standards 

5. Property Standards (Cont.) Lavell 

5.9. Recovery Residences maintain the interior and exterior 
of the property in a functional. safe and clean manor that X 
is compatible with the neighbortlood; 

5.1 0. Recovery Residences have meeting spaces that X 
accommodate all residents; 

5.11. Recovery Residences have appliances that are in X 
working order and furniture that is in good condition; 

512. Recovery Residences address roollne and emergency X 
repairs in a timely fashion; 

6. Good Neighbor Standards Levell 

6.1. Recovery Residences provide neighbors with the 
responsible person(s) contact infonmation upon request. 

X 
The responsible person(s) responds to neighbor's 
complaints, even if rt is not possible to resolve the issue; 

6.2. Recovery Residences have rules regarding noise. Strongly 
smoking, loitering and parking that are responsive to 
neighbor's reasonable complaints ; 

Recommend 

6.3. Recovery Residences have and enforce parking X 
courtesy rules where street parking is scarce; 
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment 

1) The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price 

Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services. 

1.1. This Agreement is funded with funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 

Administration, State Opioid Response Grant, CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI081685. 

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance 

with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded 

Contractor's current and/or future funding. 

2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows: 

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the 

fulfillment of this Agreement. and shall be in accordance with the approved line item. 

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth (20"'} 

working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized 

expenses incurred in the prior month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and 

returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep 

records of their activities related to Department programs and services. 

2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each 

invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available. 

The Contractor will keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs 

and services. 

2.4. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form 

P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date. 

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to 

Melissa.Girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to: 

Melissa Girard, SOR Finance Manager 
Department of Health and Human Services 
BOAS, State Opioid Response 
129 Pleasant Street, 3'" Floor 
Concord, NH 03301 

2.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified 

in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B. 

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts 

between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price 

limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written 

agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and 

Executive Council. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit c 

SpECIAL PROVISIONS 

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor 
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible 
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and 
agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the elig.ibility 
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and 
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures. 

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by 
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by 
the Department. 

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor 
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include all 
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the 
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation 
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require. 

4. Fair Hearings: Tha Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as 
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The 
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out 
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair 
hearing in accordance with Department regulations. 

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or 
make a payment gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or 
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhib~ A of this 
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if ~ is 
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offened or received by 
any officials, offtcers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor. 

6. Retroactive Payments: Notw~hstanding any1hing to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any 
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties 
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for 
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract 
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided 
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or {except as otherwise provided by the 
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is el igible for such services. 

1. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding any1htng to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing 
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services 
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate 
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the qualny of such service, or at a 
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party 
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final 
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used 
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment 
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals 
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to: 

7.1. 
7.2. 

00,3118 

Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event n- rates shall be established; 
Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in 
excess of costs; 
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make 
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is 
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to 
reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services 
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at 
any time during the period of retention of records established herein. 

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY: 

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor 
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period: 

8.1. Fiscal Records: books. records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs 
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all 
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be 
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and 
properly reflect ail such costs and expenses. and which are acceptable to the Department, and 
to indude, without lim~ation, all ledgers. books, records, and original evidence of costs such as 
purchase requisitions and orders. vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of 
in-kind contnbutions, labor lime cards. payrolls, and other records requested or required by the 
Department 

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of 
services during the Contract Period, which records shall indude all records of application and 
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records 
regarding the provision of services and ail invoices submitted to the Department to obtain 
payment for such services. 

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations. the 
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services. 

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audrt to the Department within 60 days after the close of the 
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non 
Profrt Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, 
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting OffiCe (GAO standards) as 
they pertain to financial compliance audits. 

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the 
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their 
designated representatives shall have access to ail reports and records maintained pursuantto 
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination. excerpts and transcripts. 

9.2. Audit Liabilrties: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is 
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state 
or federal audrt exceptions and shall return to the Department. ail payments made under the 
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an 
exception. 

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected 
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not 
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of 
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to 
public officials requiring such information in connection with their offiCial duties and for purposes 
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that 
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not 
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with 
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his 
attorney or guardian. .~ 
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in 
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever. 

11. Reports : Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to subm~ the following reports at thefollowong 
times if requested by the Department 
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of 

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and 
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to 
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form 
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department. 

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term 
of this Contract The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall 
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal 
and other information required by the Department. 

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the 
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation 
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, 
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or 
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the 
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as 
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such 
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. 

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared 
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following 
statement: 
13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State 

of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. w~ funds provided in part 
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or 
required, e.g ., the United States Department of Health and Human Services. 

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or 
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production, 
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials 
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures. resource directories, protocols or guidelines, 
posters, or neports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without 
prior written approval from DHHS. 

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities 
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal. 
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers 
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the 
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or 
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services. 
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and 
condibons of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the 
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall 
comply with all rules. orders, regulations. and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and 
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by­
laws and regulations. 

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment 
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Offoce for Civil Rights, Offoce of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has 
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or 
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP CertifiCation Form to the 
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees 
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an 
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non­
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the 
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption. 
EEOP CertifiCation Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/abouVocr/pdfslcert.pdf. 

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to 
Services for persons with Limited English ProfiCiency, and resulting agency gutdance, national origin 
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English profiCiency (LEP). To ensure 
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have 
meaningful access to Its programs. 

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstleblower Protections: The 
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48 
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000) 

CoNTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTtEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPlOYEES OF 
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013) 

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights 
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistle blower protections established at 
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 
112-239) and FAR 3.908. 

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing , in the predominant language of the workforce, 
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S. C. 4712, as described in section 
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation. 

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all 
subcontracts over the simplified acquisit ion threshold. 

19. Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with 
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience. 
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to 
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated 
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that speciftes activities and reporting 
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if 
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual 
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance 
with those conditions. 

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following: 

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating 
the function 

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting 
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's 
performance is not adequate 

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis 
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand 
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed 

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts. 

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall 
take corrective action. 

20. Contract Definitions: 

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect ~ems of expense determined by the Department 
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established 
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders. 

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services. 

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a 
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or 
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided 
under the Contract. 

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible indiViduals hereunder, shall 
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified 
in Exhibit B of the Contract. 

20.5. FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and 
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean 
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time. 

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this 
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services. 
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is 
replaced as follows: 

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State 
hereunder, induding without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, 
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, 
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by 
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise 
modifies the appropriation or availabitny of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of 
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the 
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In 
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the 
State shall have the right to wnhhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The 
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement 
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modifiCation. 
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the 
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other 
accoun~ in the event funds are reduced or unavailable. 

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the 
following language; 

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of 
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its 
option to terminate the Agreement. 

102 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early 
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the 
Agreement, induding but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of dienls 
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs. 

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed 
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or 
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan 
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as 
requested. 

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving 
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity 
induding contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for 
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan. 

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying dients and other affected individuals 
about the transition. The Contrac1or shall include the proposed communications in its 
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above. 

3. Renewal: 
The Department reserves the right to extend this Agreement for up to two (2) additional years. 
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and 
approval of the Governor and Executive Council. 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. l. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0 ; 41 
U.S. C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

ALTERNATIVE I- FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES- CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION- CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE- CONTRACTORS 

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free 
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub1lrantees and sub­
contractors), prior to award, that they wm maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the 
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub1lrantees and sub-contractors) that is a State 
may elect to make one certification to the Department 1n each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for 
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certifiCate set out below is a 
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False 
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or 
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment Contractors using this form should 
send it to: 

Commissioner 
NH Department of Health and Human ServiCes 
129 Pleasant Street, 
Concord, NH 03301-6505 

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free worilplace by: 
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution. 

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's 
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such 
prohibition; 

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about 
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling , rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and 
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees tor drug abuse violations 

occurring in the worilplace; 
1.3. Making ij a reqwementthat each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be 

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that. as a condition of 

employment under the grant, the employee will 
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug 

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such 
conviction; 

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. 
Employers of conviCted employees must prOvide notice, induding pos1tion tijle, to every grant 
officer on whose grant adivijy the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency 
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has designated a central point for the recetpt of such notices. Notice shall include the 
identification number(s) of each affected grant; 

1.6. Taking one of the following actions. within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted 
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including 

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended; or 

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or 
rehabttrtation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, 
taw enforcemen~ or other appropriate agency; 

1. 7. Making a good faith effort to oontinue to maintain a drug-free worl\ptace through 
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6. 

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in 
connection with the specific grant. 

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location) 

Check c if there are worl\ptaces on file that are not identified here. 

Date I 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

~ -
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES- CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION- CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE· CONTRACTORS 

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): 
"Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A 
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D 
•social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX 
'Medicaid Program under nue XIX 
•community Services Block Grant under Title VI 
'Child Care Development Block Grant under ntle IV 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to 
any person for influencing or at!empting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant. loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention 
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or at!empting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, 
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress 1n connection with this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub­
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions. attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E·l.) 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included In the award 
document for su!J..awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub1Jrants, and contracts under grants, 
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all su!J..recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission of this certificabon is a prerequisite tor making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 
each such failure. 1l ,) 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION 
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Executive Offtee of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debannent, 
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters. and further agrees to have the Contractor's 
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following 
Certification: 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the 

certification set out below. 

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial 
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an 
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be 
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS) 
detennination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary 
participant to furnish a certifocation or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in 
this transaction. 

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
When DHHS detennined to enter into this transaction. If it is later detennined that the prospective 
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may tenninate this transaction for cause or default. 

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to 
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns 
that its certifocation was erroneous When submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 

5. The tenns "covered transaction,· "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered 
transaction," "participant,• "person,· "primary covered transaction,· "principal," "proposal." and 
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and 
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the 
attached definitions. 

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this covered transaction. unless authorized by DHHS. 

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will indude the 
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debannent, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,· provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a 
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded 
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may 
decide the method and frequency by Which it detennines the eligibility of its principals. Each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the Non procurement List (of excluded parties). 

9. Nothing contaoned in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records 
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent 
person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a 
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred. ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction. in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction 
for cause or default 

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 

principals: 
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had 

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) 
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b) 
of this certification; and 

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public 
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as 

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. 
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such 

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will 
include this clause entitled ·certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and 
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

CUJOHHS/110713 
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO 
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND 

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: 

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable 
federal nondiscrimination requirements, Which may include: 

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits 
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in 
the delivery of services or benefrts, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act 
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan; 

-the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S. C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by 
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this 
statute are prohibited from d iscriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or 
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal 
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; 

· the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S. C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial 
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity); 

-the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial 
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of 
services or benefits, in any program or activity; 

·the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits 
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local 
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation; 

·the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs; 

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106·07), which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include 
employment d iscrimination; 

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42 
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies 
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community 
organiZations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making 
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organiZations; 

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- Equal Treatment for Faith-Based 
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization 
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for 
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against 
reprisal tor certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts. 

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the 
agency awards the grant False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for 
suspension of payments, suspension o r termination of grants, or government wide suspension or 
debarment. 
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""' In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of 
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex 
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to 
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and 
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: 

t. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions 
indicated above. 

Contractor Name: bt~lhNS<f-.bnx. 1 Nl/ {/) f/Nfp 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING E.NVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE 

Public Law 103-227, Part C- Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 

(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or 

contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education, 

or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either 

directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The 

law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by 

Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of faciltties used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatmenl F allure 

to comply with the provisions of the law may resu~ in the imposition of a civil monetary pena~ of up to 

$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administratiVe compliance order on the responsible entity. 

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's 

representative as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 

certification: 

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply 

with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Prc:H:hildren Act of 1994. 

~HS/1 10713 
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HEALTH INSURANCE pORTABILITY ACT 
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to 

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and 

with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 

CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business 

Associate• shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that 

receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered 

Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. 

(1) Qefinjtjons, 

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45, 

Code of Federal Regulations. 

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 ofTitle 45, Code 

of Federal Regulations. 

c. ·covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title45, 

Code of Federal Regulations. 

d. "Designated Record Set• shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set• 

in 45 CFR Section 164.501 . 

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation· in 45CFR 

Section 164.501. 

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations" 

in 45 CFR Section 164.501. 

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 

Act, TitleXIII, SubtitleD, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 

2009. 

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of1996, Public Law 

104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health 

Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. 

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.1 03 

and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 

CFR Section 164.501 (g). 

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 

Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States 

Department of Health and Human Services. 

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health 

information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by 

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. 
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1. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45CFR 

Section 164.103. 

m. "Secretarv"shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or 

his/her designee. 

n. ·securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected 

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto. 

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not 

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, 

unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by 

a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards 

Institute. 

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the 

HITECH 
Act. 

(2) Bysiness Assocjate Usg and Plsclosyre of protected Health lntonnatjon 

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health 

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under 

Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all 

its directors. officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit 

PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: 

I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate; 

II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or 

Ill. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered 

Entity. 

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a 

third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) 

reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and 

used or further disclosed only as required by taw or for the purpose for which it was 

disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business 

Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification 

Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained 

knowledge of such breach. 

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to 

provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a 

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying 

Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and 

to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business 
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all 

remedies. 

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to 

be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security 

safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 

shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of 

such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards. 

(3) Obligations apd Actjyltles of Byslness Assodate. 

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately 

after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected 

health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured 

protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the 

protected health information of the Covered Entity. 

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes 

aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be 

limited to: 

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the 

types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification; 

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the 

disclosure was made; 
o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed 

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been 

mitigated. 

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the 

breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the 

Covered Entity. 

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and 

Breach Notification Rule. 

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books 

and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or 

received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for 

purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and 

Security Rule. 

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have 

access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same 

restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including 

the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1) . The Covered Entity 

shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate 

agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PH I 
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such 

business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard 

contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of 

protected health information. 

Within frve (5} business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, 

Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all 

records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure 

of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine 

Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, 

Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the 

Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the 

requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an 

amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record 

Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for 

amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its 

obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526. 

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to 

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an 

individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 

164.528. 

Within ten (1 0) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a 

request for an accounting of disclosures of PH I, Business Associate shall make available 

to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations 

to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR 

Section 164.528. 

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI 

directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) 

business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the 

responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the 

individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business 

Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 

shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify 

Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. 

Within ten (1 0) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the 

Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI 

received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the 

Agreement. and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or 

destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in 

the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the 

Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those 

purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business ~ 
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the 

Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to 

Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. 

(4) Obllgatjons of Coyered Eotjtv 

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s} in its 

Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 

164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's 

use or disclosure of PH I. 

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation 

of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or 
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 

164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. 

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or 

disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, 

to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of 

PHI. 

(5) Teanjnatjon for Cayse 

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this 

Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered 

Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate 

Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately 

terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the 

alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity 

determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the 

violation to the Secretary. 

(6) Miscellaneous 

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, 

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended 

from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to 

a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as 

amended. 

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is 

necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered 

Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and 

Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law. 

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights 

with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. 

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved 

to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. 
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any 

person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or 

conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the 

terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable. 

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, retum or 

destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the 

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the 

standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I. 

Name of Au~ ed Representative 

~(ac--\-U/ 
Title of Authorized Representative 

?:}?o \19 
Date 

312014 

Sig ature of Authori Representative 

~e11o~o'ri~ Representative 

~~5 ~ ji{Nfl 
Title of Authoriz Representative 
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• 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY 

ACT !FFATAI COMPLIANCE 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual 

Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on 

data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier subilrants of $25,000 or more. If the 

initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modiftcations result in a total award equal to or over 

$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award. 

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the 

Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any 

subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements: 

1. Name of entity 
2. Amount of award 
3. Funding agency 
4. NAICS code for contracts I CFDA program number for grants 

5. Program source 
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the tundtng actton 

7. Location of the entity 
8. Principle place of performance 

9. Unique identifier of the entJty (DUNS t) 

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if: 

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those 

revenues are greater than S25M annually and 

1 0.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC. 

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which 

the award or award amendment is made. 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252, 

and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees 

to have the Contractor's representative. as identified tn Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provtsions 

execute the following Certification: 

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH 

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal 

Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. 
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FORMA 

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the 

below listed questions are true and accurate. 

1. TheOUNSnumberforyourentityis: Of¢'! I 061-5 

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization 

receive (1 ) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, 

loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual 

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or 

cooperative agreements? 

X NO ___ YES 

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here 

If the answer to t12 above is YES, please answer the following: 

3. Does the public have aocess to Information about the compensation of the execubves in your 

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the lntemal Revenue Code of 

1986? 

_..:_'X~ NO ___ YES 

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here 

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following: 

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or 

orgamzation are as follows: ' 

Name:" )a.nt. Lta ,&; en·r 
' 

Name: - - ------
Name: ___ ______ __ 

Name: - ---------

Name:-----------

Amount:~ 
Amount:------

Amount:--------

Amount:--- ---

Amount ------

CU.'DUHSI11071S 

ExhiM J- Certification Regardrng the Fedellll Funding 

Accoon~bility And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compiance 
Page 2 of2 

Contractor lnftials d 
Dale '{ f!.t'l 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

A. Definitions 

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document: 

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure, 

unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to 

situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than 

authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable 

information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health 

Information, • Breach· shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach· in section 

164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations. 

2. •computer Security Incident• shall have the same meaning "Computer Security 

Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61 , Computer Security Incident 

Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department 

of Commerce. 

3. · confidential Information• or ·confidential Data• means all confidential information 

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public 

assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance 

Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and 

Personally Identifiable Information. 

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by 

the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and 

Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted 

services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by 

state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to 

Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial 

Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), 

Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information. 

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee, 

business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.} that receives 

DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract. 

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountabil ity Act of 1996 and the 

regulations promulgated thereunder. 

6. "lncidenr means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy, 

which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a 

system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of 

a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware, 

firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or 

consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss 

or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic 
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mail , all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized 

access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction. 

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is 

not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of lnfomnation 

Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and 

approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open 

network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, 

PHI or confidential DHHS data. 

8. "Personal lnfonnation• (or "PI ") means infonnation which can be used to distinguish 

or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal 

information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc., 

alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked 

or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden 

name, etc. 

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 

Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United 

States Department of Health and Human Services. 

10. "Protected Health lnfonnation• (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the 

definition of "Protected Health lnfonnation• in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. § 

160.103. 

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic 

Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments 

thereto. 

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is 

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health lnfonnation 

unusable. unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is 

developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by 

the American National Standards Institute. 

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR 

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential lnfonnation. 

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information 

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor, 

including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not 

use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation 

of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a 
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a 
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to 
consent or object to the disclosure. 

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional 
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI 
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such 
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional 
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. 

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End 
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for 
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. 

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives 
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this 
Contract. 

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA 

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing 
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have 
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said 
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. 

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks 
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS 
data. 

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if 
email is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of 
persons authorized to receive such information. 

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential 
Data, the secure soclket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be 
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. 

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file 
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit 
Confidential Data. 

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground 
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual. 

7. laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit 
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected. 

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open 
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when 
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network. 

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to 
access or transmit Confidential Data. a virtual private network (VPN) must be 
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be 
transmitted or accessed. 

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol {SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If 
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will 
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of 
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will 
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle {i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 
hours). 

11 . Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all 
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. 

Ill. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS 

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this 
Contract. After such time. the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any 
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted 
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must: 

A. Retention 

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in 
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United 
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of 
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup 
data and Disaster Recovery locations. 

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in 
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems 
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. 

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data 
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2 

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a 
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and 
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have 
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti­
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a 
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection. 

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's 

Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting 

infrastructure. 

B. Disposition 

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its 

sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for 

securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will 

obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the 

Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster 

recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of 

New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program 

in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media 

sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, 

degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication SOo-88, Rev 1, Guidelines 

for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. 

Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at 

time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department 

upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to 

demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, 

regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly 

evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction. 

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this 

Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a 

secure method such as shredding. 

3. Unless otherwise speclfied, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this 

Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data 

by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping. 

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY 

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any 

derivative data or files, as follows: 

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department 

confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery 

of contracted services. 

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department 

confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from 

creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the 

media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.). 
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to 
contractor systems that collect , transmit, or store Department confidential infonnation 
where applicable. 

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to 
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or 
Department confidential infonnation for contractor provided systems. 

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential infonnation. 

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement 
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a 
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security 
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum 
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. 

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable 
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies 
and procedures, systems access fonns, and computer use agreements as part of 
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be 
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sutrcontractors prior to 
system access being authorized. 

8. If the Department detennines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement 
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the 
agreement. 

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System 
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and 
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may 
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed 
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by 
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the 
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes. 

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire 
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless 
prior express written consent is obtained from the I nfonnation Security Office 
leadership member within the Department. 

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall 
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to 
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. 
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from 
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and 
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to 
the breach. 

12. Contractor must. comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the 
privacy and security of Confidential Information. and must in all other respects 
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less 
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, 
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS 
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §Sb), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 
C.F.R Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health 
information and as applicable under State law. 

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative. technical, and 
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to 
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and 
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements 
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. 
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doiUvendor/index.htm 
for the Department of Information Technology policies. guidelines. standards, and 
procurement information relating to vendors. 

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident 
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the 
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses 
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer 
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New 
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network. 

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this 
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to 
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract. 

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users: 

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, 
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS 
under this Contract from loss. theft or inadvertent disclosure. 

b. safeguard this information at all times. 

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or 
PFI are encrypted and password-protected. 

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvpted and being 
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to 
receive such information. 
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law. 

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually 
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is 
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons 
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, 
biometric identifiers, etc.). 

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any 
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases, 
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when 
stored on portable media as required in section IV above. 

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and 
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based 
assessment of the circumstances involved. 

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be 
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure. 
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through 
a third party application. 

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS 
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this 
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPM, 
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data 
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. 

V. LOSS REPORTING 

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any 
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in 
Section VI. 

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PH I in 
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification 
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and 
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures, 
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will : 

1. Identify Incidents; 

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents; 

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; 

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents 
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and 

VS. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K 
OHHS lnfoonation 

Security Requirements 
Page 8 of 9 

Contractor Initials~ 
Date ~ 11 .11 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS lnfonnation Security Requirements 

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so. identify appropriate 
Breach notification methods, timing. source, and contents from among different 
options. and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation 
measures. 

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as 
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. 

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT 

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: 

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov 

B. DHHS Security Officer: 

DHHSinformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov 

V5. Last update 10/09118 Exhibit K 
OHHS lnfO<matioo 

SeCtH'IIy RoqtJircmonts 
Po9e 9 of 9 

Contractor Initials ~ 
Oato ·'f. 1/. / 'i 



State of New Hampshire 

Department of State 

CLRTIFICATE 

I. William M. G.,.dn<.T. <;ecrct<lr) ofSMc of the State ofNe" Hampshire. do h<.-n.-1>) ccrtif) that 015\1AS JI0~1E OF "'E\\ 

IIA \1J'SHIRE. INC. is a'"" llamt»hirc 'ion profit Corporation regislered 10 transact business in NO\\ llampshire on 0..-.:cmb<:r 

01. 2014. I funhcr C<:rtil) that oil fees Md ducumcnl• required hy the Secrelar)' ofSialc·s office have been rocci'cd and is in &ood 

standing~ lhr U) thiN office i~ concerm.'\1. 

Businc-,;s ID: 719017 

Ccrlilicalc Number: 0004432842 

1'\ TESTIMONY Wlll.l<l 01. 

I hereto >elm) hand and cause to be ulli\c-.1 

the Sc:al of the Stlte of""'' II.1111P>hirc. 

thC. 7th <Ia) of March A.l>. 2019. 

William M. Gardner 

Seeretary or Slalc 



CERTIACATE OF VOTE 

t . 1 am a ca.1y elected Member o1 _ _ D!.L1tu5JL!TlAJCJ..:lSL-Lth.u.m.!.l~c--'a£'-l-..!.JJ!!LlH __ 
,,_ yNarn< 

2. The following Is a true copy ol the resolution duly adopted a t a meeting of the Members of 

the Agency clAy held j --llf;J.r¥'1 : ~· tel 

RESOLVED:Thalthe$1 ~ U (Trtlo \>(Cootr•ct Srgoatory) 

is henlby aulhonzed on bohall d this Agoncy to..,.., into the saod c:omact wiellhe Slato an:l to 
exeaAe any and all doc:umenls. agr98fneniS and 04her ~and any amendments. ~ 
or modificallons thereto, as he/she may-., -.,ary, desi,_ or """'""' iato. 

of the Agerq. 

STATEOF ~.l~,a.£ 

Ccunryol th /4 ~fi£<Jic...rtf-
The forgoing Instrument was acknowledged before me this _li 77f- clay ol ~ 20_fj_, 

(NOTARYS 1\J 

MA RK A. LACO MBE 
Nou rv Pub l ic~New Hampshire 

M y Commission Exptt•s 

~~~~~:·:M::~ijiii~~~U~$~1~2·~·~2~0~2~1------JJ NHDHHS.O..CII 
Ow.., of~ Alllrlionship .... 119"1811 
Ce!1ilicalo al \1110 - Seal 

-

Jdf11, 2005 



.............., DISMHOII-01 ~ 

ACORD' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I ... ,..~ 
~ 

THII CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MAlTER OF INFOIWA OON ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOUI!R. THIS 
C!RTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGA11VELY AIIIEHD, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COYERAGE AFF01tDED BYTIIEI'OUCI!S 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSnTUTE A CONTRACT BE'TWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENT A 11VE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOI.DER. 

!!:"""TAitT: """ifii>e ':.".:'::::,::;,e==li\f=.:.::::·------• dl»& -..:.~ ; ,..,. , ,IJ.;;·, nwy nqulrean-...nwnt. A ota-on 

=' Group LLC. • """ 12031 I rM I 281-0414 
~-!..~Cie473 

I •••• 
~~-- ... , 

Dlemu""""' of-Hllmp8hlre lno. 
P.O. Box73 
Nori!ISUI!on, NH 03260 

" 
I P£RI()Q THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE,"AN'Y' ·.Of :Tii\MLISTED BELOW'r~~i~TO~OTHER I NAMED 

INDICATED. :~~~~THE OR ,_v :-:_; rom~~ 
~ ~!!' : LiifiTi ( HAVI' ..,.~ """"' 

f.-0 CV........,. 00 OCCUR S/1112.018 S/1112020 I. 
A~ ~ Ia 

5,000j f.- •• 
f.- - -· ··~···- •• 

.. ·-·-···-· •• [K I'O.JCY-0-l'l'8f ~0 L0C •• 
1~ •. 

~ 
•• A 

t! 
UAIIUlY •• 

-AIIfO ~ 511112011 S/1112020 -· •• 
>- =-v f.- ~sswo 

~ •• 
>- --y >-~ •• - •• A l! _._. .... !.j occult .. -~- •• ...,... .... " S/1112011 511112020 Ia 

I """ I X I .. 10.0001 I. 
~~~ r IfE: B 

~UAIIUTt 0 I•" S/1112019 S/1112020 lu I . 
lOLa,... ... ._. I. 

I. ·-·- I . 

DESCRIPnON OF O,.,.,'nOI!aJ LOCATIOMIIVIICICUS (ACORD wt,MG!IoMI...._.. ~ -rMallacfted er ... .,_.a.,......,..... 

ou~ ~noN 

SHOULD ANY OF TME ABOVE DE8CRI8ED POUCtES BE CAHC£1 ' m 8eFORE 

Oopo-of-ond Human S.rvlceo 
Dlvlllclnof--

THE EXPtRAnON DATE lHI!REOF, NOTICE WLI. BE DEI.JVEM!D IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH nE POLICY PROVISIOtr& 

IW'NU of DNg-Alcohol Servlceo 
10S-Sl, 3rd Floor- Alln40RIZEO RIPRUiiNTAlMi 
Conconl, NH 03301 

--~~~-' 
ACORD 25 (2.016103) ~ 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORA nON. AI rights_,__ 

The ACORD name and logo ant regl- mar1cs ol ACORD 

I 
I 



ISlV[_A_S 
IIC>lVlE 

·----~ E W 1-I A. 1Vl P S 1'-l I R. E 

M ission Statement 

Of 

Dismas Home of New Hampshire 
(Revised as of February, 2019) 

Dismas Home of New Hampshire (DHNH) is a non-profit, 501 (c)(3) charitable 

organization providing previously incarcerated women a comprehensive program 

based on education, training, therapy, and recovery services. Our nurturing, 

family-like environment empowers healing and life transformation, allowing the 

women we serve to rejoin their families and live full and productive lives. 



....... ISMAS 
HOME 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
OF 

DISMAS HOME OF NH 
OCTOBER, 2018 

RFA-2019-BDAS-01-SU BST-01 

Respectfully Submitted by: Sara J. Lutat, MSW/MLADC 

Executive Director 



Table of Contents 

Report on Preparation of Financial Statements ..................................................................................................... 3 

Statement of Activity Last Month ........................................................................................................................... 4 

Statement of Activity YTD ...................................................................................................................................... 6 

Statement of Financial Position YTD ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Statement of Cash Flows YTD ............................................................................................................................ 1 0 

Temp Restricted Net Assets Ledger to Date ....................................................................................................... 11 

YTD Budget to Actual .......................................................................................................................................... 13 

2!15 



IS MAS 
HOME 

Report on Preparation of Financial Statements 
RFA-2018-BDAS-01-SUBST-Q1 

October 31, 2018 

To: Bureau of Alcohol and Drugs Services/Department of Health and Human Services 

The accompanying financial statement of Dis mas Home of NH, Inc. as of and for the period ending 
October 31, 2018 were not subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement by me and, 
accordingly, I do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance of them. 

Bernard R. Towne, CPA 

Champion Accounting Solutions, PLLC 



Statement of Activity Last Month 
Oc'Otu 2r· 

Total 

Oc12018 Sap 2018 (PP) 

REVENUE 

4 t 00 Donations 1,677.95 1,722.33 

4150 Grant 0.00 10,000.00 

4210 Div Income 1.09 0.97 

4220 Interest Inc 1.13 1.02 

4410 Resident Fees 831.00 1,012.00 

4500 Government Funding 

4520 BOAS 6,750.00 10,230.00 

4530 Medicaid Reimbursements 49,882.00 

Total 4500 Government Funding 56,632.00 10,230.00 

Total Revenue 59,143.17 22,966.32 

GROSS PROFIT 59,143.17 22,966.32 

EXPENDITURES 

51 00 Advertising 

5110 Constant Contact 42.75 42.75 

Total 51 00 Advertising 42.75 42.75 

5200 Auto & Transport 

5210 Auto Insurance 315.01 

Total 5200 Auto & Transport 315.01 

5400 Fees & Charges 

5420 PayPat CC Fees 2.91 13.96 

5430 Bank Fees 23.75 -17.26 

Total 5400 Fees & Charges 26.66 -3.30 
5600 Insurance 

5630 Workers Comp 591.00 591.00 

Total 5600 Insurance 591.00 591.00 

5800 Office Expenses 

5810 Computer & Software 123.95 120.99 

5820 Office Supplies 400.29 

5630 Postage and Delivery 81.00 41.67 

5840 Printing and Reproduction 149.00 

Total 5800 Office Expanses 204.95 711.95 

5900 Payroll and other employee expenses 

5910 Employer Taxes 1,038.87 1,039.71 

5920 S~la~es & Wages 12,146.62 12,098.62 

Total 5900 Payroll and other employee expenses 13,185.49 13,138.33 

6300 Prof and legal Fees 

6340 Accountant 557.50 517.50 

Total 6300 Prof and Legal Fees 557.50 517.50 

6400 Taxes & Licenses 

6460 Not for profit State report 7.00 
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Total 

Oct2018 Sep 2018 (PP) 

Total 6400 Taxes & Licenses 7.00 

6600 Utilities 

6610 Electric 909.12 555.91 

6630 Internet TV Phone 137.80 180.65 

6650 Security Monitoring 2,899.00 

Total 6600 Utilities 3,945.92 736.56 

6700 Other Home Expenses 

6710 Maintenance 428.18 

6720 Groceries 55.05 217.35 

6730 Entertainment 107.99 7.99 

6740 Drug Tests 221.38 

6750 Background checks 25.00 

Total 6700 Other Home Expenses 591.22 471.72 

Total Expenditures 19,467.50 16,206.51 

NET OPERATING REVENUE 39,675.67 6,759.81 

NET REVENUE $39,675.67 $6,759.81 

Dis~s Hor'e o1 New l lamos~·hre 5 15 



Statement of Activity YTD 
Jan,urv · OcrobtJ•. 20 ~ .: 

Total 

Jan- Oct, 2018 Jan - Oct, 2011 (PY) 

REVENUE 

41 00 Donations 81,681.42 45,030.70 

4150 Grant 56,309.00 13,500.00 

421 0 Oiv Income 6.97 1.45 

4220 Interest Inc 12.77 58.57 

4310 Other Income 1,390.00 

4320 Gains/Losses on trading portfolio ·20.79 ·211.04 

441 0 Resident Fees 4,508.00 2,113.36 

4500 Government Funding 

4510 CDFA 46,088.00 

4520 BOAS 28,035.00 

4530 Medicaid Reimbursements 56,242.00 

Total 4500 Government Funding 84,277.00 46,088.00 

4610 Room & Board (in kind) 2,769.24 923.08 

Total Revenue 230,933.61 107,504.12 

GROSS PROFIT 230,933.61 107,504.12 

EXPENDITURES 

51 00 Advertising 

511 0 Constant Contact 356.25 190.00 

5130 Website Design 1,000.00 195.00 

5150 Other Advertising 64.73 

Total5100 Advertising 1,356.25 449.73 

5200 Auto & Transport 

5210 Auto Insurance 623.99 4,869.00 

5240 Gas & Fuel 151.1 1 627.71 

5250 Parking 1.00 3.00 

5270 Registration 206.20 296.20 

5280 Service & Parts 378.06 1,150.80 

5290 Tolls 26.00 

Total 5200 Auto & Transport 1,360.36 6,972.71 

5300 Dues & SUbscriptions 430.95 734.66 

5400 Fees & Charges 

5410 Epay 107.86 

5420 PayPal CC Fees 48.75 49.70 

5430 Bank Fees 244.07 117.08 

5440 Fire Alarm Fee 30.00 540.00 
-· 

Total 5400 Fees & Charges 322.82 814.64 

5600 Insurance 

5620 Home 3,480.83 2,393.70 

5630 Workers Comp 8,401.00 3.619.00 

Total5600 Insurance 11,881.83 6,012.70 
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5700 Meals & Entertainment 

5800 Offtee Expenses 

5810 Computer & Software 

5820 Office Supplies 

5830 Postage and Delivery 

5840 Printing and Reproduction 

Total 5800 Office Expenses 

5900 Payroll and other employee expenses 

5910 Employer Taxes 

5920 Salaries & Wages 

5940 Training 

Total 5900 Payroll and other employee expenses 

6300 Prof and Legal Fees 

6340 Accountant 

Total 6300 Prof and Legal Fees 

6321 Fund Raising Events 

6400 Taxes & Licenses 

6410 Annual Report Certificate 

6440 Ucenses 

6460 Not for profit State repon 

64 70 Fi~ng Fees 

Total6400 Taxes & Licenses 

6600 Utilities 

661 o Electric 

6620 Heating 0.1 

6630 Internet TV Phone 

6640 Water & sewer 

6650 Security Monitoring 

Total 6600 Utilities 

6700 Other Home Expenses 

6710 Maintenance 

6720 Groceries 

6730 Entenainment 

6740 Drug Tests 

6750 Background checks 

6760 Resident Services 

Total 6700 Olher Home Expenses 

T ota1 Expenditures 

NET OPERATING REVENUE 

NET REVENUE 

S.tr ,.. H..,. • ~U.'I i-14t' 1 e 

Jan - Oct. 2018 

1,007.66 
2,846.89 

410.92 

149.00 

4,414.47 

12,228.99 

139,752.30 
575.00 

152,558.29 

7,086.27 

7,086.27 

1,234.00 

225.00 

14.00 

239.00 

3.696.45 

1,214.75 

1.406.63 

803.05 
2.958.90 

10,079.78 

1.803.13 

2,103.89 

179.90 

1,028.88 

334.00 
3,670.00 

9,119.80 

200,081.82 

30,851.79 

$30,851.79 

Total 

Jan- Oct, 2017 (PY) 

31.00 

1,094.00 

3,116.28 

4,210.28 

9,065.37 

106.886.39 
1,200.00 

117,151.76 

4,472.49 

4,472-49 

250.00 
230.00 

85.00 

565.00 

2,073.94 

35.57 

1.101 .93 

604.77 
497.00 

4,313.21 

4,599.64 
2,820.32 

79.90 

563.07 
200.00 

3,900.00 

12,162.93 

157,891.11 

-50,386.99 

$ -50,386.99 

- , = 
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Statement of Financial Position YTD 
It 'if:J!"!I 1r 

Total 

As of Oct 31, 2018 As of Oct 31, 2017 (PY) 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Bank Accounts 

1072 Bill.com Money Out Clearing 25.00 0.00 

1110 7 Day CD 0.00 16,064.49 

1120 E Savgs 0.00 -2.95 

1130 N Profit 20,517.73 16.539.12 

1140 St. Mary's Bank Cheoking 41,473.29 1.737.57 

1150 Paypal 1,311.20 96.80 

Total Bank Accounts 63,327.22 34,455.03 

AccounlS Receivable 

1210 Accounts Receivable (NRJ 32.830.00 14,746.00 

Total Acooun!s Receivable 32,830.00 14,746.00 

Other Current Assets 

1230 Due lrom Resident 521 .73 466.73 

Total Other Current AsselS 521.73 466.73 

Total Current Assets 96,678.95 49,669.76 

Fvced Assets 

1500 Manchester Home 

1520 Electrical work 1,500.00 1,500.00 

1530 F1re alarm system 17.002.00 14.294.60 

1540 Boier 30.080.94 21 ,660.94 

1550 Interior painting 967.00 967.00 

1560 Kitchen work 6,108.00 6.106.00 

1560 Serurity system 10,163.15 10,183.15 

1590 Furniture 792.19 792.19 

1592 Fire Suppression System 2,400.00 2.400.00 

1593 Windows 3.025.00 3,025.00 

1594 Roof 9.246.00 9,246.00 

Total1500 Manchester Home 81,306.28 70,199.08 

1610 Vehicles 15,735.17 15,735.17 

1700 Accumula19d Depreciation ·6.113.33 ·637.65 

Total Fixed Assets 88,928.12 85,296.60 

TOTAL ASSETS $165.607.07 $134,966.36 

LIABILITIES AND EOUITY 

Uabilities 

Current Liabilities 

AccounlS Payable 

2105 Accounts Payable 7.197.56 769.81 

Total Accounts Payable 7,197.56 769.81 

~ 15 



Credft Cards 
2110LSBMC 
T otaJ Credlt-::cards---c--

Oiher Current uablllllee 

2210 Federal Withholding 

2220 NH Unemployment Tax Payable 

_ --~It can! Clearing 
T otat Other Current Uabilltles 

Total CUnvnt liabilltlae 

T Dial Llablllle$ 

Equfty 
31 00 Unrestricted Net Assets 

3101 Board Designated Funds 

3200 Temporarily Reslricted Net Assets 

Net Revenue 
. - ----- ... _ -- ---- ·- -·-· 

Total Equfty __ ._ 

TOTAL UABIUTlES AND EQUITY 

Dismas Home ot Now Hampsttire 

Total 
-- ----· - -- ·- -- - - -- --

Asof0cl31 , 2018 

2,719.08 663.84 
- ---···--· 

2,719.08 663.84 

0.00 4,817.06 

109.68 104.20 

-2,719.08 0.00 
-

-2,609.40 4,921.26 

7/¥)7.26 6,354.91 -- -- - - - - --
7$}7.26 6,354.91 

130,143.58 134,588.54 

0.00 30,000.00 

17,304.44 14,400.90 

30,851.79 -50,386.99 

178,299.81 128,611.45 -- --
$185,607.07 $134,966.36 

9/15 



Statement of Cash Flows YTD 

OPERAHNG ACTIVIli~S 

NGI Rellerue 

AdjuslmeniS co t.concilc Net R8V9nue to Net Cash prO'IIid&d by oper.:tbons' 

1210 A<x:otiM$ Receivablt (AIR) 

1230Duefrom-

2105 AccounCs Pa~ 
2110LSBMC 
2210 Federal Wohhol!lng 

2220NH ~Tb Payallle 

Cte<i! cald CIMrirg 

TOilll AdjUSimonta 10 rec:oocllo Not RBvanuo 10 Net Cash provided by operations: 

NGI cash provided by opel8l!nq actlvl!los 

INVESfflG ACTIVITI(S 

1530- Home.->~~e olatm system 

NOI cash provided by lnvoslng IICIM1ies 

FINANCING ACl iVITIES 

3100UnrOSlricttdN8!AsseU 

3101- Oolognoled F...as 

3200 T ""'J)Jr>r>y Restricted No1 Assets 

Ntl cash provided by 6nanclng adMIIes 

NET CASH INC REA& FOR PERIOD 

Cosh., begiloq ol""""" 
CASH AT END OF PER.QD 

:·•·1a~ ! I dN• N'l! 

TDilll 

30,851.19 

.J2,830.00 

-55.00 
950.85 

1,267.81 

·6,369.41 
·287.22 

-2.719.08 

-40.042.05 
·9,190.26 

·1.626.50 

·1.626.50 

37,717,67 

.JO.OOO.OO 
·7.717.67 

0.00 
·10,816.76 

7• ,1U98 

$&3,327.22 



Temp Restricted Net Assets Ledger to Date 
All Da1e~ 

3200 T emporar1ly Restl1dlld Net Assets 

11130t2016 

12131/2016 

12131/2016 

01/31/2017 

0212812017 

03/31/2017 

0513112017 

061301201 7 

06/3012017 

0613012017 

07/31/2017 

07/31/2017 

08/3112017 

09/3012017 

10/31/2017 

11/3012017 

12131/2017 

12131/2017 

01/31/2018 

02/2812018 

03/3112018 

0413012018 

05131/2018 

06130/2018 

07/3112018 

07/31/2018 

08/3112018 

08/31/2018 

09/3012018 

Dismas Home of New Hampshire 

Adjust Temp Restricted Net Assets for Bean Grant 

Adjust Temp Restricted Net Assets for Bank of America 

Charitable Foundation Grant 

Adjust Temp Restricted Net Assets for Dobies Grant 

January 2017 releases from restridion 

February 2017 r!Meases from restriction 

March 2017 releases from restriction 

May 2017 releases from restriction 

Adjust Temp Restricted Net Assets for Grant Received 

June 20 I 7 releases from restriction 

Adjust Temp Restricted Net Assets for Grant Received 

Jtdy 2017 releases from restriction 

Adjust Temp Restricted Net Assets for Grant Received 

August 201 7 releases from restriction 

September 2017 releases from restriction 

October 201 7 releases from restriction 

November 2017 releases from restriction 

December 2017 releases from restriction 

Adjust Temp Restricted Net Assets for Grant Received 

January 2018 releases from restriction 

Februrary 2018 releases from restridion 

Ma/ch 2018 releases from restriction 

April2018 releases from restriction 

May 2018 releases from restriction 

June 2018 releases from restriction 

Adjust Telt1l Restricted Net Assets for Grant Received 

July 2018 releases from reslriction 

Adjust Temp Restricted Net Assets for Grant Received 

August 2018 releases from restriction 

Adjust Temp Restricted Net Assets for Grant Received 

Amount 

10,000.00 

5,000.00 

22,000.00 

-5,391.18 

-1,437.50 

-943.00 

-1,518.00 

2,500.00 

-1 ,150.00 

7,500.00 

-3,553.51 

3,500.00 

-629.86 

-12,268.64 

-9,198.41 

-7,552.62 

-6,835.17 

25,000.00 

-3,370.03 

-3,875.64 

-2,888.00 

-2,732.00 

-4,6n.oo 
-3,748.00 

3,809.00 

-3,906.00 

12,500.00 

-414.00 

5,000.00 
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Date 

09!J0/2018 

1013112018 

Memo/0811C11p11on 

September 2018 releases from restrldlon 

October 2018 releases from restriction 

Total for 3200 Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

TOTAL 

D1sm.as Home ot Now Harnpsh1re 

Amount 

-2,088.00 

-1,330.00 

$17,304.44 

$17,304.44 

12115 



YTD Budget to Actual 
Total 

Actual 8<Jdgot UNBOOgol ,., ol 8<Jdgot 

REVENUE 

41000onaion$ 18.281.14 65,000.00 13.281. t4 120.413% 

4150 Gtont 45.309.00 <0,000.00 6,309.00 115.n11. 

4210 lllv 1nccme 
4.91 4.91 

4220 Interest Inc 
10.62 33.36 -22.74 31.83% 

431001horlncorM 1,390.00 1,390.00 

4320 Golnsllosses on tra.-ng portfOlio ·20.79 ·20.79 

4410 Ruldent F- 2.665.00 2.666.64 ·1.64 99.94" 

4500Go.:i!iikl ... Fundng 

4520BOAS 11,055.00 50.000.00 -38.945.00 22.11 ... 

4530 MQdicaid Roimbursemencs 6,380.00 50,000.00 ..a.640.00 12.72 '11 

Tolll4500au...twiWitF~ 
17,415.00 100.000.00 -82,585.00 17.42% 

4510 Room & Boald ~n l<ind) 2.7611.24 2.333.36 435.88 118.68"' 

Total Rovenue 148,824.12 210,003.36 ~1,m.24 70.65% 

GROSS PROfiT 148,824.12 210.003.36 ~1,m.24 70.65% 

EXPENDilVRoS 
5100 Advertising 

51 10 Constant Co<uct 270.75 166.64 104.11 162.48% 

5130Wobsie0o19> 1,00000 1,666.64 -666.04 80.00% 

5150 Other Ad'iortising 50.00 ·50.00 

Total5100 Advet11$1ng 1,270.75 1.883.28 -e12.53 67.48"' 

5200 1VN> & T ramport 

52 tO Auto Insurance 308.98 3.000.00 ·2.691.112 10.30"' 

5240Gas& Fuel 15t , l l 533.3e -382.25 Zll.33 "' 

5250 Port<ing 1.00 6.64 ·5.64 15.06 '4 

5270 RogislrOioon 20620 250.00 -43.80 82.48% 

5280 SoMc8 & PartS 318.06 333.36 44.70 113.41% 

5290Tolls 
26.64 ·26.64 

Toiii5200/VJJD&T..._, 1,045.35 4,150.00 -3,104.65 2:5.19,., 



TOial - --
Aduol ~ -Budgot ~al~ 

5300 Duoo a. 5uiJocr1>Cions ~95 500-00 -69.05 86.18~ 

5400 F-& Charges 

5410~ 
83.36 -83.36 

5420 PayPal cc- 3UI8 333.36 -301AII 8.56~ 

5430Binkffts 237.58 100.00 137..58 237.58~ 

5440 Flte Alum Fee 30.00 400.00 -370.00 7.50 '1(, 

ro.il5400 ,..... a a.tges 298AII 818.72 -!117.28 32.87~ 

5800-
5610 01-a. Oftfco< llalllllty 500.00 -500.00 

5620.....,. 3.~.!3 1,666.&4 1,814.19 208.85% 

5630-. eo.q, 7.218.00 4,666..84 2.552.36 154.69% 

TcallliiOO- 10,81111.13 8,133.211 SMII-56 158.!18'1(, 

5700 Moal& & En-nmen1 100.00 · 100.00 

580001b .,__ 

5810 Ccmpulo< & --
762.72 833.36 ·70.&4 91.52'1(, 

5620 04fice ~ 2,448.60 2,666.&4 -220.04 91 .75% 

5830 PoolagG and Delivery_ 288.25 100.00 188.25 288.25% 

TaiOI 11800 Ofllco E>poo- 3,487.57 uoo.oo ·102A3 87.15'1(, 

5900F'IIyrol .,.,_ .......... _ 

5910 ~arTaxoo 10,150.41 11,666.&4 ·1,518.23 87.00% 

5920-&W- 115,507.08 145,666.&4 -30,159.58 79.30 '1(, 

5930 - Slfpeft(l 
7.200-00 -7.200.00 

5940 Trol'nlng 575.00 600.00 -25.00 95.&3 '1(, 

T01815800 PayroO end Cllli8r om~*¥~8- 126,232.47 188,133.28 -38,800.81 78..44'1(, 

6300 Prof end lAgol F-

6300Ac:counlanl 6.01127 14,000.00 ·7.988.73 42.94 '1(, 

TOIII8SOO Prof end l.oiiOI"- 6,01127 14,000.00 -7--73 42,54'1(, 

8321 Fund Raising events 1.234.00 1,234.00 

5400 r-& l.lcor.-

&410- Flepoit c.- 225.00 33.36 181.64 67U6'Jo 

&440LiconS8S 166.64 ·166.64 

O~I~Of,.._.tbtn~ 
141~ 



To<al 

Actual IUlgeC CNflt lludget %oflludgot 

6460 Not b prol11 Slate report 1 00 1.00 

TotalS.COO Taxes & Ucenses 232.00 200.00 32.00 118.00% 

6600 U1libos 
661 0 Eloaric 2.231 .42 1.666-64 564.78 133.89 % 

6620 H<talong 01 1,214.75 1,666.64 ..051.89 72.89% 

6630 lntomet TV Phone 1,088.18 800.00 288.18 136.02% 

66tO Wa:er & sewM 803.05 600.00 20305 133.84 % 

6650 Socw1Cy Monoorong 59.90 333.36 ·V3.46 17.87% 

Total 6600 Utilities 5.397.30 5.066.64 330.86 106.53% 

6700 Olher Homo ex,..,..,. 

6710 Mloncenance 1,374 95 1,666.64 ·291.69 82.50 % 

sno~es 
1,831 49 2,666.64 -835.15 68.118 % 

6730 Emertainment 63.92 63.36 · 19.44 76.88 % 

6140 Drug T OS1S 807.50 333.36 474.14 242.23% 

6750~-
309.00 233.36 75.64 132.41% 

6760 Residef>t Services 3,670.00 2,666.64 1,003.36 137.53% 

Total6700 Other Homo Expenses 8,056.88 7,650.00 408.86 105.32% 

T 0111 Expondllures 164,407.81 210.033.20 -45,625.39 78.28% 

'-ET OPERAII~G REVcNI 1lo · 15,583.69 0.16 ·15,583.85 -9.739-25% 

"El REVENUE 
$ ·15,563.69 $0.16 $ ·15,583.85 -9,739.~% 



IS MAS 
H O M E 

NAME: Paul Allen Young 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
March 11, 2019 

DATE OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP: June, 2015 

BOARD OFFICER: President 
PERSONAL ADDRESS: 

NAME: Elaine Rizzo 
DATE OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP: October, 2015 

BOARD OFFICER: Vice President 

PERSONAL ADDRESS: • 

NAME: John D. Wallace 
DATE OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP: November, 2014 
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NAME: Jodi Kelley Hoyt 
DATE OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP: May, 2016 
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PERSONAL ADDRESS: ; 

NAME: Anthony J. Coriaty 
DATE OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP: September, 2014 

PERSONAL ADDRESS: 

NAME: Annika Augusta Marie Stanley-Smith 

DATE OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP: January, 2018 

PERSONAL ADDRESS: 

NAME: Julie Ann McCarthy 
DATE OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP: October, 2017 

PERSONAL ADDRESS: 

NAME: Kennet h P. Brown 
DATE OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP: October, 2018 

PERSONAL ADDRESS: 

NAME: Christopher Young 
DATE OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP: October, 2018 

PERSONAL ADDRESS: 



IS MAS 
HOME 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

NAME: Sara Jane Lutat, MSW/MLADC 
DATE OF HIRE: May, 2016 
PERSONAL ADDRESS: 
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Sara J. Lutat 

Dedicated and caring Master Social Worker/special edu&aror, speciali:(jng in transilUm 

(trauma informed) 

EXPERIENCE 
Di.smtu Home ofN-Hampskin, Manchester, NH, Ex<cuter Director (May 2016 ro present) 

o Reguh.dy reports to the Executive Commiaees of the Board of Directors, as well as the Chairman of 

the Board 
o Fiscal management by operating within approved budget, mAXimizing resource ulilizatioo and 

maintaining a positive 6nancal position for the organi%atioo 

o Assisting with fundraising. as well as developing fuocliog streams, oe<:essuy to support DHNH via 

grants, request for proposals for stare and federal governments, and private donors 

o CollaborateS with Board of Directors Executive Committee to develop and malnrain sttategic plan for 

DHNH 
• Successful development and implementation of programs and activities identi6ed within the strategic 

planofDHNH 

o Development of operational policies/protocols for day-tcH!ay operations, residents, personnel and 

volunteers 
o Insure coromuniq· and govc:mment a"'-ueness of policies/ regulations/laws through extensive 

communications 

o Assisting established Evaluation team with developing objectives and measures tO monitor key 

performance indicarors tO assess how the objectives are being achieved, collecting relevant dots to 

support evaluation. and regularly and carrying out evaluations of the org21lization and residents in 

order to collect feedback and make adjustments as needed and necessary to meet the mission of 

DHNH 
o Aa a.s a spokesman for DHNH 

o Administers and provides evidence based clinical services being provided to the resident for their 

substance Use and co-occurring disorders, and trauma in one hour weekly sessions (or as needed) with 

residents 
o Ovenees rhe day- to -day operations. staff, interns and volunteers, of DHNH using effective 

administ.ratioo and supcrvisjoo best pnetices 

o Ensures govemmenr and grant funding are properl)' accounted for and maintained 

o Responsible for recruitment, employment and personnel management of all personnel both paid and 

volunteer 
o Develop and maintain strong ties within local community and develop evidence based best practices 

YWCA ofNtn• Hampshire, Crisis CenUr, lv1anchesrcr, NH, MSW Internship (August 2015 to present) 

Cynthia Day Fami{y Centn; K6ystotu1 Hall, Nasbw, NH,MSW lnrcm.ship (Augusr2014 to May, 2015) 

• Provide clinical support by facilitating groups and by providing individual support to clients who are at 

,,.rious stages of recovery process in a substance abuse, residential treaanent facility for women and 

their children 
o Researching upcioring. and creating approved, evidence-based, curriculums for recovery I relapse 

prevention for psycho-educational groups char support recovery 

• Provide individual, clinical support to clients in the communiry and assist clients with identifying, 

accessing and connecting to daily Jiving resources upon successful completion of program ar Keysmne 

Hall 



·-
• Provide ase mamgement support when needed to Case Managers of Keystone Hill 

• Experienced with using the NH WlTs system in cre.ting profiles. treaanent plans and loggillg 

encouoccr/progtess notes with client 

• Co-&cilitued and provided clinial support for Men's Relapse and Pteveotion group for men who are 

in various stages of change and acknowledgement of their abuse, addiction, or recovety 

Rlgionat Snvices and Education CmJu/Thc RSEC Academy, Amherst, NH (September 2005 to JWle 2016) 

• Tnmsitional Coordinator for The RSEC Academy, middle school up to high school and beyond 

• Post-secondary tranSition liaison for studentS and pa:ems 

• Focus on student mentoting and developing student pottntial and leadership 

• Developed and designed cun:iculum for post-secondary, tranSitional skills program aligned 

with national standards and Common Core 

• Coordinated and facilitate PATH (Pulling Altogether to Help) teams for at-risk high school 

studentS 
• Developed and facilitate Extended Learning Opportunities and Job Shadows for ca:eer 

explotation 
• Assist students with career, college, and job/voe2tiooal training explorations and participation 

• Coordinate vocational training opportunities and off sire placement in other educational 

settings 

• Cau Manag1r for The RSEC Academy, middle school up to high school 

• Case ~with IEP development and facilitation 

• Experience with wide variety of srudents with diagnosed learning disabilities 

• Slcilled in writing. data assessmrot and interpersonal communication 

• G~n11rr1l Sp.cial Educator Pn-K- 21 years 

• Uccnsed NH educator, Pre-K- 8; General Specilll Educator Pre-K- 21 years 

• Certified tS a Project Adventure experiential educator/facilitator 

El)UCATIO:N 

University of New Hampshire@ Manchester, NH 

Master of Social Work (MSW) May, 2016 

Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH 

Btchelor of Arts in Elemenwy Edua.rion (K-8) 

Cum Ll11dt, Mrmbtr of Alpbo SW.O LmtMa HMor Sont!J 

Becker Junior College, \Vorcesra, MA 

Associues in Legal Sccrearial Scienoe/Paralegal 

Mtlllbtr of Phi T!J<ta Kappa Ho11or S oei•!J 



Dismas Home New Hampshire 
Executive Director/Clinical Director 

Job Description 

Summary: Reporting to the Board of Directors, the Executive Director (ED) has overall 

strategic and operational responsibility for DHNH staff and programming, overseeing 

and providing substance use disorder services under an ASAM Level 3.1. facility related 

to services, programs, expansion, and execution of its mission. 

Responsibilities 

ClinlcaVCounseling for Substance Use Disorders/Co-occurring Mental Health 

Disorders: 

• Provide clinical support by facilitating groups and by providing individual 

counseling to residents (minimum of 1 hour each week) in recovery to meet 

ASAM 3.1 Level of Care, Low-Intensity Residential Alcohol and Drug 

Treatment/Re-entry Program for previously incarcerated women diagnosed with 

substance use disorders and co-occurring mental illnesses as they re-enter the 

community. 
• Research, update and create evidence-based practices, curriculums for psycho­

educational groups to support recovery and clinical practice. 

• Oversee case management practices by DHNH case managers and CRSWs 

• Meet the minimum required weekly hourly supervision (100 hours) by the state of 

New Hampshire for Licensed Independent Social Worker by 

licensed/credentialed supervisor, LiCSW, anticipated completion April, 2019. 

• Complete, review cases/notes, and hours to be billed to Medicaid for 90-Day 

Low, Intensity residential treatment and clinical hours per each resident. 

• Maintain accurate, complete and timely clinical records on each resident of 

DHNH in order meet the licensure requirements of NH Department of Health and 

Human Services, and Insurers. 
• Maintain and enter accurate case notes and SUD information about residents in 

NH WITS, data collection to meet the contract requirements of BOAS 

• Oversee the BOAS contract expectations, standards, and quality assurance3 

Leadership & Management: 

• Ensure ongoing programmatic excellence, rigorous program evaluation, and 

consistent quality of finance and administration, fundraising, communications, 

and systems; recommend timelines and resources needed to achieve the 

strategic goals. 
• Implement and oversee the DHNH Volunteer Program and other evidence-based 

practices adopted by the program. 
• Engage board members, alumni, partnering organizations, and funders. 

1 
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• Develop, maintain, and support a strong Board of Directors; serve as ex-officio of 
each committee; seek and build board involvement with strategic direction for 
day to day operations. 

• Lead, coach, develop, and retain DHNH's staffing team. 
• Ensure effective systems to track progress, and regularly evaluate program 

components, in efforts to measure sucoesses that can be effectively 
communicated to the board, funders, and other constituents. 

Fundraising & Communications: 

• Implement and oversee revenue generating and fund raising activities to support 
existing program operations and expansion efforts. 

• Deepen and refine all aspects of communications-from web presence to 
external relations with the goal of expanding DHNH and establishing credibility as 
a reentry and substance abuse provider of choice. 

• Leverage relationships and community partnerships to garner new opportunities. 

Planning: 

• Assist with design and complete the strategic business planning process for 
program expansion. 

• Build community partnerships, establishing relationships with the funders, and 
political and community leaders. 

• Be an external presence that publishes and communicates program results with 
an emphasis on the sucoesses of DHNH as a model for regional and national 
replication. 

Qualifications 

The ED will be thoroughly committed to DHNH's mission. Proven leadership, coaching, 
and relationship management experience. 

Specific requirements include: 

• Advanced degree, ideally an MSW, with at least 2 years of senior management 
experience 

• Unwavering commitment to quality programs and data-driven program evaluation 
• Extensive experience in Nonprofit Management with the ability to coach staff, 

manage, and develop high-performance teams, set and achieve strategic 
objectives, and manage a budget 

• Past sucoess working with a Board of Directors with the ability to cultivate 
existing board member relationships 

• Strong marketing, public relations, and fund raising experience with the ability to 
engage a wide range of stakeholders and cultures 

• Strong written and verbal communication skills; a persuasive and passionate 
communicator with excellent interpersonal and multidisciplinary project skills 

2 
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• Action-oriented, adaptable, and innovative approach to nonprofit strategic 

planning 
• Ability to work effectively in collaboration with diverse groups of people 

• Passion, idealism, integrity, positive attitude, mission-driven, and self-directed 

• Master Lice sed Alcohol and Drug Counselor(MLADC) NH License #1000 

Date 

3 



- II 

CAREER HIGHLIGHTS 

• Administrative: Budget development and management, contract response to NH Department of Corrections (NH DOC) and NH Department of Justice NH DOJ), Implementation and monitoring, staff deve.lopment and supervision (assistant director, LADC, case managers, drug screenings, etc.), reported mandated data, program development and implementation of contract. 
• Program Development: Designed, developed, implemented, monitored and evaluated a series of case management-based community programs. Program implementation included: assessment of clientele, case management, life skllls groups, aisis intervention (homelessness, mental health, substance use, etc.), court advocacy, referrals to appropriate services e.g. education, employment, housing, job training, etc. 
• case Management: Assessed clients for needs using nationally recognized assessment tools, determined eligibility for program, developed case plans with long and short-term goals including program graduation, oversaw implementation of case management, reviewed LADC assessment/ recommendations and implemented such. (A strong emphasis was focused on identifying mental health and substance use needs.) Trained, supervised and supported the program staff. Wor1<ed with female and male offenders through the NH DOC probation/parole district office. Monitored compliance with the programs. It Included clients that were re-entering the community from prison or as an alternative to incarceration as well as clients with misdemeanor offenses. Maintained a good working relationship with NH DOC. 
• Community Relations: Developed a strong effective network with courts (Superior and Circuit), defense counsel, prosecutors, NH Department of Justice, NH Department of Corrections, Hill.sborough County House of Corrections and community service providers. 

RECENT EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE 

2017 NH Office of the Public Defender 
Part-time/Obtaining admittance to treatment programs for clients 

2015 to 2017 Keystone Hall 
case Manager, New Hope Program (Part-time/Grant-funded through NH DOJ) 

2013 to 2014 Farnum Center 
Coordinator, FAST Program (Part-time/Start-up program) 

2012 to 2013 Keystone Hall 
Case Manager (Part-time/Grant-funded through NH DOJ) 

2008 to 2011 Hill.sborough County Attorney's Office 
Director, Hillsborough County Re-Entry Program (Grant-funded through NH DOJ) 

1995 to 2008 Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. 
Director, Hillsborough County Academy Programs (Funded through NH DOC) 



EDUCAnON 

1979-1982 

1962 

New Hampshire College 
B.S. Human Services (2 credits short) 
St. Columbkille High School 
Brighton, MA 02135 

Eleanor ( Ellie) C. Therrien 
Resume Continues 

BOARD AFFIUAnON 
~ Manchester Weed and Seed (US DOJ) Advisory Board 
~ Marital Mediator Certification Board - Appointment to State Board 
~ Nashua Children's Home -Chair of the Board 
~ New Hampshire Mediation Program 
);> YWCA Board of Directors (Na.shua) 
);> New Hampshire Mediators Association -Chair of the Board 
~ State of New Hampshire Re-Entry Steering Committee 
);> New Hampshire Adults and Children with Learning Disabilities Board 

COMMUNITY INVOVLEMENT 

~ State of New Hampshire- Special Education Mediator (5 years) );> New Hampshire Mediation Program - Marital Mediation/Volunteer (20 years) > Nashua Mediators Program - Marital Mediation/Volunteer (8 years) );> Nashua Mediation Program-- Parent/Child Mediation/Volunteer (5 years) 

REFERENCES 
Provided upon request 



. -
Karin Powers 

I have a degree in Crop and Soil Science, a Montessori upper elementary teaching diploma, and a 
profound Interest in the world around me. I am passionate about learning, and I love to share what 
I have learned with others. In the past I have wor1ced as a Home Health Aide, as a security officer, 
and as a residential counselor In a homeless shelter. Having grown up in challenging circumstances. 
I find that I am most fulfilled when I have meaningful work teaching people of any age or supporting 
those who are in crisis. I have just moved to downtown Manchester to complete my studies at a holistic 
massage therapy school In the area. I would love to find part·tlme, preferably long term, work that 
matters. 
Authorized to wor1c in the US for any employer. 

Work Experience 

Householder 
Plowshare Farm • Greenfield, NH 
April 2017 to june 2018 

I co-managed a household of 12 at a farm-based intentional community devoted to working and life­
sharing with developmentally challenged Individuals. 1 shared responsibility for maintaining the house 
and the grounds as well as the personal, medical, and social needs of the residents in my household. I 
led a workshop which prepared lunch for the entire community. as well as a workshop which produced 
baked goods (for purchase as well as for community consumption). I was also responsible for assisting 
in the planning and production of common celebratory festivals and ceremonies. 

Householder 
Lukas Community • Temple, NH 
August 2015 to April 2017 

I was an assistant householder In a home of 12 Individuals at an intentional community devoted 
to working alongside and life-sharing with people with special needs. I shared responsibility for 
maintaining the house and the grounds as well as the personal. medical, and social needs of the 
residents in my household. In addition to cooking for my household on a regular basis, I also prepared 
food for groups of 50+ people for celebratory festivals and public functions. I led wor1cshops in speech 
and dramatic arts, reading. and baking. I assisted in workshops in Eurythmy. (a performance art which 
seeks to make music and speech "visible" through gesture and dance) exercise therapy, gardening, 
and puppetry. 

Overnight counselor 
Athens Area Homeless Shelter • Athens. GA 
june 2003 to August 2004 

I welcomed people who were in need in shelter into the facility. helped them get integrated, and did all 
associated record keeping. If an intake could not happen at our facility, I attempted to make alternative 



referrals. I monitored the premises. administered medication as needed. performed safety checks, and assisted in maintaining cleanliness of the building. 

Security Officer 
University of Georgia - Athens. GA 
August 2002 to September 2003 

Education 

LMT in Massage Therapy 
Northeast Institute for Whole Health - Manchester. NH 
September 2015 to August 2019 

Upper Elementary Diploma in General Education 
North American Montessori Center 
March 2012 to August 2013 

BS In Agriculture- Crop and Soil Science 
University of Georgia - Athens. GA 
1998 to 2002 

Skills 

Dramatic arts; gardening and agriculture; large scale food preparation (and extensive awareness of nutrition, food sensitivities, and dietary restrictions); K-12 studies; yoga and physical fitness; Spanish language; child care; animal care 

Certifications/Licenses 

Court Appointed Special Advocate (guardian ad litem) August 2003 
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COLLEEN L HAYWARD 

To be a direct care provider 

APRIL2015 TO CURRENT 
CARE GIVER HOME HEALTH AIDE/ , Visting Angels of Auburn NH 
care Giving of the Elderly specializing in Alzheimer's, Dementia & Hospice Care. Care giver of the month, recognized for saving someone's life for multiple people 
NOVEMBER 2015 TO NOVEMBER 2017 
HOME CARE ASISTANCE ,HOME CARE ASSISTANCE of Bedford, NH 
1 on 1 homecare for elderly specializing in dementia & hospice care 
JUNE 1983 TO MAY 1985 
CERTIFICATE IN DENTAL ASSISTING/OFFICE MANAGEMENT, North Shore 
Community College Lynn Massachussetts 

SEPTEMBER 1980 TO JUNE 1983 
HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA , Lynn English High Lynn Massachussetts 

• Parent advocate/state of NH • After school teacher for at risk students 
• Nami NH support group leader • Relias certified training 

• 1" aid and CPR training 
Parent of special needs child, NAMI NH volunteer, MICAH Award recipient 2016, Blessed Sacrament Food Pantry Manager for 5 years, The Volunteer NH Award Winner for making a difference in child's life. 

1 



jessica Mckenzie 

Work Experience 

Direct support provider/case worker 
Provided cousellng for kids In the foster system with severe trauma due to parents with active 

addictions 
ll'ansport clients and supervised visitalons 

Coordinated school enrollment and afterschool activities 

Administered medications and properly logged It 

I was lead supervisor and trained new staff 

Entered hourly logs for clients to aid In final discharge decisions 

lncharge of weekly meal prep, budget and shopping 

As a case worl<er, I help kids who grew up in institutions become productive members of society 

I aided in writing resumes and securing a job 

ll'ansportlng clients to job Interviews and appointments 

Helped meet short and long term goals made by their therapists 

Education 

General 

Skills 

Direct Care, Social Worl<, Social Service 

Military Service 

Branch: US military 
Service Country: United States 

Rank: E3 
November 2008 to November 2012 

Certifications/Licenses 

First Aid CPR AED 

Medication Administration 



-

NAPPI Certified 



OON.Nj ~M. BRYAN1~ 

Executive Assistant 
SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 
• A highly organized and detail-oriented Executive Assistant with over 20 years' experience providing thorough and skillful administrative support to senior executives. 
• Dedicated and focused; able to prioritize and complete multiple tasks and follow through to achieve project goals. • An independent and self-motivated professional with excellent research skills; able to grow positive relationships with clients and colleagues at all organizational levels. 
• Computer skills include: Gmail, Outlook, MS Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Internet, and customized applications. 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
INNOVAIRRE COMMUNICATIONS, LLC, Wilton, NH 
Executive Assistant to the Sr. Executive Management Team 2005- Present • Coordinate and set up high-level conference calls, board and management meetings, special events and end to end travel arrangements/itinerary's for top executives 
• Organize and assimilate documents for company's Board of Trustees • Manage multiple calendar's for executives 
• Management of State Fund raising Counsel registrations I Trademark activities and all Corporate contracts • Recruit new employee's I on-boarding and miscellaneous human resource functions • Oversee corporate travel & expense program and AMEX card program • Obtain Visas and required documents for International travel 

HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL, Saugus, MA 2003-2005 Executive Assistant to the President and General Manager- National Energy Solutions • Maintained extremely complex schedule and daily appointment calendar utilizing Outlook • Coordinated international and domestic travel, reconcile expense reports • Attended meetings/conference calls on behalf of or in conjunction with the President • Coordinated all aspects of company team meetings- hotel selection/negotiation, travel, etc. • Prepared routine and advanced correspondence including letters, memoranda and reports 
TECNOMATIX TECHNOLOGIES, Nashua, NH 2001-2003 Executive Assistant to the Executive Vice President of World Wide Sales and Executive Vice President of Corporate Ma!Keting 
• Supported all sales efforts which included international sales teams, generated sales tools and collateral, delegated sales leads to the appropriate sales manager, and coordinated quarterly sales meetings • Created and executed direct mail campaign for pre- and post-tradeshow mailings, trade publication memberships lists and sales and customer leads 
• Worked closely with public relations firm to generate editorial and speaking opportunities, press release schedule and overall PR plan to grow industry visibility. 

REFERENCES AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST 



.OONN~ ft .,3RYANT 
~ 

ELLACOYA NETWORKS, Merrimack, NH 2000- 2001 
Executive Assistant to Vice President of Worldwide Sales and administrative support to 10 Sales Offices 
• Assisted executives by relieving them of complex details and advanced administrative duties 
• Independently investigated assigned problems determining method of research, data requirements 

as well as analysis techniques. Prepared reports and recommendations for action by superior 
• Consolidated department reports taking input from Executive VP Sales' direct reports 
• Made high level contacts of a complex and confidential nature both internally and externally 
• Managed complex schedules and daily appointment calendars: coordinated travel and lodging 

arrangements as required 
• Assisted the executives in preparing for all aspects of Board of Directors, Committee Meeting, 

Sales Department meetings and the hosting of company guests 

CISCO SYSTEMS, Chelmsford, MA 1996 - 2000 
Executive Assistant to Vice President of Worldwide Sales and administrative support to 11 Sales Offices 
• Managed Vice President's daily schedule 
• Assisted the Executive Team members with special projects 
• Managed all aspects of multiple off-site Sales meetings and President's Club meetings 
• Compiled weekly forecast reports 
• Managed day-to-day office correspondence and acted as a liaison between headquarters and all Sales Offices 
• Extensive telephone contact with existing and potential customers 
• Maintained filing systems, records, logs and customer database 

TEXTRON AUTOMOTIVE FUNCTIONAL COMPONENTS, INC., Manchester, NH 1994 -1996 
Executive Assistant to the Sr. Executive Management Team 
• Managed all aspects of multiple off-site training and business related conferences 
• Prepared presentations, functions and travel arrangements for vendors, suppliers and employees from across 

tha United States 
• Negotiated, implemented and managed Safety Eye Glass Program, Safety Shoe Program and Educational 

Reimbursement Program 
• Created and managed an international and domestic travel program for all McCord Wtnn Textron employees 
• Managed extensive supplier Request for Quotation System and worked as liaison with multiple suppliers on 

timing, follow-up and technical issues 

RAYTHEON COMPANY, Andover, MA 1987-1994 
Executive Assistant to the Manager of the Smart Munitions/Missile System's Division 
Advanced from Manchester's Smart Munitions Laboratory to Andover's Patriot Multimode Program Office holding a 
Department of Defense Secret Clearance and Special Access Clearance. 
• Established administrative procedures for the secretarial staff supporting over 115 engineers 
• Successfully coordinated work flow and communications in Manchester for the Laboratory Manager, Technical 

Director and DepartmenVSection Managers 
• Skillfully prepared technical reports and presentations material during proposal efforts which led to winning multi­

million dollar contracts 
• Supervised secretarial support within our organization 

REFERENCES AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST 



CONTRACTOR NAME 

Kev Personnel 

The Salary chart is for 17 months, estimated to be the length of the contract. 

Name Job Title Salary %Paid from Amount Paid rrom 
this Contract this Contract 

Sara Lutat Executive Director/Clinical $99,166.67 0% $ 00.00 
Director/MLADC (full time) 

Jessica Mackenzie PITProgmm $35,700.00 21.55% $ 7,692.50 
Coordinator/CRSW under 
Supervision (35/hours/week) 

Colleen Hayward PIT Program $35,700.00 21.55% $ 7,692.50 
Assistant!CRSW under 
supervision (35 hours/week) 

Karin Powers PIT Program $30,600.00 0% $ 00.00 
Assistant/CRSW under 
supervision (30 hours/week) 

Eleanor Therrien PIT Program assistant (18 $ 14,688.00 0% $ 00.00 
hours/week) 

Donna Bryant Pf r Program assistant (8 $ 6,528.00 0% $ 00.00 
hours/week) 

Total Contract Budget Allows for $15,385.00 for 17 months 
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version51811S) 

Subject: RfA-2QI2-BDAS-Q2-RECOV-02JRecovm Housinc Cor Individuals with OUD 

~: This agn:ement and all of its atlaehments shall become public upon submi55i01l to Governor and 
Executive Council for approval. Any infonnatiOil thll is private, COilfldcntial or prnprietary miiSI 
be clearly identified to the aseney and qreed to in writing prior to signing the conlnl<:t. 

AGREEMENT 
The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows: 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

. IDENTIFICATION 
1.1 State Aaency Name 1.2 State Agency Address 
NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street 

Concord, NH 03301-3857 

1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address 
miNHNli,Inc. 122 Markets~ 

Manchester, NH 0310 I 

I .S Contrador Phone 1.6 Accotlnt Number 1.7 Completion Oa~ 1.8 Prict Umilalion 
Number S<pl<mbcr 29, 2020 .~ 

603-641-9441 OS-095-092-9205 l 0-7040- September-~ 6. '!)I, I $195,195 
0000-102-50073 I 

1.9 Contract ina Offic:er for SIBle Agency 1.10 State AgencyTelephGne Number 
Nathan 0. White, Director 603-271-9631 
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement 

~~tu~0J 
1.12 Name and Title ofContn~etor Sia_natory 

Maureen Beauregard, President 

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of New Hamp•hir'l County of Hillsborough 

On Merd'l15, 2019 , bcfone the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfiiCtorily 
proven to be the person whose name i5 signed in block 1.1 I, and IICknowlcdJ:ed that slhe executed this document in the capacity 
indicated in block 1.12. 
1.13.1 Sipalurc of Notary Public oduslice of the Peace 

Rlmf A. SYREK. Notary Nile 

rs .. Q/~JM~ JqConatl I t&pnea.,t t.tblt 5, 2023 

1.13.2 Name and Title ofNotary4Sr Justice of the Peace 

Ruth Syret<, Admin. Assl, NotaJy Public 

1.14 State Aaency Signature 

Dat!f/~"'~}19 
1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Slanatory 

')c~h~ JL ..... ~~ . ._ s. Hv·o:/.o . .s... ... 
1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department or Administration, Division ofPersonnel'{ifapplicable) • 

By: Din::c:tor, On: 

1.17 Ap~Aitomcy Gcncnl (Form, Substance and Execution) {ifappliC<Jble) 

By: "'- -?/J £2 , J On: C/dlf/At?7 
/." // . 

1.18 Approvil by the'Governor and Executive Council (if appllcoblc) 

By: On: 

Page I of4 



FORM NUMBER P-37 (,•erslon 5/8/15) 

Subject: RFA-2019-BDAS.Q2-RECOV.Q2JReg"ery Housing for Individuals with OI!P 

~: This agreement and all of its attaclunents shall become public upon submission to Governor and 

Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must 

be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract. 

ACilF.EMENT 

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows: 

GENERAl. PROVISIONS 

IDENTIFICATION 
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address 

NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Plea<ant Street 
Concord. Nil 03301-3857 

1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address 

HTINHNH, In<:. 122 Market S!teet 
Manchester. NH 03101 

I .S Contractor Phone I .6 Account Number 1.7 Comple.tion Date 1.8 Price Limitation 

Number 
603·641 -9441 05-095.Q92-920510-7040c September 30, 2020 Sl95,195 

0000·1 02-500731 

I .9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number 

Nathan D. White, Director 603-271-9631 

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement 

~-~ 1::c~o~S~~:tu~~ ~ J 
l. I 2 Name and Title of Contr•ctor Signatory 

Maureen Beauregard, President 

I. I 3 Acknowledgement: State of New Hampshir~ County of Htllsborough 

On March 15, 2019 , before the undersigned officer, pcn.onally appeared the pcn.on identified in block 1. 12, or satisfactorily 

proven to he the person who.e name is <igncd in block 1.11, and ackno"'ledaed that slbe executed this document in the capacity 

indicated in block 1.12. 
1.13.1 SignaiUre ofNotary Public or Justice of t he Peace 

Rll11i A. SYREK. Notary Public 

rs .. ,a/~ ko ~ MrCon••"""••ExphJIIII:III 1lbll 5,2023 

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary tlr Justice of the Peace 

Ruth Syret< Admin. Asst., Notary Publoc 

1.14 Stale Agency Signature 

Dat;t/~q}i9 
1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory 

') C: ~ ~ ;::;:_ - s. ,.- 'l:x j.::.._.\,-\ .~ ~ v l /.,, 1-."\ -

1.16 ApproYBI by the N.H. Depanment of Admini'<ll'lllion, Divi<ion ofPersonntV(ifupplicable) I 

Uy: Director, On: 

1.17 App~Attomcy Gcnen~l (Form, Substance and lixecurion) (ifupplicabl~) 

By: /v ~//28-- ~ On CidCf/ 7fJ/7 
1.18 Approval by thcfGo,ernor and Executi'" Council (if applicable) 

By: On: 

Page I of 4 



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO 

6E PERFORMED. The State of New Hamp.ttire, acting 

through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages 

contmctor identified in block 1.3 ("Contmctor") to pcrfom1, 

and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or 

both, identified and more particularly described in the attached 

EXHIDIT A which is incmporated herein by reference 
("Services"). 

3. EF."ECTIVE DATFl COM I'I.ETION OF SERVI CES. 

3.1 Noh•ithstaoding any prmision of this Agreement to the 

contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and 

Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if 
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties 

hereunder, shall become effcelive on the date the Governor 

and Executive Council appro•·c tho~ Agreement as indicated on 

block 1.18, unle&• no such approval is required, in which case 

the Agn:cmcnt shall become effective on the dale the 
Agreement is si1,oned by the State Agency as shown in block 

1.14 ("Effective Date"). 
3.2 If the Contractor commence> the Servic~ prior to the 

Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior 

to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the 

Contractor, and in 1he cvenllhatthis Agreement does not 

become effective, the State shall have no liabilily to the 

Contractor, including .. itiiOullimitation, any obligation 10 pay 

the Contraclor for any costs incurred or Services performed. 

Con1rac1or must complete all Services by the Completion Date 

specified in block 1.7. 

4. CONDITIONAl , NATURF. O F AGREEMENT. 

Notwilhstanding any provision of this Agreement to 1he 

conlmry, all obliga1ions of the State hereunder, including, 

wilhollllimitation, lhe continuance of paymen1s hereunder, are 

con1ingent upon the availability and con1inued appropriation 

of funds. and in no event shall I he Slate be liable for any 

payment• hereunder in excess of such available appropriated 

funds. In the event of a reduction or t.ennination of 
appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold 

paymenl u01il such funds become available, if c,cr, and shall 

have the right to terminate !his Agreement immcdia1dy upon 

giving I he ContrdctOI' notice of such terminati()n. The State 

shall not be required to tr-.msfer funds !Tom any other accoum 

to 1he Accouot identified in block 1.6 in !be even! funds in thai 

Accounl arc reduced or unavailable. 

5. CONTRACT I' IUCEfPRICE UMITATION/ 

PAYJifEI"T. 
5.1 The contract price. method of payment, and lcrms of 

payment are idcnti fied and more particularly dc~ribed in 

EXHIRIT B which is incorpormed herein by reference. 

5.2 The payment by the State of the comract price shall he the 

only and lhe complete reimbursement 10 1he Contractor for all 

expen-.,., of wba1evcr nature incurred by the Contractor in the 

performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete 

compcn:.ation to the Contrac1or for the Services. The Stale 

shall have no liabilily 10 the Conlractor other than the con1rac1 

price. 

5.3 The S1a1e rc.-.crves the right to offset from any amounts 

otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agrecmelll 

1hose liquidated amounts required or permined by N.H. RSA 

80:7through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law. 

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in tlus Agreement to the 

contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in 

110 cvall sballthe total of all payments au1horized, or actually 

made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation,.;~ forth in block 

1.8. 

6. CO;\lPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS 

AND REGULA TIOi"S/ EQUAL EMPLOYl\IF.JioT 

OPPOR'fUNTTY. 
6.1 In coomection with the perfonnancc of the Services, the 

Contractor shall comply wi1h all >1alutes, laws, regulations. 

and orders of fedcml. state, counly or municipal authori1ies 

which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contrac1or, 

including, hut not limited to, civil rights and equal opponunity 

laws. Tlus may include the rcquiremcnltO uti lize auxiliary 

aid~ and services to ensure that persons with communication 
disabilities. including vision, hearing and speech. can 

communicate with, receive information from, and convey 

information to lhc Contraclor. In addi1ion, the Contractor 

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws. 
6.2 During 1he term of this Agrccmenl, the ContraciOr shall 

not discriminate against employees or applicams for 
employment because of race, color, religion, creed~ age, sex, 

handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take 

affirmative action to prevent sucb discrimination. 
63 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the 

United State>, I he Contractor shall comply woth all the 
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal 

Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the 
regulations of 1hc United Slates Department of Labor (41 

C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regula1ions and guidelioes 

as the State of New Hampshire or the Uni1ed States issue1o 

implememlhcsc rcgula1ions. The Contractor further agrees to 

pernut the State or United States access 10 any of the 
C.ontrac1or's books, records and accounts for the purpo<e of 

a-.ccrtaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders. 

and the covenant~, tC11IIS and conditions ofthi1oo Agreement. 

7. l't:RSONNI!:L. 
7 .I The Contractor shall at it< own expeno;c provide all 

personnel necessary 1o perform the Services. The Contractor 

warrants thai all personnel engaged in the Services shall be 

quali ficd to perform the Services, and shall be properly 

liccn!>ed and otherwise authoriled to do so under all applicable 

la\\S. 
7.2 Unless Olh<TWl>C authorized 1n writing, during the term of 

thi< Agrccmenl, nnd for a period of six (6) months after 1hc 

Completion Date in block L.7, 1he Contr-•ctor shall not hire, 

and •hall oo1 permit any subcontractor or olhcr person, finn or 

corporation \\ith whmn it is engaged in a combined efT on to 

perfonn the Services 10 hire, any person who is a State 

employee or oflicial, who is materially invol vcd in the 

procurement, admi ni~"tration or performance of this 
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~ment. This provision shall suni\e termination of this 

Agreement. 
7.3 The Contracting Omeer •pedfied in block 1 .9, or his or 

her successor. shall be the State's representative. In the event 

of any dispute cooccming the interpretation of this Agreement, 

the Contracting Omcer's decision shall be final for the State. 

8. EVt:NT OF OEFAULTIRF.MEDIES. 

8.1 Any one or more of the lbllowing act• or omissions of the 

Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder 

("Event of Default"); 
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfuctorily or on 

schedule; 
8.1 .2 failure to submit any repolt rcqui1·ed hercunde1·; and/or 

8.1.3 failure to perform any other co'·enan~ term or condition 

of this Agreement. 
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event or Defaul~ the State 

may take any one. or more, or all, of the following actions: 

8.2.1 give the Contractor a \llrittcn notice specifying the Evem 

of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the 

absence ora greater or lesser ~pccification of time, thirty (30) 

days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is 

not timely remedied, terminate this Agreemcn~ effecth·e two 

(2) days after giving tbe Contractor notice of termination: 

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event 

of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this 

Agreement and ordering that the portion oftlte contract price 

which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor dunng the 

period from the date of such notice until such time as the State 

determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default 

shall never be paid to the Contractor; 
8.2.3 >Ct off against any other obligation< the State may o\\e to 

the Contmctor any damages the State suffers by rc"-''n of any 

Event of Default; and/or 
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its 

remedies at law or in equity, or bolb. 

9. I)ATA/ACCI!!SS/CONFlVENT1ALITY/ 

PRESt:RVA TION. 
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all 

information and things developed or obtained during the 

performance of, or acquired or developed by re-<l.<>On of, this 

Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studic.<, reports, 

file<, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound r<:COrdulgS. video 

recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analy...,;,. 

graphic representations, computer programs, computer 

printouts, notes, letlers, memoranda, papers, and documents, 

all whether fini<lted or unlini<hcci 
9.2 All data and any property which ha; been recci\ed from 

the Stale or purcha>ed with funds provided for that purpose 

under this Agree men~ shall be the property of the State, and 

shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon 

termination ofthi• Agreement for any neason. 
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be goveroed by N.H. RSA 

chapter 91-A or other existi11g law. Disclosure of data 

requires prior written approval of the State. 

10. TERMJNATION. In the event of an early termination of 

this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the 

Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting 

Omccr, not later than fifteen {IS) days after the date of 

termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in 

detail all Services performed, and the contmct price earned, to 

and including the date of termination. The tbrrn, subject 

matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination 

Report shall be ideoticalto those of any Final Report 

described in the attached EXHIBIT A. 

11. CONTRACrOR'S RE1.ATJON TO TH£ ST ATE. In 

the performance of this Agrecmemthc Contractor is in all 

respects an independc.nt contractor, and is neither an agent nor 

an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of iL• 

officcn., employees, agent• or membc"' shall ha\•e authority to 

bind the State or receive any benefits, wortcrs' compensation 

or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. 

12. ASSIGNM£NT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS. 

The Contractor shall not as;, go. or otherwise transfer any 

imercst in rhis Agreement without lhe prior wrinen notice and 

consent of the State. None of the Services shall he 

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written 

notice and consent of the State. 

13. INDEMNJF1CA TJON. The Contractor shall defend, 

indemnify and hold harml""s the State, its officers and 

employees, from and again<t any and all losses suffered by the 

State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, 

liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its otliccrs 

and ctnployccs, by or on behalf of any person, on account of, 

based or result in& trom, arising out of(or which may be 

claimed to arise out of) the acts or omi<>ions of the 

Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein 

contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the 

SO\trcign immunity of the State, which immunity is bereby 

resc" ed to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 •hall 

survive the termination of this Agreement. 

14. INSURA:'\Ct:. 
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and 

maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or 

assignee to obu1in and maintain in force, the following 
iru..urance: 
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability ill>urance against all 

claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts 

of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000 

aggregate ; and 
14.1.2 special cau.c: oflos.<coverage fonn covering all 

property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not 

less than 80% of the whole I'Cplaccment value oft he property. 

14.2 The polici"" described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall 

be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the 

State of New Hampshire by the NJl. Department of 

Jnsumnce, and issued by insurers licensed in the Stnte of New 

Hampshire. 
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the: Contracting Officer 

identified in block 1.9, or his or her succcs.wr, a ccrtificate(s) 

of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. 

Conuacror shall also fumi<h to the Contracting Officer 

identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtificate(s) of 

insurance for all renewal<-) of insurance required under this 

Agreement no Inter than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration 

date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of 

in.,uraoce and any renewals thereof shall he: auached and are 

incorporated hc:rcin by reference. Each cenificatc(>) of 

i m~urance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to 

provide the Contmcting Officer identified in block 1.9, or hi< 

or her succe.<.<;or. oo les.< than thirty (30) days prior "Tillcn 

notice of cancellation or modification of the: policy. 

IS. WORKERS' COM PENSATION. 
IS. I By signing this agreement. the Contractor agree;.. 

certifies and warrants that the: Contractor is in compliance with 

or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A 

( .. Workers· Compe11.mtiun .. ). 

15.1 To the e•tcnt tbe Contr•ctor is subject to the 
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contmctor shall 

maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure 

and maintain. pnyment of Workers' Compensation in 

connection "ith activities which the peroon proposes to 

undertake pur>uant to thi> Agreement. Cootractor >hall 

furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his 

or her successor, proof of Wo1·kers' Compensation in the 

manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any 

applicable rcnewal(s) thereof. which >hall be attached and an: 

incorporated herein by reference. 'file State shall not be 

responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation 

premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or 

any subcontractor or emplo)ee of Contractor, which might 

arise under applicable State of New llampshirc Workers' 

Compensation laws in connection with the perfonnance oft he 

Services under this Agreement. 

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to 

enforce any provisions hereof afier any Event of Default shall 

be deemed a wniver of its ri&hts with regard to thai t.:vent of 

Default. or any >ubsequent E'eot of Default. No e•prcss 

failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a 

waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the 

provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default 

on the: pan of the Contractor. 

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party 

shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the 

rime of mailing by eertified mail, postage prepaid, in a United 

Stat'"' Pn>t Office addn:s>ed to the parties at the addn:sses 

given in bloch 1.2 and 1.4, herein. 

18. AMEND-'IENT. This Agreement maybe amended. 

waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing sigJted 

by the: parties hereto and only after approval of such 

amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and 

Executive Council oftbe State of New Hampshire unless no 

such approval IS required under the cin:umstancd pursuant to 

State law, rule or policy. 

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AG REEM ENT AND TERMS. 

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance witb the 

law' of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and 

inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective 

successors and a."'~igns. The wording used in this Agreement 

is the wording chosen by the parties to e•prcss their mutual 

intem, and oo rule of con.structioo shall be applied against or 

in favor of any party. 

20. THIRD I'ARTlES. The parties hereto do not intend lo 

benefit any third panics and this Agreement shall not be 

construed to conrcr any such benefit. 

21. llEADINCS. The headings throughout the Agreement 

are for reference: purposes only, and the: \\Ords contained 

therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or 

aid in the inteq>rctation, COilStruction or meaning of the 
provi~ions of this Agreement. 

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provi•ions set 

forth in the attached EXHU31T Care incorporated herein by 

reference. 

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any oftbe provi>ions of 

this Agreement are held by n court of competent jurisdiction to 

be contrary to any stale or federal law, the rcmainina 
pro' tsions oftlus Agreement will remain in full force and 

effect. 

24. RNTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may 

be executed in a number of counterpartS. each of which shall 

be deemed an original, COtlStitutcs the entire Agreement and 

understanding between the parties, aud supersedes all prior 

Agreements and unden.1andings relating hereto. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Recovery Housing for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services 

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance 

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure 

meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of 

the contract effective date. 

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New 

Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact 

on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify 

Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to 

achieve compliance therewith. 

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no 

services shall continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be 

liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and 

until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state 

legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 biennia. 

1.4. The Contractor shall provide one (1) Recovery Residence to serve females only 

with Opiold Use Disorder (OUD) who are in need of housing in a supported, 

safe, recovery housing environment in compliance with the appropriate 

National Alliance for Recovery Residences (NARR) standard. 

2. Scope of Services 

2.1. The Contractor shall provide a physical recovery housing facility to include, but 

is not limited to: 

2.1.1. Assistance to individuals to transition to independent living. 

2.1.2. Safe, stable and sober environment. 

2.1.3. Meeting state and/or local occupancy requirements. 

2.2. The Contractor shall meet the needs of applicants/residents reqUinng 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accommodations. Additionally, the 

Contractor shall: 

2.2.1. Provide documentation and maintain the property is in compliance 

with local health and safety codes. 

2.2.2. Ensure the residence meets all Life and Safety codes, as required. 

2.2.3. Ensure that all house managers and/or staff are trained to deliver 

Naloxone in the case of an overdose. 

2.2.4. Meet all information security and privacy requirements as set by the 

Department. 

FIT/NHNH 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Recovery Housing for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder 
Exhibit A 

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure Naloxone is available and accessible in the 

residence. 

2.4. Organizational/Administrative Standards 

2.4.1. The Contractor shall be a legal business entity. 

2.4.2. The Contractor shall have a written mission and vision statement. 

2.4.3. The Contractor shall have a written code of ethics for the Recovery 

Residence. 

2.4.4. The Contractor shall carry general liability insurance. 

2.4.5. The Contractor shall comply with state and federal requirements. If 

required, documents such as licenses and certificates of occupancy 

must be visible for public view. 

2.4.6. The Contractor shall clearly identify the responsible person(s) 

responsible for the Recovery Residence to all residents. 

2.4.7. The Contractor shall provide a minimum qualifications, duties and 

responsibilities for the responsible person(s) of the residence. This 

information must be present in a job description and/or contract. 

2.4.8. The Contractor shall ensure the living environment is free from drugs 

and alcohol. 

2.4.9. The Contractor shall establish procedures for continuous quality 

improvement to include, but is not limited to: 

2.4.9.1 . Collect, evaluate and report accurate process. 

2.4.9.2. Collect, evaluate and report outcomes data. 

2.4.10. The Contractor shall provide proof of written permission to operate a 

Recovery Residence on the property from the land owner/landlord, if 

applicable. 

2.5. Fiscal Management Standards 

2.5.1. The Contractor shall keep accurate records and must have the ability 

to provide residents with statements upon request. The records 

and/or statements shall include, but are not limited to: 

2.5.1.1. Complete records of charges. 

2.5.1.2. Payments. 

2.5.1.3. Deposits. 

2.6. Operation Standards 

FITINHNH 

2.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure emergency procedures along with staff 

numbers are posted in a conspicuous location. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Recovery Housing for Individuals with Oploid Use Disorder 
Exhibit A 

2.7. Recovery Support Standards 

FIT/NHNH 

2.7.1. The Contractor shall maintain a staffing plan. 

2.7.2. The Contractor shall ensure an applicant screening process that will 

maintain a safe and supportive environment for specific groups of 

individuals in recovery. 

2. 7 .3. The Contractor shall ensure confidentiality laws are adhered to. 

2.7.4. The Contractor shall keep resident's records secure from 

unauthorized access. 

2.7.5. The Contractor shall establish and administer a grievance policy and 

procedure. 

2.7.6. The Contractor shall provide a safe, structured and recovery 

supportive environment through established and written residents' 

rights and requirements. 

2.7.7. The Contractor shall establish an intake/assessment protocol for 

accepting new clients. 

2.7.8. The Contractor shall establish an orientation process that will ensure 

all fees and charges residents incur are presented to applicants prior 

to residency. Contractor shall ensure policies are presented to 

potential applicants in writing and are verbally explained in a simple 

and easy manner conducive to the individual's understanding. 

2.7.9. The Contractor shall provide a mutually supportive and recovery­

oriented relationships between residents and/or staff through: 

2.7.9.1. Peer-based interactions; 

2.7.9.2. House meetings; 

2.7.9.3. Community gatherings; 

2.7.9.4. Recreational events; and/or 

2.7.9.5. Other social activities. 

2.7.10. The Contractor shall adopt recovery-supportive, alcohol and drug-free 

environments through written and enforced policies and procedures 

that address the following: 

2.7.1 0.1. Residents that return to alcohol and/or drug use; 

2.7.1 0.2. Hazardous item searches; 

2. 7.1 0.3. Drug-screening and or toxicology protocols; and 

2. 7.1 0.4. Prescription and non-prescription medication usage; and 

2.7.10.5. Prescription and non-prescription storage. 

Exhibit A 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Recovery Housing for Individuals with Oploid Use Disorder 
Exhibit A 

2.7.11 . The Contractor shall work with residents to develop and participate in 

an individualized recovery plan. 

2.7.12. The Contractor shall inform residents on the wide range of local 

treatment and recovery support services available to them. 

2.7.13. The Contractor shall provide nonclinical, recovery support and related 

services. 

2.7.14. The Contractor shall encourage residents to attend supportive, self­

help groups and/or outside professional services. 

2.7.15. The Contractor shall provide access to scheduled and structured 

peer-based services such as didactic presentations. 

2. 7 .16. The Contractor shall provide third party clinical services. 

2. 7.17. The Contractor shall provide life skills development services. 

2.7.18. The Contractor shall provide access to clinical services. 

2.8. Property Standards 

2 .8.1. The Contractor shall ensure the residence meets all life, safety, health 

and building codes. 

2.8.2. The Contractor shall provide residents with storage for food and 

personal items. 

2.8.3. The Contractor shall provide fully-functioning fire extinguishers in plain 

sight and/or clearly marked locations. 

2.8.4. The Contractor shall install operational smoke detectors. 

2.8.5. The Contractor shall install operational carbon monoxide detectors if 

gas appliances are present. 

2.8.6. The Contractor shall ensure a smoke/tobacco-free internal living 

environment. 

2.8.7. The Contractor shall provide a large community room that will 

accommodate house meetings. 

2.8.8. The Contractor shall provide sleeping quarters that adhere to local 

and state square footage requirements. 

2.8.9. The Contractor shall provide lavatory facilities that adhere to local and 

state requirements if applicable. If there are no requirements, 

Contractor shall provide one (1) sink, one (1) toi let and one (1) shower 

per six (6) residents. 

2.8.1 0. The Contractor shall provide on-site laundry services. 

2.8.11. The Contractor shall maintain the interior and exterior of the residence 

in a functional, safe, and clean manner. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Recovery Housing for Individuals with Oploid Use Disorder 
Exhibit A 

2.8.12. The Contractor shall provide spaces to hold meetings accessible to all 

residents. 

2.8.13. The Contractor shall provide appliances in a good and working 

condition. 

2.8.14. The Contractor shall provide furniture in good condition. 

2.8.15. The Contractor shall provide routine and emergency repairs to all 

aspects of the residence. 

2.9. Good Neighbor Standards 

2.9.1. The Contractor shall provide the residence's responsible parties' 

information to neighbors upon request. The Contractor shall ensure 

the responsible party responds to neighbor's complaints. 

2.9.2. The Contractor shall establish and enforce rules regarding the 

following: 

2.9.2.1 . Noise; 

2.9.2.2. Smoking; 

2.9.2.3. Loitering; and 

2.9.2.4. Parking. 

2.9.3. The Contractor shall establish and enforce parking rules when 

warranted. 

3. Complete Criminal Background Check 

3.1. The Contractor shall provide to the Department documentation that ensures 

each Contractor employee, who may have direct contact with clients under this 

agreement, has undergone a Criminal Background Check which demonstrates 

no convictions for the following crimes: 

3.1.1. A felony of any individual or neglect, spousal abuse, any crime 

against children, child pornography, rape, sexual assault, or homicide, 

but not including other physical assault or battery; 

3.1 .2. A violent or sexually-related crime against a child or an adult which 

shows that the person might be reasonably expected to pose a threat 

to any individual; 

3.1.3. A felony for physical assault, battery, or a drug-related offense, and 

that felony conviction was committed within the past five (5) years in 

accordance with 42 USC 671 (a)(20)(A)(ii). 

3.2. The Contractor shall provide the required documentation to the Department 

prior to any such Contractor employee commencing work, subject to 

Department approval. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Recovery Housing for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder 
Exhibit A 

4. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards 

4.1. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and 

implementation plans associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services 

are in place within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date. 

4.1.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required 

timeframe, the Contractor shall submit an updated implementation 

plan to the Department for approval to outline anticipated service start 

dates. 

4.1.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and 

liquidate unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90) 

days of the contract effective dale. 

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure that clients receiving financial aid for recovery 

housing utilizing SOR funds shall only be in a recovery housing facility that is 

aligned with the National Alliance for Recovery Residences standards and 

registered with the State of New Hampshire, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol 

Services in accordance with current NH Administrative Rules. 

4.3. The Contractor shall assist clients with enrolling in public or private health 

insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage. 

4.4. The Contractor shall accept clients for MAT and facilitate access to MAT on­

site or through referral for all clients supported with SOR Grant funds, as 

clinically appropriate. 

4.5. The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs program for 

clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS. 

4.6. The Contractor shall ensure that all clients are regularly screened for tobacco 

use, treatment needs and referral to the Quitline as part of treatment planning. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Recovery Housing for Individuals with Oplold Use Disorder 

Exhibit A·1 
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Hew HMipshlte Deportment of Heoltl> and H- s.M<H 
Re<OYO<Y Housing lOt lndlvt- with Oplold U.. Disorder 
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• . EJ1hlbit A·1 

RECOVERY RESIDENCE LEVELS Of' SUPPORT 

LEVEL n LEVEL Ill LEVEL IV 

Monitored Supervised Service Provider 

• House meneger or sen.ot • ()rganozatK>nol hioriR:hy OveneenctgaiiiUbonal 

resident Administrative oversight for 
t>er.rohy 

• PoUcy and Procedures $Eitvlce providers Clinical aoo adm~t~istrative 

PoWey and Procedure-& 
s.upervision 

. 1.ocenmg vane. from state 
Polooy and Procedures 

to state llcens.ing vat\es from statil 
10 state 

• House tvlel provide • Ufe ~I development Clwucal services and 

s<rucnJre emphaSIS ~;,g ... proWjed 

Peer run gf'OUps Oinleal services uhhzod in 
In house 

ovts.lde community life skil development 
Drug Seteenlng • Servk:e hours provided in 

• Housemoo"'9$ -• lnvotve~t in sen help 
andfor trealment services 

• Primarity s.lng)e family • Vanes- all types of All types - often a step 

residenou resicMnUal settings dovon phase within care 

Possibly epartments Of 
c:otWu.m of a t~tmerl 

other ctwelhng types 
center 

May be a mote institutional 
In environment 

• At least t c:ompenseted • Foc:ilolymanoger C.edelil>aled stall 

posit.on Cen1f.ed staff or case 
managers 



National Association of Recovery Residences 

Member Standards 

1. Organizational/Administrative Standards Levell 

1.1. Recovery Residences are legal business entities as Strongly 
evidenced by business licenses or incorporation Recommend 
documents: 

1.2. Recovery Residences have a wntten mission and vision X 
statement: 

1.3. Recovery Residences have a written code of ethics; X 

1.4. Recovery Residences property owners/operators carry Strongly 

generalloability insurance; Recommend 

1.5. Recovery Residences comply with state and federal 

requirements. 

If required, documents such as licenses and certificates 
X 

of occupancy are visible for public view; 

1.6. Recovery Residences clearly identify the responsible 

person(s) in charge of the Recovery Residence to all X 
residents; 

1.7. Recovery Residences clearly state the minimum 

qualifocations, duties, and responsibilities of the nla 
responsible person(s) in a written job descnption and/or 

contract; 

1.8. Recovery Residences provide drug and alcohol free X 
environments; 

1.9. Recovery Residences collect and report accurate Strongly 
process and outcome data for continuous quality 

improvement: 
Recommend 

1.1 0. Recovery Residences have written permission from the 

owner of record to operate a Recovery Residence on X 
their property; 

2. Fiscal Management Standards Levell 

2.1. Recovery Residences maintain an accounting system 

that fully documents all resident financial transactions X 
such as fees, payments and deposits; 

3. Operation Standards Levell 

3.1. Recovery Residences post emergency procedures and nla 
staff phone number in conspicuous locations; 

3.2. Recovery Residences post emergency numbers, X 
protocols and evacuation maps; 
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National Association of Recovery Residences 

Member Standards 

4. Recovery Support Standards Levell 

4.1. Recovery Residences maintain a staffing plan; If Applicable 

4.2. Recovery Residences use an applicant screening 

process that helps maintain a safe and supportive 

environment for a specific group of persons in recovery: 

4.3. Recovery Residences adhere to applicable 
confidentiality laws; 

4.4. Recovery Residences keep resident records secure with 

access limited to authorized staff only; 

4.5. Recovery Residences have a grievance policy and 

procedure for residents; 

4.6. Recovery Residences create a sale, structured, and 

recovery supportive environment through written and 

enforced residents' rights and requirements; 

4.7. Recovery Residences have an orientation process that 

clearly communicates residents' rights and requirements 

prior to them signing any agreements; collects 

demographic and emergency contact lnfonnation and 

provides new residents With written instructions on 

emergency procedures and staff contact Information: 

4.8. Recovery Residences foster mutually supportive and 

recovery-oriented relationships be'-&n residents and/or 

staff through peer-based interactions, house meetings, 

community gatherings, recreational events, and/or other 

social activities; 

4.9. Recovery Residences foster recovery-supportive, 

alcohol and drug-free environments through written and 

enforced policies and procedures that address: residents 

who retum to alcohol and/or drug use; hazardous Item 

searches; drug-screening and or toxicology protocols; 

and prescription and non-prescription medications usage 

and storage; 

4.10. Recovery Residences encourage each resident to 

develop and participate in their own personalized 

recovery plan; 

4.11 . Recovery Residences infonn residents on the wide 

range of local treatment and recovery support services 

available to them including: 12 step or other mutual 

support groups, recover community centers, recovery 

ministries, recovery-focused leisure activities and 

recovery advocacy opportunities; 
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National Association of Recovery Residences 

Member Standards 

4. Recovery Support Standards (Conl) Levell 

4.12. Recovery Residences provide nonclinical, recovery 

support and related services; 

4.13. Recovery Residences encourage residents to attend 

mutually supportive, self help groups and/or outside 

professional services; 

4.14. Recovery Residences provide access to scheduled and 

structured peer-based services such as didactic 
presentations; 

4.15. Recovery Residences provide access to 3rd party 
clinical services in accordance to State laws; 

4.16. Recovery Residences offer life skills development 
services; 

4. 17. Recovery Residences offer clinical services in 
accordance to State laws; 

5. Property Standards 

5.1. Recovery Residences abide by all local building and fire 

safety codes; 

5.2. Recovery Residences provide each residents with food 

and personal item storage; 

5.3. Recovery Residences place functioning fire 

extinguishers in plain sight and/or in clearly marlted 

locations; 

5.4. Recovery Residences have functioning smoke detectors 

installed. If the residence has gas appliances, 
functioning carbon monoxide detectors are installed; 

5.5. Recovery Residences provide a non smoking internal 

living environment; 

5.6. Recovery Residences have a community room large 

enough to accommodate house meetings and sleeping 

rooms that adhere to local and state square footage 

requirements; 

5. 7. Recovery Residences have one sink, toilet and shower 

per six residents or adhere to local and state 

requirements; 

5.8. Recovery Residences have laundry services that are 

accessible to all residents; 
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National Association of Recovery Residences 

Member Standards 

5. Property Standards (Cont.) Levell 

5.9. Recovery Residences maintain the interior and exterior 
of the property in a functional, safe and clean manor that X 

is compatible with the neighborhood; 

5.10. Recovery Residences have meeting spaces that X 
accommodate all residents; 

5.11. Recovery Residences have appliances that are in X 
wor1dng order and furniture that Is in good condition; 

5.12. Recovery Residences address routine and emergency X 
repairs in a timely fashion; 

6. Good Neighbor Standards Levell 

6.1. Recovery Residences provide neighbors with the 
responsible person(s) contact Information upon request. 

X 
The responsible person(s) responds to ne~ghbots 
complaints. even if it is not possible to resolve the issue; 

6.2. Recovery Residences have rules regarding noise, Strongly 
smoking, loitering and parking that are responsive to 
neighbor's reasonable complaints; 

Recommend 

6.3. Recovery Residences have and enforce parking X 
courtesy rules where street parking is scarce: 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Recovery Housing for Individuals with Oploid Use Disorder 

Exhibit B 

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment 

1) The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price 

Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services. 

1.1. This Agreement is funded with funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 

Administration, State Opioid Response Grant, CFDA #93.788, FAIN Ti081685. 

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance 

with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded 

Contractor's current and/or future funding. 

2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows: 

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the 

fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item. 

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth (20111) 

working day of each month, which identiftes and requests reimbursement for authorized 

expenses incurred in the prior month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and 

returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep 

records of their activities related to Department programs and services. 

2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each 

invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available. 

The Contractor will keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs 

and services. 

2.4. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form 

P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date. 

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to 

Melissa.Girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to: 

Melissa Girard, SOR Finance Manager 

Department of Health and Human Services 
BDAS, State Opiold Response 
129 Pleasant Street, 3"' Floor 
Concord, NH 03301 

2.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified 

in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B. 

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts 

between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price 

limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written 

agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and 

Executive Council. 

FITINHNH, Inc. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit c 

SPECIAL PROVISION S 

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor 
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible 

Individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and 

agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility 

of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and 
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures. 

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by 

the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by 

the Department. 

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor 

shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all 
informabon necessary to support an ehgibOhty determination and such other information as the 
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with an forms and documentation 

regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require. 

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as 
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The 
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out 
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair 

hearing in accordance with Department regulations. 

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or 
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or 
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this 
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if n is 
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by 

any officials, offocers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor. 

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any 
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties 
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for 

any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract 
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided 
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the 
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services. 

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing 

herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services 
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs , at a rate 
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a 
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party 
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after recelpt of the Final 
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used 
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment 

in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible indoviduals 
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to: 

7.1. 
7.2. 

0Qit3ft8 

Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established; 
Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in 
excess of costs; 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit C 

7 .3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make 
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is 
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to 
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services 
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at 
any time during the period of retention of records established herein. 

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY: 

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor 
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period: 

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs 
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract. and all 
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be 
maintained in accordance with acoounting procedures and practices which suffiCienUy and 
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and 
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as 
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of 
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the 
Department. 

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of 
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and 
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records 
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain 
payment for such services. 

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the 
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services. 

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the 
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of 
OffiCe of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non 
Profit Organizations· and the provtsions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, 
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Off1C8 (GAO standards) as 
they pertain to financial compliance aud1ts. 

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the 
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their 
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto 
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. 

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is 
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state 
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the 
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an 
exception. 

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected 
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not 
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of 
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to 
public offiCials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes 
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that 
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not 
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contracto(s responsibilities with 
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his 
attorney or guardian. nA.h 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit C 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in 
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever. 

11 . Reports: Fiscal and Statistical : The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following 
times if requested by the Department 
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of 

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and 
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to 
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form 
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department 

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term 
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall 
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal 
and other information required by the Department. 

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the 
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation 
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, 
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or 
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review ofthe 
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as 
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such 
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. 

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared 
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following 
statement: 
13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State 

of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part 
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or 
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services. 

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownersh ip: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or 
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production, 
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials 
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines, 
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without 
prior written approval from DHHS. 

15. Operation of Facilit ies: Compliance w ith Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities 
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, 
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers 
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the 
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or 
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services, 
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and 
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the 
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall 
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and 
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by­
laws and regulations. 

16. Equal Employment Opportu nity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment 
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has 
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit C 

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the 
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees 
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an 
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non­
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the 
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption. 
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/aboutlocr/pdfs/cert.pdf. 

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to 
Services for persons with l imited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin 
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure 
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have 
meaningful access to i ts programs. 

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The 
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48 
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000) 

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLE BLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF 
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013) 

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights 
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at 
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 
112-239) and FAR 3.908. 

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce, 
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section 
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation. 

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all 
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold. 

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with 
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience, 
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to 
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated 
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting 
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if 
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual 
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance 
with those conditions. 

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following: 

19. 1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating 
the function 

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting 
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's 
performance is not adequate 

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis 
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand 
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed 

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts. 

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall 
take corrective action. 

20. Contract Definitions: 

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department 
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established 
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders. 

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services. 

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a 
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or 
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided 
under the Contract. 

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall 
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified 
in Exhibit B of the Contract. 

20.5. FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and 
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean 
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time. 

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this 
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services. 
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is 
replaced as follows: 

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State 
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part. 
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, 
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by 
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise 
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of 
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the 
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In 
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the 
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The 
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement 
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, term ination or modification. 
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the 
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other 
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable. 

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the 
following language; 

10.1 The State may term inate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of 
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its 
option to term inate the Agreement. 

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early 
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the 
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients 
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs. 

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed 
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or 
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan 
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as 
requested. 

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving 
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity 
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for 
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan. 

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals 
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its 
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above. 

3. Renewal: 
The Department reserves the right to extend this Agreement for up to two (2) additional years, 
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding , agreement of the parties and 
approval of the Governor and Executive Council. 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title v, Subtitle D; 41 
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

ALTERNATIVE I· FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ·CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION- CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ·CONTRACTORS 

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free 
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title v, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference. sub-grantees and sub­
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the 
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub<Ontractors) that is a State 
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for 
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a 
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False 
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments. suspension or 
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should 
send it to: 

Commissioner 
NH Department of Health and Human Services 
129 Pleasant Street, 
Concord, NH 03301-6505 

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: 
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's 
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such 
prohibition; 

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about 
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and 
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations 

occurring in the workplace; 
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be 

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that. as a condition of 

employment under the grant, the employee will 
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug 

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such 
conviction; 

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. 
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. including position title, to every grant 
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency 
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the 
identification number(s) of each affected grant; 

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted 
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee. up to and including 

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended; or 

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or 
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, 
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; 

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through 
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6. 

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in 
connection with the specific grant. 

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code} (list each location) 

Check C if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. 

Contractor Name: FIT-NHNH, Inc. 

March 15, 2019 

Date 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.1 1 
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES -CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION- CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE- CONTRACTORS 

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): 
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A 
•child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D 
•social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX 
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX 
•community Services Block Grant under Title VI 
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation , renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention 
sub~rantee or sub-<:ontractor). 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, 
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub~rantee or sub­
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Fonm to 
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.) 

3. The undersigned shall requ ire that the language of this certification be included in the award 
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub~rants, and contracts under grants, 
loans. and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 , U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 
each such failure. 

March 15, 2019 

Date 

CUJOHHS/110713 

Contractor Name: FIT-NHNH, Inc. 

(Y\_ LUU.r, ~ Mu • lh4J 
'tlarfe: Maureen Beauregard 15 
Title: President 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION 
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regard ing Debarment, 
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's 
representative. as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following 
Certification: 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the 

certification set out below. 

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial 
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an 
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be 
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS) 
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary 
participant to fum ish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in 
this transaction. 

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective 
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to 
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns 
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered 
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction: "principal," "proposal," and 
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and 
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the 
attached definitions. 

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that. should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS. 

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the 
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a 
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded 
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may 
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties). 

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records 
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 

Exh;bu - Certification Regard;ng Debarment. Suspension Contractortnn;ats~ 
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent 
person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a 
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction 
for cause or defauH. 

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 

principals: 
11 .1. are not presently debarred. suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had 

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) 
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b) 
of this certification; and 

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public 
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as 

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. 
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such 

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will 
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and 
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solici tations for lower tier covered transactions. 

March 15, 2019 

Date 

Ct.NDHH$rt10713 

Contractor Name: FIT -NHNH, Inc. 

~ou po41J fboaw RoAI!j 
Nirll:Maureen Beauregard IJ 
Title: President 
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO 
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND 

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: 

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable 
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include: 

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits 
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in 
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act 
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan; 

·the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by 
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this 
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or 
benefits, on the basis of race, color. religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal 
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; 

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial 
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity); 

·the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial 
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of 
services or benefrts, in any program or activity; 

·the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits 
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local 
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation; 

·the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs; 

·the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include 
employment discrimination; 

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42 
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies 
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community 
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making 
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations; 

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- Equal Treatment for Faith-Based 
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization 
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for 
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against 
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts. 

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the 
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for 
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants. or government wide suspension or 
debarment. 
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of 

discnmination after a due process heanng on the grounds of race, colo<, religion, national origin, or sex 

against a recipoent of funds, the rec~pient will forward a copy of the findong to the Offoce for Civol Roghts, to 

the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and 

to the Department of Heallh and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. 

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 

certifocation: 

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions 

indicated above. 

Contractor Name: FIT-NHNH, Inc. 

March 15, 2019 {,)fja&.•"«l {iM''Y''J ~; Maureen Beauregard 

Totle: President 
Dale 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE 

Pubfic Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 

(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or 

contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education, 

or library services to choldren under the age of 16, if the servtees are funded by Federal programs either 

directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The 

law does not apply to children's services provided on private residences, fadfities funded solely by 

Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure 

to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to 

S1 000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity. 

The Contractor identifoed on Section 1.3 of the General Provosions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's 

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisoons, to execute the followong 

certification· 

1. By signing and subrmtling this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply 

with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994. 

March 15, 2019 
Date 

CUIDHHSN 1 07 t2 

Contractor Name:FIT-NHNH, Inc. 

@t"'•" ~~''if' NaJn7 Maureen Beauregard 
Totle. President 
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to 

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and 

with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 

CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business 

Associate• shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that 

receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered 

Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. 

(1) Qefinitjons. 

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45, 

Code of Federal Regulations. 

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code 

of Federal Regulations. 

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title45, 

Code of Federal Regulations. 

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" 

in 45 CFR Section 164.501 . 

e. "Data Aggregation· shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation• in 45CFR 

Section 164.501. 

f. "Health Care Ooerations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health careoperations· 

in 45 CFR Section 164.501 . 

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 

Act. TiUeXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of lhe American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 

2009. 

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of1996, Public Law 

104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health 

Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. 

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103 

and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 

CFR Section 164.501{g). 

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 

Information at45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States 

Department of Health and Human Services. 

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health 

information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103,1imited to the information created or received by 

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. 

312014 E>chibitl 
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I. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45CFR 

Section 164.103. 

m. ·secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or 

hisfher designee. 

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected 

Health Information at45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto. 

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information· means protected health information that is not 

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, 

unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by 

a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards 

Institute. 

p. Other Definnions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the 

HITECH 
Act. 

(2) 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

312014 

Bysjness Assocjate Usa and Djsc!osure of Protected Health lnformatjon 

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health 

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under 

Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all 

its directors. officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose. maintain or transmit 

PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: 
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate; 

II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or 

Ill . For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered 

Entity. 

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PH I to a 

third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) 

reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and 

used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was 

disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business 

Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification 

Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained 

knowledge of such breach. 

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to 

provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a 

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying 

Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and 

to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busin~~ 

El<Nbit l Coninlclo<lnilials ~ 
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all 

remedies. 

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to 

be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security 

safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 

shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of 

such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards. 

(3) Obl!gatjons and Actjy!t!es of Business A5socjate. 

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately 

after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected 

health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured 

protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the 

protected health information of the Covered Entity. 

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes 

aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be 

limited to: 

c. 

d. 

e. 

312014 

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the 

types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification; 

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the 

disclosure was made; 
o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed 

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been 

mitigated. 

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours ofthe 

breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the 

Covered Entity. 

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and 

Breach Notification Rule. 

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books 

and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or 

received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for 

purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and 

Security Rule. 

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have 

access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same 

restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including 

the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity 

shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate 

agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivin~~~ 
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Exhibit I 

pursuant to this Agreement. with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such 

business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard 

contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of 

protected health information. 

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, 

Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all 

records, books. agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure 

of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine 

Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, 

Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the 

Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the 

requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. 

Within ten ( 1 0) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an 

amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record 

Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for 

amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its 

obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526. 

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to 

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an 

individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 

164.528. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a 

request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available 

to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations 

to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR 

Section 164.528. 

In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI 

directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) 

business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the 

responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the 

individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business 

Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 

shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify 

Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. 

Within ten ( 1 0) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the 

Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI 

received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the 

Agreement. and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or 

destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in 

the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the 

Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those 

purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business {\I'J}., 
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the 

Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to 

Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. 

(4) Ob!igatjons of Covered Entity 

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its 

Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFRSection 

164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's 

use or disclosure of PHI. 

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation 

of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or 

disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 

164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. 

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or 

disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, 

to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of 

PHI. 

(5) Termjnatjon for Cayse 

(6) 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

312014 

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this 

Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered 

Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate 

Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately 

terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the 

alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity 

determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the 

violation to the Secretary. 

Miscellaneoys 

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used , but not otherwise defined herein, 

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended 

from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to 

a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as 

amended. 

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is 

necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered 

Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and 

Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law. 

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights 

with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. 

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved 

to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. M /h 
E>cllibill Contractor fritialo ~ 
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e. Seoreoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any 

person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or 

conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the 

terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable. 

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, retum or 

destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the 

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the 

standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I. 

Department of Health and Human Servioes 

The State 

FIT-NHNH, Inc. 

Name of the Contra 

Title of Authorized Representative 

Y)~ },cy 

312014 

Maureen Beauregard 
Name of Authorized Representative 

President 

Title of Authorized Representative 

March 15 2019 
Date 

EJCI"ibft I 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY 

ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual 

Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on 

data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the 

in.tial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over 

$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reportmg requirements, as of the date of the award. 

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and ExecutiVe Compensation Information), the 

Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any 

subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements: 

1. Name of entity 
2. Amount of award 
3. Funding agency 
4. NAICS code for contracts I CFDA program number for grants 

5. Program source 
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action 

7. Location of the entity 
8. Principle place of performance 
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#) 

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives it 

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those 

revenues are greater than $25M annually and 

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC. 

Prime grant recipients must subm1t FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which 

the award or award amendment ts made. 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 

The Federal Funding Aocountability and Transparency Act, Public law 109-282 and Public Law 110·252, 

and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees 

to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provistons 

execute the following Certification: 

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH 

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply wtth all applicable provisions of the Federal 

Financial Accountability and Transparency Act 

March 15, 2019 
Date 

CUQ1H&rnD7t3 

Contractor Name: FIT-NHNH, Inc. 

Name. Maureen Beauregard 

Title: President 
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FORMA 

As the Contractor identified in SectiOn 1.3 of the General ProvisiOns, I certtfy that the responses to the 

below listed questions are true and accurate. 

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 825360399 

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year. did your business or organization 

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, 

loans, grants, sub.grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual 

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or 

cooperative agreements? 

X NO _ __ YES 

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here 

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the fo41owing: 

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your 

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 ol the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986? 

_ __ NO ___ YES 

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here 

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following: 

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or 

organiZatiOn are as follows· 

Nama. ____________________ _ 
Amount:-----

Name ---------- --
Amount· ____ _ 

Name --------------------- Amount. -----------

Name ------------ Amount: -----------

Name ------------ Amount -----------

C~HSNtf1tt) 
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DHHS Information Security Requirements 

A. Definitions 

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document: 

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure, 

unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to 

situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than 

authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable 

information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health 

Information, • Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 

164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations. 

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security 

Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident 

Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department 

of Commerce. 

3. ·confidential Information" or ·confidential Data• means all confidential information 

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public 

assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance 

Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and 

Personally Identifiable Information. 

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by 

the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and 

Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted 

services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by 

state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to 

Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial 

Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), 

Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information. 

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee, 

business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives 

DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract. 

5. "HIPAA • means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1 goo and the 

regulations promulgated thereunder. 

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy, 

which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a 

system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of 

a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware, 

firmware, or soflware characteristics without the owner's knowtedge, instruction, or 

consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss 

or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic 
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DHHS Info rmation Security Requirements 

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized 

access, use, disclosure, modifteation or destruction. 

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is 

not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of lnfonnation 

Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and 

approved, by means of the State. to transmit) will be considered an open 

network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, 

PHI or confidential DHHS data. 

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish 

or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number. personal 

infonnation as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc .• 

alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying infonnation which is linked 

or linkable to a specific individual. such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden 

name. etc. 

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 

Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United 

States Department of Health and Human Services. 

10. "Protected Health lnfonnation• (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the 

definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. § 

160.103. 

11. · security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic 

Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments 

thereto. 

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is 

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information 

unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is 

developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by 

the American National Standards Institute. 

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR 

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information. 

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential lnfonnalion 

exoept as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor, 

including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not 

use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation 

of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a 
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a 

subpoena, etc .. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to 

consent or object to the disclosure. 

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional 

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI 

pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such 

additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional 

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. 

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End 

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for 

any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. 

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives 

of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this 

Contract. 

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA 

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing 

Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have 

been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said 

application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. 

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks 

or portable storage devices. such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS 

data. 

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if 

email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of 

persons authorized to receive such information. 

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential 

Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be 

secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. 

5. File Hosting Services. also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file 

hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit 

Confidential Data. 

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground 

mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual. 

7. Laptops and POA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit 

Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected. 

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open 
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when 

remotely transmitting via an open wireless network. 

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to 

access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be 

installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be 

transmitted or accessed. 

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If 

End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will 

structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of 

information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will 

be coded for 24-hour auto-<leletion cycle (i .e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 

hours}. 

11 . Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all 

data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. 

Ill. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS 

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this 

Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any 

derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted 

under this Contract. To this end, the parties must: 

A. Retention 

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in 

connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United 

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of 

cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities. and includes backup 

data and Disaster Recovery locations. 

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in 

place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems 

and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End 

Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. 

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data 

in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2 

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a 

FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and 

regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have 

currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti­

hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment. as a 
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection. 

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's 

Chief I nfonnatlon Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting 

infrastructure. 

B. Disposition 

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its 

sub-contractor systems). the Contractor will maintain a documented process for 

securely disposing of such data upon request or contract tennination; and will 

obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the 

Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster 

recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of 

New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program 

in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media 

sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media {for example, 

degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines 

for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. 

Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at 

time of the data destruction, and will provide written certiftcation to the Department 

upon request. The written certifiCation will include all details necessary to 

demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable. 

regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly 

evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction. 

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty {30) days of the tennination of this 

Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a 

secure method such as shredding. 

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty {30) days of the tennination of this 

Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data 

by means of data erasure. also known as secure data wiping. 

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY 

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any 

derivative data or files, as follows: 

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department 

confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery 

of contracted services. 

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department 

confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, {from 

creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the 

media used to store the data {i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.). 
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to 

contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information 

where applicable. 

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to 

detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or 

Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End 

Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. 

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement 

supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a 

program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security 

expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum 

match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. 

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable 

State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies 

and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of 

obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be 

completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to 

system access being authorized. 

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 

CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement 

(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the 

agreement. 

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System 

Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and 

Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may 

occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed 

annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by 

the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the 

scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes. 

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire 

or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless 

prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office 

leadership member within the Department. 

11. Data Sacurity Breach liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall 

make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to 

prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. 

The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from 
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and 

costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to 

the breach. 

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the 

privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects 

maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less 

than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. including, 

but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS 

Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 

C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health 

information and as applicable under State law. 

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and 

physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to 

prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and 

scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements 

established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology. 

Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/lwww.nh.gov/doiVvendor/index.htm 

for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and 

procurement information relating to vendors. 

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident 

response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the 

State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses 

provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer 

security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New 

Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network. 

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this 

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to 

perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract. 

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users: 

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, 

implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS 

under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure. 

b. safeguard this information at all times. 

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or 

PFI are encrypted and password-protected. 

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being 

sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to 

receive such Information. 

V5. Last update 10/09118 Exhibit K 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law. 

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually 

identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is 

physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons 

during duty hours as well as non-<Juty hours (e.g .• door looks, card keys, 

biometric identifiers, etc.). 

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. including any 

derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases. 

such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when 

stored on portable media as required in section IV above. 

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and 

disclosed using appropriate safeguards. as determined by a risk-based 

assessment of the circumstances involved. 

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be 

shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure. 

This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through 

a third party application. 

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS 

reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this 

Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA, 

and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data 

is disposed of in aooordance with this Contract. 

V. LOSS REPORTING 

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any 

Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in 

Section VI. 

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in 

accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification 

procedures and in aooordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and 

notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures, 

Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will: 

1. Identify Incidents: 

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents: 

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37: 

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents 

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and 

V5. Last update 10/09118 Exhibit K 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate 
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different 
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation 
measures. 

Incidents andfor Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as 
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. 

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT 

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: 

DHHSPrivacyOffteer@dhhs.nh.gov 

B. DHHS Security Offteer: 

DHHSinformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov 
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State of New Hampshire 

Department of State 

CERTIFICATE 

I, William M. Gardner, Secrc10ry of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify thati111"/NHNH, INC is a New 

l lami>Shire Nonprofit Corporntion registered to transact business in New llampshire on May 13, 1994. I further certify that all fees 

nnd documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is 

concerned. 

Business ID: 207982 

Certificate Number: 00040RRRI5 

IN TESTIMONY Wll eRt::OF, 

I hereto sci my hand and cause to be anixed 

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire, 

Ibis 26th day of April A.D. 2018. 

Williom M. Gardner 

Secre tory o f State 



Quick Start Page 1 of 1 

Filing History e Back to Home (/online) 

Business Name Business ID 

FIT/NHNH,INC 207982 

Filing# Filing Date Effective Date Filing Type Annual Report Year 

0003686428 12/26/2017 01/01/2018 Amendment N/A 

0003686425 12/26/2017 01/01/2018 Merger N/A 

0003122218 05/15/2015 05/15/2015 Nonprofit Report 2015 

0000860498 10/14/2010 10/14/2010 Annual Report 2010 

0000860497 10/08/2010 10/08/2010 Reminder Letter N/A 

0000860496 03/17/2005 03/17/2005 Annual Report 2005 

0000860495 03/30/2001 03/30/2001 Reinstatement N/A 

0000860494 02/01/2001 02!01/2001 Admin Dissolution/Suspension N/A 

0000860493 06/01/1995 06/01/1995 Annual Report 1995 

0003676170 05/13/1994 05/13/1994 Business Formation N/A 

Page 1 of 1, recO<ds 1 to 10 of 10 

Back 

NH Department of State, 107 North Main St. Room 204. Concord, NH 03301 Contact Us 

(/online/Home/ContactUSl 

Version 2.1 0 2014 PCC Technology Group. LLC. All Rights Resenred 

https://quickstart. sos.nh.gov/online/B usi nesslnq ui re/Fi 1 ingH i story?busincssl D=S 70 15 3/29/2019 



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE 

I, Chana Stevens do hereby certify that: 
(Name of the elected Off1cer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory) 

1. I am a duly elected Officer of ______ J:F~IT~-uN!!:H!.!.:N!.!:HJ.....!Jin~c,_. _ _ _________ ~ 
(Agency Name) 

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of 

the Agency duly held on --'M"'a""'r":ch:'-':15"':-"2"'0C!.19,_ ____ _ 
(Date) 

RESOLVED: That the --- -----,:=,......P'-:-r'!;es.,ld,.,ean!l.t-:-::---,---:---------­
(T•tle of Contract Signatory) 

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter 1nto the said contract with the State and to 
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, 
or modifiCations thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. 

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked , and remain in full force and effect as of 

the 15 dayof-'M~ar~c'-'h___,.,,-----· 2019 
(Date Contract Signed) 

4. Maureen Beaureaard is the duly elected ---:::,.,-P~r~e~s!l'id!l<e.untL--=-..,---:------
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Tille of Contract Signatory) 

of the Agency. 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

County of _Hillsborough ______ _ 

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ __t1:,!.5 __ day of March • 2019 • 

By Charla Steyens 
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) 

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace) 

(NOTARY SEAL) 
LORI K. SULLIVAN, Nolaly Public' 

~Commission Expires Mateh 13, 2020' 

Commission Expires: - -----
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Our Mission 
The mission of FIT/NHNH is to provide hunger relief, 
emergency shelter, safe affordable housing, and 
supportive services to individuals and families who are 
homeless or in need, enabling them to gain self-sufficiency 
and respect. 



Families in Transition/New Horizons New Hampshire 
Board of Directors 

Board of Directors 

David Cassidy, Co-Chairperson 
Senior Vice President, Eastern Bank 

Board member since 2018 

Charla Bizios Stevens, Co -Chairperson 
Director, Litigation Department and Chair of Employment Law Practice Group 

McLane Middleton, Professional Association Esquire 
Board member since 2018 

Colleen Cone, Vice Chairperson 

Sr. Director Employee Relations Greater Boston Area, Comcast 
Board member since 2018 

Robert Bartley, Treasurer 
President, CPA, CFP, Bartley Financial Advisor 

Board member since 2018 

Frank Saglio, Asst. Treasurer 
Howe, Riley & Howe, PLLC. 
Board member since 2018 

Kristi Scarpone, Secretary 
First, Corporate and Foundation Relations 

Board member since 2018 

Roy Tilsley, At large 
Bernstein Shur, Shareholder 
Board member since 2018 

Scott W. Ellison, At large 
COOK, LITTLE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, PLLC, Portner 

Board member since 2018 

Dick Anagnost, Prior Co-Chairperson 
President, Anagnost Companies 

Board member since 2018 

Rev. 1/1/2019 RS 



Alison Hutcheson 
Merchants Fleet Management, Associate Director of Sales Administration 

Board member since 2018 

AnnMarie French 
Executive Director, NH Fiscal Policy Institute 

Board member since 2018 

Brian Hansen 
Team Engineering, Project Manager 

Board member since 2018 

Brian M ikol 
Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner 

Board member since 2018 

Heather Whitfield 
Vice President, Commercial Lending, People's United Bank 

Board member since 2018 

Jack Olson 
Retired 

Board member since 2018 

Kitten Stearns 
Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage 

Board member since 2018 

M ary Ann Aldrich 
Retired 

Board member since 2018 

PeterTelge 
Owner, Stark Brewing Company 

Board member since 2018 

Roy Ballentine 
Executive Chairman, Ballentine Partners, LLC 

Board member since 2019 

Ryan M ulholland 
Westbridge 

Board member since 2018 

Sarah Jacobs 
Manchester School District Coordinator 

Board member since 2018 

Rev. 111/2019 RS 



Sean Leighton 
Captain - Investigative Division Commander, City of Manchester Police Department 

Board member since 2019 

Wayne McCormick, CFP 
Steward Partners Managing Director Wealth Manager 

Board member since 2018 

Rev. 1/1/20 19 RS 



Maureen Ann Beauregard 

P r ofessional E xperience 

November 1991 to P r esent: Families in Tra11sition, 122 Market Street, Manchester, Nil 
0310 1 

1995-Prcscnl. President, Families in Trnnsition. Developed a Board of Directors and 
established Families in Transition as a private nonprofit agency in 1995. Responsible for 
grant writing, fundraising, facility development, oversight of agency personnel, program 
development, day to day operations, rep01t ing to state and federal agencies and public 
relations. 

• 2003to Present: Development and lmplcmentation of 33 units permanent affordable 
housing in Manchester. 

• 2001-2003: Development of Families in Transition- Concord, 16 units of affordable 
housing with 6 designated for homeless women with a disability and J 0 designated 
for t ransitional housing for homeless women and their children. 

• 200 I to Present: Development of Fami lies in Transition's social entrepreneurship, 
Family OutFITters thrift store and Employment Tmining Program. 

• 1998 - 2001: Development of Mill yard ll Transitional Housing Program with 19 
apartments and I interim unit for 3 families. 

• 1995 - 1997: Development of Mill yard J T ransitional Housing Program with 12 
apartments for homeless women with children. 

• 1994 - 1995: Development of steering committee to form the Board of Directors for 
Families in T ransition and Families in Transition becomes and independent 501 © 
(3) 

1991 - 1994 New Hampshire Commun ity Loan Fund. Program Director. Designed and 
implemented transitional housing programs for the homeless women with and without 
children. 

• 1993 - 1994: Development and implementation of Community Program providing 
supportive services to 14 homeless women and their children and assisting them in 
atta ining and maintaining housing. 

• 1992- 1993: Development and implementation of Amherst Street Transitional 
Housing Program for 9 homeless single women. 

• 1991 - 1992: Development and implementation of Spruce Street Transitional 
Housing Program for 5 homeless women and their children. 

November 1989-Mar ch 1991: Child Protective Service Worker ll for the Division for Children 
and Youtb Services, 30 Maplewood Avenue, Portsmouth, NH. Advocated for abused and 
neglected children in court, established support network (fostercare, visitation, and 
counseling) to help in the abuse/neglect recovery process. 

November 1988-Novem ber 1989: Substance Abuse Counselor for Team Coordinating 
Agency, Phoenix East, llaverhill, MA. Counseled clients, aided and found resources 
(ANNA meetings, employment, education, and counseling) for residents in halfway 
house for alcoholic/addicts, age 16-25. Conducted weekly support group. 



Education 

Bachelor of Science degree from the University of New Hampshire, College of Life 
Science and Agriculture. Area of study: Family Studies. 

Professional Affiliations and Honors 

• 1998 to 2004 - Northern New England Housing Investment Fund. Member of Board of 
Directors. 

• 1998 to 2004 - Northern New England Equity Fund. Member Board of Directors and 
Investment Committee 

• 2004: New Hampshire Business Review, Business Excellence Awards 2004, Maureen 
Beauregard for Excellence in Non-Profit 

• 2004: The Walter J. Uunfey Awards for Excellence in Management awarded to Families in 
Transition 

• 2003: YWCA Susan B. Anthony Award, Woman of the Year 
• 2003: New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority Annual Conference: Maureen Beauregard 

and Families in Transition recognized as Best Practice for Development of Affordable 
Housing in New Hampshire. 

• 2002: Great Bay Foundation: $150,000 grant award for the development and implementation 
of social entrepreneurship, Family OutFITters. 

• 2002: Citizens Bank and WMUR Chartnel - 9, 2003 Community Champions Award for 
Homelessness for New Hampshire 

• 2001: Manchester Continuum of Care Narrative submission to the U.S. Dept. of Housing & 
Urban Development, SuperNOFA: I oftop I 0 narratives in the country. 

• 2003 to Present: YMCA Diversity Committee 
• 2003 to Present: lntown Manchester, Economic Development Committee, Tmstee 
• 2003: The Sharing Foundation, Caring for Cambodia's Children Parent Advisory Council 
• 2003 to }'resent: New Hampshire Interagency Council on Homelessness, member appointed 

by Governor Benson 
• 2002 to Present: Policy Academy for the Chronically Homeless, member 
• 2002 to Present: Great Bay Foundation, Work Group consisting of 5 leading initiatives, 

member 
• 2001 to Present: Manchester Task Force on Housing, member appointed by Mayor 
• 1999 to Present: Northern New England Housing Investment Fund, Investment Committee, 

Trustee 
• 1998 to Present: Manchester Continuum of Care, Chairperson in 1998,2003, founding 

member 



Stephanie Allain Savard, MSW, LICSW 

Education: 
• Masters in Social Work, Boston University, 1996. 
• Ilachelor of Arts - Honors in Psychology, Keene State College, 1992. 
• Associate of Science in Chemical Dependency, Keene State College, I 992. 

Licensure and Certification: 
• New Hampshire Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, #941, April, 2000 ·Present. 
• Boston University Trauma Certificate Program, 2006. 
• Low Income Housing Tax Credit Certified Credit Compliance Professional (C3P), 2000. 

Awards & Honors: 
• New Futures Thomas Fox Memorial TreatUlent Scholarship- Recognized for Treatment Work in Substance Use 

Field, 2013. 
• Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce "Leadership Greater Manchester Program," Class of2011. 
• Union Leader and Business Industry Association "40 Under 40" Leaders of New Hampshire, Class of2004. 
• NH Homeless Service Providers Award, NH Department of Health & Human Services, Office of Homeless & 

Housing Services, 2003. 

Professional Experience: 
Chief Operating Officer, Famil ies in Transition, Manchester, NH, December 1996 - Present. 
• Oversight of agency operations to ensure seamless systems, fiscal responsibility, quality control and best 

practices across departments. Provide oversight of development and revision of, adherence to agency policy 
and procedures. 

• Oversee and manage supportive services department with up to 25 staff providing housing (emergency, 
transitional and pennanent) and supportive services with capacity to serve 200 homeless individual and 
families. Supportive services encompass individual case management, therapy, psycho-educational 
workshops, pro-social fiunily activities and crisis intervention. 

• Coll aborate with Board of Directors and Management Team in non-profit development and program growth. 
Develop and provide clinical oversight of a specialized gender-specific intensive outpatient subst(mce use 
treatment program specializing in co-occurring disorders, with a focus on tratuna histories. Program 
recognized as the T reatment Provider of the Year by the NH Alcohol and Other Drug Providers Association, 
2013. 

• Develop and provide clinical oversight of (ill innovative therapeutic pre-school program for children and 
farnifies who are homeless with strength-based and tiunily-focused services. 

• Provide clinical aod administrative supervision for clinical program managers. Oversee a 24-hour crisis line. 
• Col laborate with senior management staff in daily operations of Families in Transition, including financial 

decisions, program and housing development and human resources. Assume responsibilities and decision­
making for agency in the absence of the President. Collaborate with President, Board of Directors and 
management team on strategic planning and implementation for the agency. 

• Served on Families in Tmnsition Board of Directors Programs Committee and the primary liaison to 
Committee chair for agency. 

Family Service Worker/Counselor, NFI Midway Residential Shelter, Manchester, NH, 1993 - 1996. 
• Provided support and treatment planning with families of children in j udicial system. Conducted family 

assessments and counseling during stay at shon-tcrm residential facility. 
• Supervised 15 adolescent males utilizing behavior management and nom1ative culture techniques. 
• Managed all shifts; development and facil itation of swnmer activity program. 



Clinical Social Worker Intern, CASPAR Emergency Service Center, Cambridge, MA, 1995-1996. 
• Assisted in providing treatment services to transitional living program provided within emergency housing 

program for single adults. 
• Completed assessments and provided individual and group thempy to adults who were homeless in early 

recovery from substance use. Provided case management for substance use, HN I AIDS and housing needs. 

Clinical Social Worker Intern, WorkSource of Work, Inc., Quincy, MA, 1994-1 995. 
• Provided case management, counseling and crisis intervention to people with chronic mental health 

disorders. 

VISTA Volunteer, Center for Human Services, Seattle, WA, Aug. t992- Aug. 1993. 
• Developed and supervised volunteer program, assisted in agency fundmising and grant writing; designed 

marketing materials; assisted in coordinating Board of Directors and chaired Board committees. 

P rofessional Expertise and Trainer Experience: 
• Brazelton Touchpoints Community Trainer, New Hampshire's Brazelton Touchpoints Site with families in 

Transition, 20 I I -present. 
• "Avoiding Third Degree Bums: A Professional first Aid Kit for Preventing Bumout" Conference Workshop, 

New Hampshire Di\~si on of Children, Youth and Families State-wide Conference, 2014; State ofNH Bureau of 
Housing and Homelessness NH Homeless Provider Conference, 2013; Families in Transition Clinical 
Department, 20 I I . 

• "Raising Voices: Strategies for Engaging Homeless & Fonnerly Homeless People in Local and National 
Advocacy Efforts" Conference Workshop, Institute for Children, Poverty and llomelessness, Beyond Housing: 
A National Conversation on Child Homelessness and Poverty Conference, NYC, 2014. 

• "Dealing with Difficult Conversations" Training, Families in Transition VISTA Program, 2011-20 13; 
Leadership Statl; 2012. 

• "Direct Service Training for Volunteers", Families in Transition, 2013. 
• "Understanding Homelessness & Poverty'' Presentation, St. Anselm's College - Sociology Department, 2011 

& 2012. 
• "Ethics in Professional Practice" Presentation, Families in Transition, 2009. 
• "Relational-Cultural Model with the People Experiencing Homclcssness" Conference Workshop, State ofNH 

Bureau of Housing and Homelessness - NH Homeless Providers Conference, 2002. 
• Confident public speaker and community collaborator through active participation in multiple community 

groups, coalitions and associations. 

Service in Pr ofessional Societies, Go\•ecnment and Local Or ganizations: 
• Appointed Member, NH Govemor's Commission ou Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention, Treatment and 

Recovery, March 2010- Present. 
• Chair and member, Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse T reatment Taskforce, 2009- Present. 
• Board of Directors Member, National Association of Social Workers -Nil Chapter, 2004-2008 

o Vice-President 2006 - 2008 
o Executive Council Member at Large 2004-2005 

· o Member 1996-Present. 
• Member, Lazan•s House Transitional Housing Advisory Council, Lawrence, MA, 2004-2008. 
• Board of Directors Member, NH Coalition to End Homelessness, 2000- 2002. 
• Member, Manchester Continuum of Care, 2000-2007; 

o Chair- 2000-200 l; 
o Community Awareness Committee Chair, 2003-2004 & 2006-2007. 



KELLY PAQUETTE -

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE 
Motivated, personable professional with a successful track record of developing, managing 
and directing programs and services. Diplomatic and tactful with professionals and 

nonprofessionals at all levels. Accustomed to handling sensitive, confidential information. 
Demonstrated history of producing accurate, timely reports meeting stringent state and federal 

guidelines. 

Flexible and versatile •• able to maintain a sense of humor under pressure. Poised and 
competent with demonstrated ability to easily transcend cultural differences. Thrive in 
deadline-driven environments. Excellent team-building skills. 

SKILLS SUMMARY 
• Resu lts-driven achiever with exemplary planning and organizational skills, along with a 

high degree of detail orientation. 
• Innovative problem-solver who can generate workable solutions and implement effective 

solutions. 
• Resourceful team player who excels at building trusting relationships with customers and 

colleagues. 
• Collaborative team member who can effectively manage and communicate with multiple 

management and employee levels. 
• Flexible team player who thrives in environments requiring ability to effectively prioritize 

and juggle multiple concurrent projects. 

• Goal-driven leader who maintains a productive climate and confidently motivates, 
mobil izes, and coaches employees to meet high performance standards. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Communication 

• Prepare complex reports for internal and external partners, ensuring full compliance with 
agency, state and federal requirements and tight deadlines. 

• Develop new services to meet customer needs, regional resource needs and 

improvement in service quality. 
• Expand and maintain positive partnerships with the business community and current and 

potential program funders. 
• Coordinate services with internal and external partners, service providers and 

community organizations. 



Financial Management 
• Contribute to budgeting process by planning, implementing and meeting or exceeding 

annual financial goals. 
• Produces accurate and timely reports, billing and other documentation. 
• Contributes in policy creation and implementation with funders and internal partners for 

multiple programs. 
• Review federal guidance related to grant funded workforce programs and summarizes it, 

analyzes it and disseminates it to other interested parties. 

Detail Mastery & Organization 
• Manage all aspects of day-to-day operations of multiple programs. 
• Manage facility logistics/maintenance of building. 
• Compliance with all safety requirement. 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION - Manchester, NH 
Senior Manager of Housing Programs, October, 2016- Present 

GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND- Concord, NH 
Senior Program Manager/Community Outreach Coordinator, 2010- October, 2016 

EVERYDAY ERRANDS- Concord, NH 
Owner/Operator, 2008-2010 

NEW HAMPSHIRE WOMEN'S POLICY INSTITUTE - Concord, NH 

WOMEN'S FUND OF NEW HAMPSHIRE- Concord, NH 
LEADERSHIP NEW HAMPSHIRE- Concord, NH 
Office Manager/Program Assistant, 2008-2010 

ORR & RENO, PA- Concord, NH 
Legal Assistant/Paralegal, 2000-2002 

NELSON, KINDER, MOSSEAU & SA TURLEY - Manchester, NH 

Legal Assistant, 1998-2000 

EDUCATION 
FRANKLIN PIERCE COLLEGE -- Concord, NH 
Certificate in Paralegal Studies, 1999 

FRANKLIN PIERCE COLLEGE -- Concord, NH 
B.S., Business Management, 1993 



COMPUTER SKILLS 
Strong computer skills with proficiency in Outlook, Word, Excel, PowerPoint. 



CO ITRACfOR NAME 

Key J'ersonnel 

Name Job Title Salary %Paid from Amount Paid from 
this Contract this Contract 

Maureen Beaurel(anl President 153,700 0% -
Stephanie Savard coo 98 945 0% -
Kelly Paqueue Program Manap,cr 68 000 25% 17,000 



FOR.\1 NUMBER P-37 (•·ersioo 518/15) 
Subject RfA-2019-BIMS.02-RECOV41/Recovery Housjoo for Individuals with OUD 

~: This l!grttment and all of its anachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and 
Executive Council for approval. An) information that is private, confidential or proprietary must 
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contniCt. 

AG REEMENT 
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree us fo llows: 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

NH Dcpanment of llealth and Human Services 

1.3 
Hope on Haven Hill 

1.5 Contractor Phone 
Number 

603-851-5353 

Nathan D. White. Director 

1.6 Accountl\umber 

05:995-092-920510-7040-

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement 

Address 
326 Rochester Hill Road 
Rochester, l\'H 03867 

1.7 \.omplction Date 

September 29, 2020 

1.8 Price 

$200.300 

• 

appeared the person identified in block 1.12. or satisfactorily 
~·•vlcdgt:d that slhe executed this document in the capacity 

Oy: Director. On: 

1.18 Executive 

Oy: On: 

Page I of 4 



2. EMPLOYMEI\1 OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO 
BE PER FOR\·! ED. The SlateofNew Hampshi~. acting 
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (-Suun. engages 
contrtiCtOr identified in block 1.3 (-Contrnctor") to perform. 
and the ConlrtiCtor shall perform, tbe work or sale of goods. or 
both, identified and more panicularly described in the attached 
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference 
(-Services''). 

J. U 'FEC I'IVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES. 
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contn11y. and subject to the approval of the Governor and 
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if 
applicable. this Agreemen~ and all obligations of the parties 
he~under, shall become effective on the date the Govemor 
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in 
block 1. 18, unless no such approval is requi~. in which ease 
the Ag~ment shall become effective on the date the 
Agreement is signed by the Swe Agency as shown in bloc~ 
1.14 (-F.Ifec:ti•·e Date/. 
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the 
Effect;,.., Date, all Services performed by the ContrtiCIOr prior 
to the Effce~ive Date shall be perfonned at the sole risk of the 
Contractor. and in the event that this Agreement does not 
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the 
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay 
1he Contractor for any costs incurred or Services pcrfonncd. 
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dote 
specified in block 1.7. 

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement 10 the 
contrary, all obligations of the Swe hereunder. including. 
wi1hout limitation. the continuance of payments hereunder. are 
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation 
of funds. and in no C\tnt shall the State be liable for any 
payments he~under in excess of such anilable appropriated 
funds. In the e• ent of a ~uctioo or termination of 
appropriated funds. the Slate shall have the right to withhold 
payment until such funds become available, if ever. and shall 
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon 
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Stote 

shall not be ~qui~d to transfer funds from any other account 
to the Account idcnti fled in block I .6 in the event funds in that 
Account nre reduced or unavailable. 

5. CO TRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ 
PAYMENT. 
5. I The contrtiCt price, method of payment, and terms of 
payment are identified and more particularly described in 
EXJ IJOIT 0 which is incorporated herein by refe~nce. 

5.2 The payment by the State oftbe contraCt price shall be the 
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all 
expenses, of "toatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the 
perfonnance he= f. and shall be tbe only and the complete 
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State 
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract 
price. 

5.3 The Swe reserves the right to offset from any amounts 
otherwise payable 10 the Contractor under this Agreement 
those liquidated amounts requi~ or permined by KH. RSA 
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law. 
5.4 1\oiWitbstanding any provision in this Agreement to the 
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in 
no event shall the total of all payments authoriud. or ac:tually 
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 
1.8. 

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS 
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY. 
6. 1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the 
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, ~gulations, 

and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities 
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, 
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity 
laws. This may include the requi~ment to utilize auxiliary 
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication 
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can 
communicate nith~ receive infonnation from. and convey 
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor 
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws. 
6.2 During the term of this Agreement. the Contractor shall 
not discriminate against employees or nppl icants for 
employment because of race. color, religion, creed, age, sex, 
handicap, sexual orientation, Ol' national origin and will take 
amnnative action to prevent such discrimination. 
6.3 lflhis Agreement is funded in any part by monies ofthc 
United Swes, the Contractor shall comply with all the 
provisions of Executive Order 1\o. I 1246 ("Equal 
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the 
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41 
C.f.R. Part 60), and "ith any rules. ~gulations and guidelines 
as the State of New Hampshire or the United Swes issue to 
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to 
permit the State or United States access to any of the 
Contractor's books. ~cords nnd accounts for the purpose of 
ascertaining complianct- with all rules. regulations and orders., 
and the covenants. terms and conditions ofthis Agreement. 

7. PERSONNEL. 
7 .I The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all 
personnel necessary to pe1fonn the Services. The Contractor 
warrants that all personnel ensaged in the Services shall be 
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly 
licensed and otherwise authori7.ed to do so under all applicable 
laws. 
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of 
this Agreement. and for a period of six (6) months after the 
Completion Date in bloc~ 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, 
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person. firm or 
corporation "ith whom it is engaged in a combined effort to 
perform the Services to hi~. any person wbo is a State 
employee or official. who is materially involved in the 
procurement, administration or perfonnance of this 
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A~ment. This provision shall survive tcnnination of this 

Agreement. 
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or 
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event 

of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, 
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State. 

8 . EVE~ O F DEFAULT/REMEDIES. 
8. 1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the 
Conlr8ctor shall constitute an event of default hereunder 
("Event of Defilult"): 
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on 

schedule; 
8.1.2 fa ilure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or 

8.1.3 fa ilure to perform any other covenant. term or condition 

oftJliS Agreement. 
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State 

may take any one, or more. or all. of the following actions: 
8.2 .1 give the Contractor a wriucn notice specifying the Event 
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the 

absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) 
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is 

not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two 
(2) days after giving the Con!t'actor notice oftennination; 

8.2.2 give the Conll"dCior a wrinen notice specifying the Event 
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this 

Aareement ru>d ordering that the po11ion of the contract price 
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor duri11g the 

period from the date of such notice until such time as the State 
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default 

shall never be paid to the Cont1'1>CtOr; 
8.2 .3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to 

the Contractor any damages the State suffel'li by reason of any 
Event of Default; and/or 
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pul'liue any of its 
remedies at law or in equity, or both. 

9. OATA/ACCESS/CONFIDJ::N'I'IALJTV/ 
PRESERVATION. 
9 . 1 As u>ed in this Agreement, tl1e word "data" shall mean all 

information and things developed or obtained during the 
performance: of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this 

A~ment, ineloding, but not limited 10. all studies, repons, 
files, fonnulae. surveys, maps. chans, sound recordings, video 
recordings, pictorial reproductions. drawings~ analyses., 
graphic representations, computer programs, computer 

printouts, notes, letters, memoranda. papers, and documents, 
all whether finished or unfinished. 
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from 
the State or purchased with funds provided tor that purpose 
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and 

shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon 
termination of this Agreement for any reason. 
9.3 Co nfidentiality of data shall be eoverned by '.H. RSA 
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data 

requires prior wrillen approval of the State. 

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of 

this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the 
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting 

Officer, not later than fifteen (I 5) days after the date of 
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in 

detail all Services performed. and the contract price earned, to 
and including the date of termination. The form, subject 

mauer, content, and number of copies of the Termination 
Repon shall be identical to those of any Final Repon 

described in the amched EXJ Ill) IT A. 

II. CO N'TRACfOR'S RELA'flO~ TO THE STATE. In 

the performance of this Aareement the ContraCtor is in all 
respects an independent contractor. and is neither an agent nor 

an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its 

officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to 
bind the State or receive uny benefits, workers' compensation 
o r other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. 

12. ASSIGNMF.NT/DELEGA 'f!ON/SUBCONTRACTS. 
The Contractor shall not assign. or othernise transfer any 

interest in this Agreement without the prior "rinen notice and 
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be 
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior "Tillen 
notice and consent of the State. 

13. INOEMNI FICA TION. The Contmctor shall defend, 

indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and 
employees, from and against any and a ll losses suffered by the 
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, 

liabilities or penalties asserted against tbe State, its officers 
and employees. by or on behalf of any person. on account of, 

based or resulting from, aris ing out of (or which may be 
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the 
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein 

contained shall be deemed to con51itute a waiver of the 
sovereign immunity of the State. which immunity is hereby 

rese1ved to the State. 'I his covenant in paragraph 13 shall 
survive the tem>ination of this Agreement. 

14. 1NSURANC E. 
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and 
maintain in force. and shall require any subcontraclor or 

assignee to obtain and maintain in funce, the follo,.ing 
insurance: 
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all 

claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts 

of not less than $1 ,OOO,OOOper occurrence and $2,000,000 
aggregate ; and 
14 .1.2 special cause of loss coverage fonn covering all 
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not 

less than 800/o of the whole replacement value of the property. 
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall 

be on policy forms and endorsements appro'ed for use in the 
State of New Hampshire by the 'I.H. Department of 
Insurance. and issued by insurers licensed in the State ofNe" 

Hampshire. 
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer 
identified in block 1.9. or his or her suc~ssor, a cenificate(s) 
ofinsuniJICe for all insurance required under this Agreement. 
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer 
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, certifieate(S) of 
insurance for all rencwal(s) of insurance required under this 
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration 
date of each of the insurance policies. The ccrtificate(s) of 
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be anached and arc 
incorporated herein by reference. Each ccrtifocate(s) of 
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to 
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his 
or her successor. no lc>S than thirty (30) days prior wrillcn 
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy. 

IS. WORK ERS' COMPE~SATION. 
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees. 
certifies and wamonts that the Contractor is in compliance -..ith 
or exempt from. the requirements of NJi. RSA chapter 281·A 
("ll'tH'ken · Compensation"). 
/51 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the 
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281·A, Contractor shall 
maintain. and require any subcontntctor or assignee to secure 
and maintain. payment of Workers' Compensation in 
connection with activities which the person proposes to 
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall 
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his 
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the 
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter281·A and any 
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be auached and are 
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be 
responsible for payment of any Wooters' Compensation 
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor. or 
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might 
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Wooters' 
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the 
Services under this Agreement. 

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to 
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall 
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of 
Default, or nny subsequent Event of Default. No express 
failure to en force any Event of Default shall be deemed a 
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the 
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default 
on the part of the Contractor. 

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party 
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the 
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United 
States Post Office addressed to the parries at the addresses 
given in blocl.s 1.2 and 1.4. herein. 

18. A \IENOME~T. This Agreement may be amended. 
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed 
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such 
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and 
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no 

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to 
State law, rule or policy. 

19. CONSTRIX TION OF ACREF.I\1E:'IT AND TER.\lS. 
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance "'ith the 
laws of the State of 1\ew Hampshire. and is binding upon and 
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective 
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement 
is tlte wording chosen by the parties to exprc>S their mutual 
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or 
in favor of any party. 

20. T HIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to 
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be 
construed to confer any such benefit. 

21. HEAOlNCS. The headings throughout the Agreement 
are for reference purposes only. and the words contained 
therein shall in no way be beld to explain. modify. amplify or 
aid in the interpretation, consti'UC1ion or meaning of the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set 
forth in the attached EXIIIBIT Care incorporated herein by 
reference. 

23. St:V£RABILJTV. In the event any of the provisions of 
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
be contrary to any state or fcdcrol law. the remaini11g 
provisions of this Agreement will remain in fu ll force nnd 
effecL 

24. ENTIRE AC REEMENT. This Agreement. which may 
be executed in a number of counterpartS, each of which shall 
be deemed an original. constitutes the entire Agreement and 
understanding bct\\ecn the panies. and supersedes all prior 
AgreementS and undemandings relating hereto. 
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New Hampshire Deplrtment of Health and Human Services 
Recovery Housing for Individuals with Oplold Use Disorder 

Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services 

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language 
assistance services they will provide to persons with limited English 
proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services 
within ten (1 0) days of the contract effective date. 

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the 
New Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have 
an impact on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the 
right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this 
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith. 

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no 
services shall continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not 
be liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, 
unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received 
from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 
biennia. 

1.4. The Contractor shall provide one (1) Recovery Residence for individuals 
with Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) who are in need of housing in a 
supported, safe, recovery housing environment in compliance with the 
appropriate NARR standard. 

2. Scope of Services 

2.1. The Contractor shall provide a physical recovery housing facility to 
include, but is not limited to: 

2.1.1. Assistance to individuals to transition to independent living. 

2.1.2. Safe, stable and sober environment. 

2.1.3. Meeting state and/or local occupancy requirements. 

2.2. The Contractor shall meet the needs of applicants/residents requmng 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accommodations. Additionally, the 
Contractor shall: 

2.2.1. Provide documentation and maintain the property is in 
compliance with local health and safety codes. 

2.2.2. Ensure the residence meets all Life and Safety codes, as 
required. 

2.2.3. Ensure that all house managers and/or staff are trained to 
deliver Naloxone in the case of an overdose. 

2.2.4. Meet all information security and privacy requirements as set by 
the Department. 

Hope on Haven Htll 

RFA-2019-BOAS..02-RECOV-04 
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N- Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Recovery Housing for Individuals wfttl Opiold Use Disorder 

Exhibit A 

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure Naloxone is available and accessible in the 
residence. 

2.4. Organizational/Administrative Standards 

2.4.1 . The Contractor shall have a written mission and vision 
statement. 

2.4.2. The Contractor shall have a written code of ethics for the 
Recovery Residence. 

2.4.3. The Contractor shall comply with state and federal 
requirements. If required, documents such as licenses and 
certificates of occupancy must be visible for public view. 

2.4.4. The Contractor shall clearly identify the responsible person(s) 
responsible for the Recovery Residence to all residents. 

2.4.5. The Contractor shall ensure the living environment is free from 
drugs and alcohol, in accordance with written policies and 
procedures. 

2.4.6. The Contractor shall provide proof of written permission to 
operate a Recovery Residence on the property from the land 
owner/landlord, if applicable. 

2.5. Fiscal Management Standards 

2.5.1. The Contractor shall keep accurate records and must have the 
ability to provide residents with statements upon request. The 
records and/or statements shall include, but are not limited to: 

2.5.1.1. Complete records of charges. 

2.5.1.2. Payments. 

2.5.1.3. Deposits. 

2.6. Operation Standards 

2.6.1 . The Contractor shall ensure emergency numbers, protocols and 
evacuation maps are established and easily accessed. 

2.7. Recovery Support Standards 

2.7.1. The Contractor shall maintain a staffing plan, in accordance with 
NARR Standards. 

2.7.2. The Contractor shall implement an applicant screening process 
that will maintain a safe and supportive environment for all 
individuals in recovery. 

2. 7 .3. The Contractor shall ensure confidentiality laws are adhered to. 

2. 7 .4. The Contractor shall keep resident's records secure from 
unauthorized access. 

Hope on Haven H1ll Exhibit A Contractor Initials S}[) 

Date 31'1) 111 RF A-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-04 Page 2 of s 



N- Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Recovery Housing for Individuals with Opiold Use Disorder 

Exhibit A 

2.7.5. The Contractor shall establish and administer a grievance policy 
and procedure, as provided to each resident prior to enrollment. 

2.7.6. The Contractor shall provide a safe, structured and recovery 
supportive environment through established and written 
residents' rights and requirements. 

2.7.7. The Contractor shall establish an intake/assessment protocol for 
accepting new clients. 

2.7.8. The Contractor shall establish an orientation process that will 
ensure all fees and charges residents incur are presented to 
applicants prior to residency. The Contractor shall ensure 
policies are presented to potential applicants in writing and are 
verbally explained in a simple and easy manner conducive to 
the individual's understanding. 

2.7.9. The Contractor shall provide a mutually supportive and 
recovery-oriented relationships between residents and/or staff 
through: 

2.7.9.1. Peer-based interactions; 

2.7.9.2. House meetings; 

2.7.9.3. Community gatherings; 

2.7.9.4. Recreational events; and/or 

2.7.9.5. Other social activities. 

2.7.10. The Contractor shall adopt recovery-supportive, alcohol and 
drug-free environments through written and enforced policies 
and procedures that address the following: 

2.7.10.1 . Residents that return to alcohol and/or drug use; 

2.7.10.2. Hazardous item searches; 

2. 7.1 0.3. Drug-screening and or toxicology protocols; and 

2.7.10.4. Prescription and non-prescription medication usage; 
and 

2.7.10.5. Prescription and non-prescription storage. 

2.7.11. The Contractor shall work with residents to develop and 
participate in an individualized recovery plan. 

2.7.12. The Contractor shall inform residents on the wide range of local 
treatment and recovery support services available to them. 

2.7.13. The Contractor shall provide nonclinical, recovery support and 
related services. 

Hope on Haven Hill 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Recovery Housing for Individuals with Oplold Use Disorder 

Exhibit A 

2.7.14. The Contractor shall encourage residents to attend supportive, 
self-help groups and/or outside professional services. 

2.8. Property Standards 

2.8.1. 

2.8.2. 

2.8.3. 

2.8.4. 

2.8.5. 

2.8.6. 

2.8.7. 

2.8.8. 

2.8.9. 

2.8.10. 

2.8.11 . 

2.8.12. 

2.8.13. 

2.8.14. 

The Contractor shall ensure the residence meets all life, safety, 
health and building codes. 

The Contractor shall provide residents with storage for food and 
personal items. 

The Contractor shall provide fully-functioning fire extinguishers 
in plain sight and/or clearly marked locations. 

The Contractor shall install operational smoke detectors. 

The Contractor shall install operational carbon monoxide 
detectors if gas appliances are present. 

The Contractor shall ensure a smoke/tobacco-free internal living 
environment. 

The Contractor shall provide a large community room that w ill 
accommodate house meetings. 

The Contractor shall provide sleeping quarters that adhere to 
local and state square footage requirements. 

The Contractor shall provide lavatory facilities that adhere to 
local and state requirements if applicable. If there are no 
requirements, selected vendor(s) shall provide one (1) sink, one 
(1) toilet and one (1) shower per six (6) residents. 

The Contractor shall provide on-site laundry services. 

The Contractor shall maintain the interior and exterior of the 
residence in a functional. safe, and clean manner. 

The Contractor shall provide spaces to hold individual meetings 
accessible to each resident, as scheduled by the Contractor. 

The Contractor shall provide appliances in a good and working 
condition. 

The Contractor shall provide furniture in good condition. 

2.8.15. The Contractor shall provide routine and emergency repairs to 
all aspects of the residence. 

2.9. Good Neighbor Standards 

2.9.1. The Contractor shall provide the residence's responsible parties' 
information to neighbors upon request. The Contractor shall 
ensure the responsible party responds to neighbor's complaints. 

Hope on Haven Hill 
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N- Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Recovery Housing for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder 

Exhibit A 

2.9.2. The Contractor shall establish and enforce parking rules when 
warranted. 

3. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards 

3.1 . The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and 
implementation plans associated with SOR funded activities to ensure 
services are in place within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date. 

3.1 .1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required 
timeframe, the Contractor shall submit an updated 
implementation plan to the Department for approval to outline 
anticipated service start dates. 

3.1.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and 
liquidate unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety 
(90) days of the contract effective date. 

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure that clients receiving financial aid for recovery 
housing utilizing SOR funds shall only be in a recovery housing facility that 
is aligned with the National Alliance for Recovery Residences standards 
and registered with the State of New Hampshire, Bureau of Drug and 
Alcohol Services in accordance with current NH Administrative Rules. 

3.3. The Contractor shall assist clients with enrolling in public or private health 
insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage. 

3.4. The Contractor shall accept clients for MAT and facilitate access to MAT 
on-site or through referral for all clients supported with SOR Grant funds, 
as clinically appropriate. 

3.5. The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs 
program for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS. 

3.6. The Contractor shall ensure that all clients are regularly screened for 
tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the Quitline as part of 
treatment planning. 
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New Hampshire O.~rtment of Health and Human Services 
Recovery Housing for Individuals with Oplold Use Disorder 

ExhlbitA·1 

ARR 
National Association 

of Recovery Residences 

Standard for Recovery Residences 

RFA-2019-SOA$.02-RECOV 

Version 1.0 

September 2011 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlcea 
Recovery Housing for Indiv iduals with Opioid Use Disorder 
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RESIDENCE 

STAFF 

RFA-201!1-BDAS-02-RECOV 

LEVEL I 

Peer-Run 

Democratically run 

Manual or P& P 

Drug Screening 

House meetings 

Self help meetings 
encouraged 

Generally single family 
residences 

No paid positions w~hin the 
residence 

Perhaps an overseeing 
officer 
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RECOVERY RESIDENCE LEVELS OF SUPPORT 

• 

LEVEL II LEVEL Il l LEVEL IV 

Monitored Supervised Service Provider 

' 

• House manager or senior • Organizational hierarchy Overseen organizational 
resident 

Administrative oversight for 
hierarchy 

• Policy and Procedures service providers Clinical and administrative 

Policy and Procedures 
supervision 

• Licensing varies from state 
Policy and Procedures 

to state Licensing varies from state ! 

to state 

• House rules provide • Life skill development Clinical services and 
structure emphasis programming are provided 

Peer run groups Clinocal services utilized in 
in house 

outside community Life skill development 
Drug Screening • Service hours provided in 

• House meetings house 

• Involvement in self help 
and/or treatment services 

• Primarily single family • Varies- all types of All types -often a step 
residences resident ial settings down phase within care 

Possibly apartments or 
continuum of a treatment 

other dwelling types 
center 

May be a more inst~utional 
in environment 

. 

• N. least 1 compensated • Facility manager Credentialed staff 
positiOn 

Certified staff or case 
managers 
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National Association of Recovery Residences 
Member Standards 

1. Organizational/Administrative Standards Levell 

1.1. Recovery Residences are legal business entities as 
Strongly evidenced by business licenses or incorporation 

Recommend 
documents; 

1.2. Recovery Residences have a written mission and vision 
X statement; 

1.3. Recovery Residences have a written code of ethics; X 

1 .4. Recovery Residences property owners/operators carry Strongly 
general liability insurance; Recommend 

1.5. Recovery Residences comply with state and federal 
requirements. 

X 
If required, documents such as licenses and certificates 
of occupancy are visible for public view; 

1.6. Recovery Residences clearly identify the responsible 
person(s) in charge of the Recovery Residence to all X 
residents; 

1.7. Recovery Residences clearly state the minimum 
qualifications, duties, and responsibilities of the 

n/a responsible person(s) in a written job description and/or 
contract; 

1.8. Recovery Residences provide drug and alcohol free X environments; 

1.9. Recovery Residences collect and report accurate 
Strongly process and outcome data for continuous quality 

Recommend improvement; 

1.10. Recovery Residences have written permission from the 
owner of record to operate a Recovery Residence on X 
their property; 

2. Fiscal Management Standards Levell 

2.1. Recovery Residences maintain an accounting system 
that fully documents all resident financial transactions X 
such as fees, payments and deposits; 

3. Operation Standards Levell 

3.1. Recovery Residences post emergency procedures and 
nla staff phone number in conspicuous locations; 

3.2. Recovery Residences post emergency numbers. 
X protocols and evacuation maps; 
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Level II 

Strongly 
Recommend 

X 

X 

Strongly 
Recommend 

X 

X 

n/a 

X 

Strongly 
Recommend 

X 

Level II 

X 

Level II 

n/a 

X 

Levell II Level IV 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

Level Ill Level IV 

X X 

Level Ill Level IV 

X X 

n/a n/a 

Contractor Initial~ J q 
Oat 



National Association of Recovery Residences 
Member Standards 

4. Recovery Support Standards Levell 

4.1. Recovery Residences maintain a staffing plan; If Applicable 

4.2. Recovery Residences use an applicant screening 
process that helps maintain a safe and supportive 
environment for a specifiC group of persons in re<:overy, 

4.3. Recovery Residences adhere to applicable 
confidentialtty laws; 

4.4. Recovery Residences keep resident records secure with 
access limited to authorized staff only; 

4.5. Recovery Residences have a grievance policy and 
procedure for residents; 

4 6. Recovery Residences create a safe, structured, and 
recovery supportive environment through written arid 
enforced residents' rights and requirements; 

4.7. Re<:overy Residences have an orientation process that 
clearly communicates residents' rights and requirements 
prior to them signing any agreements; collects 
demographic and emergency contact information and 
provides new residents with written instructions on 
emergency procedures and staff contact information; 

4.8 Recovery Residences foster mutually supportive and 
recovery-oriented relationships between residents arid/or 
staff through peer-based interactions, house meetings, 
communtty gatherings, recreational events, and/or other 
social activities; 

4.9. Recovery Residences foster recovery-supportive, 
alcohol and drug-free environments through written and 
enforced policies and procedures that address: residents 
who retum to alcohol and/or drug use; hazardous item 
searches; drug-screening and or toxicology protocols; 
and prescription and non-prescription medications usage 
arid storage; 

4.10. Recovery Residences encourage each resident to 
develop and participate in their own personalized 
recovery plan; 

4.11. Recovery Residences inform residents on the wide 
range of local treatment and re<:overy support services 
available to them including: 12 step or other mutual 
support groups, recover communtty centers, recovery 
ministries, recovery-focused leisure activities and 
recovery advocacy opportunities; 
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X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Level II 

If Applicable 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Level Ill Level IV 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 
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National Association of Recovery Residences 
Member Standards 

4. Recovery Support Standards (Cont.) Levell 

4.1 2. Recovery Residences provide nonclinical, recovery 
support and related services; 

4.1 3. Recovery Residences encourage residents to attend 
mutually supportive, self help groups and/or outside 
professional services; 

4. 14. Recovery Residences provide access to scheduled and 
structured peer-based services such as didactic 
presentations; 

4.15. Recovery Residences provide access to 3rd party 
chmcal services in accordance to State laws, 

4.16. Recovery Residences offer life skills development 
services: 

4.17. Recovery Residences offer clinical services in 
accordance to State laws; 

5. Property Stllndards 

5.1. Recovery Residences abide by all local building and fire 
safety codes; 

5.2. Recovery Residences provide each residents with food 
and personal item storage; 

5.3. Recovery Residences place functioning fire 
extinguishers in plain sight and/or in clearly marked 
locations : 

5.4. Recovery Residences have functioning smoke detectors 
installed. If the residence has gas appliances, 
functioning carbon monoxide detectors are installed; 

5.5. Recovery Residences provide a non smoking internal 
living environment; 

5.6. Recovery Residences have a community room large 
enough to accommodate house meetings and sleeping 
rooms that adhere to local and state square footage 
requirements; 

5.7. Recovery Residences have one sink. toilet and shower 
per six residents or adhere to local and state 
requirements; 

5.8. Recovery Residences have laundry services that are 
access1ble to all residents; 
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X 

X 

n/a 

nla 

nla 

nla 

Levell 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Level II 

X 

X 

nla 

nla 

n/a 

n/a 

Level II 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Level Ill Level IV 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

n/a X 

Level Ill Level IV 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 
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National Association of Recovery Residences 
Member Standards 

6. Property Standards (Cont.) Levell 

5.9. Recovery Residences maintain the interior and exterior 
of the property in a functional. safe and dean manor that X 
is compabble wrth the neighborhood; 

5.10. Recovery Residences have meeting spaces that 
X accommodate all residents; 

5.11. Recovery Residences have appliances that are in 
X working order and furniture that is in good condition; 

5.12. Recovery Residences address routme and emergency 
X repairs in a timely fashion; 

6. Good Neighbor Standards Levell 

6.1. Recovery Residences provide neighbors with the 
responsible person(s) contact information upon request. 

X The responsible person(s} responds to neighbor's 
complaints, even if it is not possible to resOlve the issue; 

6.2. Recovery Residences have rules regarding noise, Strongly smoking, loitering and par1<ing that are responsive to 
Recommend neighbor's reasonable complaints; 

6.3. Recovery Residences have and enforce par1<ing 
X courtesy rules where street parking is scarce; 
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Level II 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Level II 

X 

Strongly 
Recommend 

X 

Level Ill Level IV 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

Level Ill Level IV 

X X 

X X 

X X 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Recovery Housing for Individuals with Oploid Use Disorder 

Exhibit B 

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment 
1) The State shall pay the Contractor an amount nol lo exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price 

Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services. 
1.1. This Agreement is funded with funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 

Administration, State Opioid Response Grant, CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI081685. 
1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the servioes in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in complianoe 

with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded 
Contractor's current andfor future funding. 

2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows: 

2. 1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the 
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item. 

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth (20"'} 
working day of each month, which identifieS and requests reimbursement for authorized 
expenses incurred in the prior month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and 
returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep 
records of their activities related to Department programs and services. 

2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each 
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available. 
The Contractor will keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs 
and services. 

2.4. The final invoioe shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form 
P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date. 

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to 
Melissa.Girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to: 

Melissa Girard, SOR Finance Manager 
Department of Health and Human Services 
BOAS, State Opioid Response 
129 Pleasant Street, 3'" Floor 
Concord, NH 03301 

2.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified 
in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B. 

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts 
between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price 
limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written 
agreement of both parties and may be made w~hout obtaining approval of the Governor and 
Executive Council. 
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N- Hampshire Department of Health and Human S.rvlces 
Exhlblt C 

SPECIAl pROVISIONS 

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor 
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible 
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and 
agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility 
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance w~h applicable federal and 
state laws, regulattons, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures. 

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by 
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by 
the Department. 

3. Documentation: In add~ion to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor 
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all 
information necessary to support an eligibil~y determination and such other information as the 
Department requests. The Contractor shall fumosh the Department with all forms and documentation 
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or requore 

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as 
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The 
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out 
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair 
hearing in accordance with Department regulations. 

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that ~ is a breach of this Contract to accept or 
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or 
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in ExhiM A of this 
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is 
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by 
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor. 

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any 
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties 
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for 
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract 
and no payments shall be made tor expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided 
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the 
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services. 

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaoned in the Contract, nothing 
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services 
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate 
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a 
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party 
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final 
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used 
payments hereunder to reimburse ~ems of expense other than such costs, or has received payment 
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals 
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to: 

7.1. 
7.2. 

00i13i18 

Renegotoate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established; 
Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in 
excess of costs; 
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New Hampshire De.,_o1ment of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit c 

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make 
such repayment shall constitute an Event of DefauH hereunder. When the Contractor is 
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to 
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services 
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at 
any time during the period of retention of records established herein. 

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY: 

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor 
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period: 

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs 
and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all 
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be 
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and 
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and 
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books. records, and original evidence of costs such as 
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, mventories, valuations of 
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the 
Department 

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of 
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and 
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records 
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain 
payment for such services. 

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the 
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patienVrecipient of services. 

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual aud~ to the Department within 60 days after the close of the 
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of 
OffiCe of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audrts of States, Local Governments, and Non 
Profrt Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, 
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as 
they pertain to financial compliance audits. 

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the 
Department, the United States Department of HeaHh and Human Services, and any of their 
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to 
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts 

9.2. Audit Liabilities· In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is 
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state 
or federal audrt exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the 
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an 
exception. 

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected 
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not 
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of 
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to 
public offiCials requiring such information in connection with their offiCial duties and for purposes 
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that 
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not 
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with 
respect to purchased services hereunder is proh1bited except on written consent of the recipient, his 
attorney or guardian. 
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N- Hampshint Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit c 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in 
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever. 

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following 
times if requested by the Department. 
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of 

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and 
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to 
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form 
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department. 

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term 
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall 
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal 
and other information required by the Department. 

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the 
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation 
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, 
by the terms of the Contract are to be perfonned after the end of the term of this Contract and/or 
survive the terminatiOn of the Contract) shall terminate. provided however, that if, upon review of the 
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall dosallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as 
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion. to deduct the amount of such 
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. 

13. Credits: All documents. notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared 
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following 
statement: 
13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State 

of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services. Wlth funds provided in part 
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or 
required, e .g .. the United States Department of Health and Human Services. 

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video. audoo) produced or 
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production, 
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials 
produced, including. but not limited to, brochures. resource directories, protocols or guidelines, 
posters. or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout 
prior written approval from DHHS. 

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities 
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, 
state. county and muniCipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Offocer or offocers 
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the 
operation of the facohty or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or 
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services, 
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and 
condit ions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements. the 
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that. during the term of this Contract the fac-ilities shall 
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Olfice of the Fire Marshal and 
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by­
taws and regulations. 

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment 
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civol Rights, Offoce of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has 
received a single award of $500.000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or 
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N- Hampshire Oepllrtment of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit c 

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Fonm to the 
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees 
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an 
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non­
profrt organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the 
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification fonm to the OCR to claim the exemption. 
EEOP Certificalion Fonms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/abouVocr/pdfs/cert.pdf. 

17. L.imited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarifoed by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to 
Services for persons with Limited English ProfiCiency, and resu~ing agency guidance, national origin 
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English profiCiency (LEP). To ensure 
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of lhe Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable sleps to ensure that LEP persons have 
meaningful access to ils programs. 

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The 
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed lhe Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48 
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000) 

CoNTRAcTOR EMPlOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS ANO REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPlOYEES OF 
WHISll.EBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013) 

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights 
and remedies in I he pilol program on Contractor employee whistleblower proJections established at 
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 
112-23g) and FAR 3.908. 

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce, 
of employee whtstleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S. C. 4712, as described in section 
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation. 

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause. including this paragraph (c), in all 
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold. 

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recog nizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with 
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience, 
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to 
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perfonm the delegated 
function(s). This is accomplished through a wntten agreement that specifies activities and reporting 
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if 
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subjact to the same contractual 
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor ts responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance 
with those conditiOnS. 

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following: 

19.1 . Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perfomn the activities. before delegating 
the function 

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting 
responsibllrties and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's 
performance is not adequate 

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis 
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and 
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed 

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion. review and approve all subcontracts. 

If the Contractor identifies defiCiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall 
take corrective action. 

20. Contract Definitions: 

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department 
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established 
in accordance with state and federal laws. regulations, rules and orders. 

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Heanh and Human Services. 

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a 
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or 
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided 
under the Contract. 

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall 
mean that period of time or that specifted activity determined by the Department and specified 
in Exhibit B of the Contract. 

20.5. FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws. regulations, rules, orders, and 
policies. etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean 
all such laws. regulations. etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time. 

20.6 . SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this 
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services. 

00/13118 
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RE\IJSIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is 
replaced as follows: 

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State 
hereunder, including without limRation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, 
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, 
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by 
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise 
mod~ies the appropriation or availabilay of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of 
Services provided in Exhib" A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the 
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In 
the event of a reduction, tenmination or modifiCation of appropriated or available funds, the 
State shall have the right to wRhhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The 
State shall have the right to reduce, tenminate or mod~ services under this Agreement 
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, tenmination or modification. 
The State shall not be requ1red to transfer funds from any other source or account into the 
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Aocount Number, or any other 
aocount, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable. 

2. Subparagraph 1 o of the General Provisions of this contract, Tenmination, is amended by adding the 
following language; 

10.1 The State may tenminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of 
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the Slate is exercising its 
option to terminate the Agreement. 

10.2 In the event of early tenmination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early 
tenmination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the 
Agreement, including but not lim"ed to, identifying the present and future needs of clients 
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs. 

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate ~h the State and shall promptly prov1de detailed 
infonmation to support the Transition Plan including, but not limRed to, any infonmation or 
data requested by the State related to the tenmination of the Agreement and Transition Plan 
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as 
requested. 

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving 
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity 
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for 
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan. 

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected Individuals 
about the trans"ion. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in ~ 
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above. 

3. Renewal: 
The Department reserves the nght to eX1end this Agreement for up to two (2) additional years, 
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and 
approval of the Governor and Executrve Council. 
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CERTifiCATION REGARDING DRUG-fREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENJS 

The Contractor identified in Section 1 .3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100.090, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identifted in Sections 
1.1 1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

ALTERNATIVE I- FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE -CONTRACTORS 

This certJfiCation is required by the regulabons implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free 
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100.090, Title V, Subtrtle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31 , 
1989 regulations were amended and pubtrshed as Pan II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Regrster (pages 
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference. sub~rantees and sub­
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintarn a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the 
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub~rantees and sub-contractors) that is a State 
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certrfiCates for 
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a 
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant False 
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or 
temnlnation of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should 
send it to: 

Commissioner 
NH Department of Health and Human Services 
129 Pleasant Street, 
Concord, NH 03301-6505 

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will conbnue to provide a drug-free workplace by 
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distlibution, 

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited rn the grantee's 
workplace and specifying the actrons that w~l be taken against employees for violatron of such 
prohrbition; 

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to infomn employees about 
1 .2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and 
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations 

occurring in the workplace: 
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be 

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a): 
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of 

employment under the grant. the employee will 
1.4.1. Abide by the temns of the statement: and 
1.4.2. Notify the employer in wrrbng of his or her conviction for a violabon of a criminal drug 

staMe occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such 
conviction; 

1 .5. Notifying the agency in wnting, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwrse receiving actual notrce of such conviction. 
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, induding position title, to every grant 
officer on whose grant actrvity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency 
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the 

identification number(s) of each affected grant; 
1.6. Taking one of the following act10ns, W1th1n 30 calendar days of receiving notice under 

subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted 

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including 

termination, consistent with the requirements ot the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 

amended, or 
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or 

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, 

law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; 

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to mainta•n a drug-free workplace through 

implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6. 

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of wor1< done in 

connection with the SpeCific grant 

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location) 

Check [] if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. 
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CERTifiCATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 

Secbon 319 of Public Law 101-121 , Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 

31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 

and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following CertifiCation: 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES- CONTRACTORS 

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION- CONTRACTORS 

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS 

Programs (indiCate appliCable program covered): 

"Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Tide IV-A 

'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D 

' Social Services BlOCk Grant Program under Tide XX 

' Medicaid Program under Tille XIX 
•community Services Block Grant under Title VI 

'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her know1edge and belief, that: 

1. No Federal appropnated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the unders.igned, to 

any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member 

of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 

connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 

modificabon of any Federal contract. grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention 

sub-grantee or sub-contractor). 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, 

an officer or employee of Congress. or an employee of a Member of Congress m connection with this 

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub­

contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to 

Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.) 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 

document tor sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants. and contracts under grants, 

loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of tact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 

was made or entered into. Submission of this certifiCation is a prerequistte for making or entering into this 

transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 

certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 

each such fatlure. 

Date I 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION 

AND OJHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

The Contractor identified in Secbon 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the prov1sions of 

Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 1254g and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment. 

Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's 

representabve, as identified 1n Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following 

Certification: 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 

1. By sigmng and submitting th1s proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the 

certification set out below. 

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial 

of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an 

explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be 

considered in connection with the NH Department of HeaHh and Human Services' (DHHS) 

determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary 

participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in 

this transaction. 

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 

when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective 

primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, 1n addition to other remedies 

available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to 

whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns 

that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 

circumstances. 

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," " ineligible," "lower tier covered 

transacbon, • "participant• •person, • "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and 

"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and 

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the 

attached definitions. 

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the 

proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 

transaction Wlth a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 

from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS. 

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the 

clause titled "CertificatiOn Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -

Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered 

transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a 

lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded 

from the covered transaction, unless ~ knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may 

decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligib1hty of its principals. Each 

participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties). 

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records 

in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that whoch is normally possessed by a prudent 

person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions. if a participant in a 

covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 

suspended, debarred. Ineligible. or voluntarily exoluded from participation in this transaction, in 

addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction 

for cause or default. 

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

11. The prospective primary part1cipant certifies to the best of 1ts knowtedge and belief, that it and rts 

principals: 
11.1. are not presendy debarred. suspended. proposed for debarment, declared ineligible. or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency. 

11.2. have not within a three-year period preced1ng this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had 

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 

connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local) 

transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 

statutes or commission of embezzlement. theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 

records. making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 

(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b) 

of this certification; and 
11.4. have not within a three-year period preced1ng this application/proposal had one or more public 

transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 

12. Where the prospective pnmary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 

certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as 

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 

13.1. are not presendy debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in th1s transaction by any federal department or agerocy. 

13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above. such 

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will 

include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and 

Voluntary Exclusion- Lower r~er Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered 

transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

Date 
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The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor"s 

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 

certification: 

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable 

federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include: 

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S. C. Section 3789d) which prohibits 

recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in 

the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race. color, religion. national origin, and sex. The Act 

requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportun~y Plan; 

· the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by 

reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this 

statute are prohib~ed from doscriminatlng, e~er In employment practices or in the delivery of services or 

benefits, on the basis of race, color, religiOn, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal 

Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; 

-the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial 

assistance from doscriminatlng on the basis of race, color, or national origon in any program or activity), 

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial 

assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of 

services or benefits, in any program or activity; 

· the Americans With Disabil~oes Act of 1990 (42 U.S. C. Secttons 12131-34), which prohibits 

discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons w~h disabilities in employment. State and local 

government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation; 

·the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 168~). which prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs; 

· the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the 

basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financlal assistance. It does not inolude 

employment discrimination, 

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42 

(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination: Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies 

and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community 

organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making 

criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations; 

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- Equal Treatment for Faith-Based 

Organizations); and WhisUeblower protections 41 U.S. C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization 

Act (NOAA) for F1scal Year 2013 (Pub. l. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the P1lot Program for 

Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against 

reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts. 

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the 

agency awards the grant False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for 

suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or 

debarment 

ExhibiG 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
ExhibltG 

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of 

d1scrim1nation after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or seK 

against a recip1ent of funds, the recip1ent will forward a copy of the find1ng to the OffiCe for Civil Rights, to 

the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and 

to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to eKecute the following 

certification: 

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions 

indicated above. 
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CERDFJCAT!ON REGARDING EtooRONMENT AL TOBACCO SMOKE 

Pubfic Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Chtldren Act of 1994 

(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or 

contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education, 

or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs eilher 

directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract. loan, or loan guarantee. The 

law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by 

Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment Failure 

to comply with the provisions of the law may resuft in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to 

$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity. 

The Contractor identified tn Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's 

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 

certification: 

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply 

with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994. 
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HEALTH INSURANCE pORTABILITY ACT 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to 

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104- 191 and 

with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 

CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business 

Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that 

receive. use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered 

Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. 

(1) Qefjnjtjons. 

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45, 

Code of Federal Regulations. 

b. "Business Associate• has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code 

of Federal Regulations. 

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 ofTitle45, 

Code of Federal Regulations. 

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" 

in 45 CFR Section 164.501 . 

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation· in 45CFR 

Section 164.501 . 

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations· 

in 45 CFR Section 164.501. 

g. "HITECH Acf means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 

Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 

2009. 

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of1996. Public Law 

104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health 

Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. 

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103 

and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 

CFR Section 164.501 (g). 

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 

Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States 

Department of Health and Human Services. 

k. "Protected Health Information· shall have the same meaning as the term •protected health 

information• in 45 CFR Section 160.103, 1imited to the information created or received by 

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. 

3/2014 e.toibit I 
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I. "Reauired bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45CFR 

Section 164.103. 

m. "Secretary• shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or 

his/her designee. 

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected 

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto. 

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not 

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, 

unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by 

a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards 

Institute. 

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the 

HITECH 
Act. 

(2) Bys!ness Associate Use and Qjsc!osyre of Protected Hgaltb lnformatjon 

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health 

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under 

Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate , including but not limited to all 

its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit 

PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PH I: 

I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate; 

II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or 

Ill. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered 

Entity. 

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a 

third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) 

reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and 

used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was 

disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business 

Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification 

Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained 

knowledge of such breach. 

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to 

provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a 

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying 

Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and 

to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business 
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all 

remedies. 

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to 

be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security 

safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 

shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of 

such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards. 

(3) Obligations and Act jy jties of Bysjness Associate. 

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately 

after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected 

health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured 

protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the 

protected health information of the Covered Entity. 

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes 

aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be 

limited to: 

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the 

types of identifters and the likelihood of re-identification; 

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the 

disclosure was made; 
o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed 

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been 

mitigated. 

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the 

breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the 

Covered Entity. 

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and 

Breach Notification Rule. 

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books 

and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or 

received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for 

purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HI PM and the Privacy and 

Security Rule. 

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have 

access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same 

restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including 

the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity 

shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate 

agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI 

3/2014 Emitlol l 
Heallh lnstKance Portabiity 1v:1 
Buslness Assodate Agreement 

Page 3 ol6 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit I 

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such 

business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard 

contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of 

protected health information. 

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, 

Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all 

records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure 

of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine 

Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement. 

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, 

Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the 

Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the 

requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. 

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an 

amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record 

Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for 

amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its 

obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526. 

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to 

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an 

individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 

164.528. 

j. Within ten ( 1 0) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a 

request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available 

to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations 

to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR 

Section 164.528. 

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI 

directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) 

business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the 

responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the 

individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business 

Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 

shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify 

Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. 

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the 

Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI 

received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the 

Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or 

destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed loin 

the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the 

Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those 

purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business 
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the 

Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to 

Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. 

(4) Obljqatlons of Coyered Entltv 

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its 

Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 

164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's 

use or disclosure of PHI. 

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation 

of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or 

disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 

164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. 

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or 

disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, 

to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of 

PHI. 

(5) Terrnlnatjon for Cayse 

(6) 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

312014 

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this 

Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered 

Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate 

Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately 

terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the 

alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity 

determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the 

violation to the Secretary. 

Mjscellaneoys 

Definitions and Reoulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, 

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended 

from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to 

a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as 

amended. 

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is 

necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered 

Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and 

Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law. 

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights 

with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. 

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved 

to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. 
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any 

person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or 

conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the 

terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable. 

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or 

destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the 

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the 

standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I. 

Department of Heanh and Human Services 

The State 

------ ~ =>c.....="=C ~ l::t> 

Nam~ Contractor 

~Wfl\_~ 
Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative 

Name o~~~~ ~retffita'ifve 
Title of Authorized Representative 

'1 /aq /15 
Date ' 

312014 

S ba ml'l '"1:> ra,~ 
Name of Authorized Representative 

r;;;XeC-«.-hv~']);.,...c-~ 
Title of Authorized Representative 

:3{.,)1'1 
Date ( I 
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CERDACAT!ON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY 

ACT fFFATAI COMPUANCE 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual 

Federal grants equal to or greater than 525,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on 

data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the 

initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over 

S25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award. 

In accordance with 2 CFR Part170 (Reporting Subaward and ExecutiVe Compensation Information), the 

Department of HeaHh and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any 

subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements: 

1. Name of entity 
2. Amount of award 
3. Funding agency 
4. NAICS code for contracts I CFDA program number for grants 

5. Program source 
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action 

7. Location of the entity 
8. Principle place of performance 

9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS#) 

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives it 

10. 1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those 

revenues are greater than S25M annually and 

10.2. Compensation informatoon is not already available through reporting to the SEC. 

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which 

the award Of award amendment Is made. 

The Contractor identifoed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252, 

and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees 

to have the Conb'actor's representative, as identified on Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions 

execute the following Certification: 
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH 

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply woth all applicable provisions of the Federal 

Financial Accountabihty and Transparency Act. 

CU.'DHH81tt0713 

Contractor Name: -+4rt ~ O'l'\. ~ ve Yl ~\ \ 

~ 
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FORMA 

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the 

below listed questions are true and accurate. 

1. The DUNS number for your entity is CJ 'i?O 0 <2f' .;<Of? 

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization 
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, 
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual 

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or 

cooperative agreements? 

./ NO ___ YES 

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here 

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following: 

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the execubves in your 
business or organization through periodic reportS filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securi1ies 

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986? 

___ NO ___ YES 

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here 

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following: 

4. The names and compensabon of the five most highly compensated officers tn your business or 

organization are as follows: 

Name: 

Name: 

Name: 

Name: 

Name: 

CUIOHHSJ110713 

Amount. 

Amount: 

Amount: 

Amount· 

Amount 
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DHHS lnfonnation Security Requirements 

A Definitions 

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document: 

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure, 

unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to 

situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than 

authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable 

information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health 

Information, • Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 

164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations. 

2. · computer Security lncidenr shall have the same meaning "Computer Security 

Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident 

Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department 

of Commerce. 

3. ·confidential Information" or ·confidential Data• means all confidential information 

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public 

assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance 

Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and 

Personally Identifiable Information. 

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by 

the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and 

Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted 

services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by 

state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to 

Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information {PI), Personal Financial 

Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI}, Social Security Numbers (SSN), 

Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information. 

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee, 

business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives 

DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract. 

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the 

regulations promulgated thereunder. 

6. "lncidenr means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy, 

which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a 

system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of 

a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware, 

firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or 

consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss 

or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic 
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized 
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction. 

7. "Open VVireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is 
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information 
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed. tested, and 
approved. by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open 
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI. 
PHI or confidential DHHS data. 

B. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish 
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal 
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc. , 
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked 
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden 
name, etc. 

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services. 

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the 
definition of "Protected Health Information· in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. § 
160.103. 

11. · security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic 
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments 
thereto. 

12. •unsecured Protected Health Information• means Protected Health Information that is 
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information 
unusable, unreadable. or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is 
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by 
the American National Standards lnst~ute. 

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR 

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information. 

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information 
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor, 
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not 
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation 
of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a 
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a 
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to 
consent or object to the disclosure. 

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional 
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI 
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such 
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional 
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. 

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End 

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for 
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. 

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives 
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this 
Contract. 

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA 

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing 
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have 

been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said 
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. 

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks 

or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS 

data. 

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if 
email is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of 

persons authorized to receive such information. 

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential 

Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be 
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. 

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file 

hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit 
Confidential Data. 

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground 

mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual. 

7. laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit 

Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected. 

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open 
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network {VPN) when 

remotely transmitting via an open wireless network. 

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to 

access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be 

installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be 

transmitted or accessed. 

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If 

End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will 

structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of 

information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will 

be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle {i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 

hours). 

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices. all 

data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. 

Ill. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS 

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this 

Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any 

derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted 

under this Contract. To this end, the parties must: 

A. Retention 

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in 

connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United 

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of 

cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup 

data and Disaster Recovery locations. 

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in 

place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems 

and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End 

Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. 

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data 

in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2 

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a 

FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and 

regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have 

currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti­

hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anli-malware utilities. The environment, as a 

V5. Last update 10109118 Exhibit K 
OHHS Information 

Security Requiremenls 
Page 4 of9 

Cootrectet fniba1s ~ 

Date~ 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection. 

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures ~s complete cooperation with the State's 

Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting 

infrastructure. 

B. Disposition 

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its 

sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for 

securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will 

obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the 

Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing. emergency, and or disaster 

recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of 

New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program 

in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media 

sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, 

degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines 

for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. 

Department of Commerce. The Contractor wil l document and certify in writing at 

time of the data destruction, and will provide wr~en certification to the Department 

upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to 

demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, 

regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly 

evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction. 

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this 

Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a 

secure method such as shredding. 

3. Unless otherwise specified. w~hin thirty (30) days of the termination of this 

Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data 

by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping. 

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY 

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any 

derivative data or files, as follows: 

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department 

confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery 

of contracted services. 

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department 

confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from 

creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the 

media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.). 
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to 
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information 
where applicable. 

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to 
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or 
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential infonnation. 

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement 
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a 
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security 
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum 
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. 

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable 
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies 
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of 
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be 
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to 
system access being authorized. 

8. If the Department detennines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement 
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the 
agreement 

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System 
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and 
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may 
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed 
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by 
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the 
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes. 

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire 
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless 
prior expre.ss written consent is obtained from the lnfonnation Security Office 
leadership member within the Department. 

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall 
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to 
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. 
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and 

costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to 

the breach. 

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the 

privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects 

maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less 
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, 

but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS 

Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b}, HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 

C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164} that govern protections for individually identifiable health 

information and as applicable under State law. 

13. Contractor a.grees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and 

physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to 

prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and 

scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements 

established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. 
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:l/www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm 

for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and 
procurement information relating to vendors. 

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident 

response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the 

State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses 

provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer 

security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New 

Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network. 

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this 

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to 

perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract. 

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users: 

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, 

implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS 

under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure. 

b. safeguard this information at all times. 

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or 

PFI are encrypted and password-protected. 

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being 

sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to 
receive such information. 

vs. Last update 10109118 Exhibit K 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law. 

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually 
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is 
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons 
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, 
biometric identifiers, etc.). 

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any 
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases, 
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when 
stored on portable media as required in section IV above. 

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and 
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based 
assessment of the circumstances involved. 

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be 
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure. 
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through 
a third party application. 

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS 
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this 
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, 
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data 
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. 

V. LOSS REPORTING 

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any 
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in 
Section VI. 

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in 
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification 
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and 
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures, 
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will: 

1. Identify Incidents; 

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents; 

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; 

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents 
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS lnfonnation Security Requirements 

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate 

Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different 

options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation 

measures. 

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as 

applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. 

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT 

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: 

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov 

B. DHHS Security Officer: 

DHHSinformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov 

VS. Last updato 1009118 Exhibit K 
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE 

I, Kevin Irwin , do hereby certify that: 
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Hope on Haven Hill 
Mission Statement 

To provide a nurturing therapeutic treatment home environment program to pregnant women 
with substance use disorder to reach and sustain sobriety and realize their potential as loving 
parents and healthy community members. 
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To the Board of Directors 
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. 
Rochester, New Ha~pshire 

Sanders ' Karcher 
Certified Public Accountants 

IND~~~NDENT AUDITOR'S ~PORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. 
(a nonprofit orqanization) as of June 30, 2017 which comprise the statement of 
financial position and the related statenents of activities, functional expenses 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Hana;e...,t• a Reaponaib1J.ity for the Fift&Dai.al Statulenta 

HanaqeJtent is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accountinq principles qenerally accepted 
in the Dnited States of America; this includes the desiqn, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor'• Re~eibility 

Our ruponsibility is co express an opinion on these financial statements basad 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with aucUtinq standardl! 
generally accepted in the United States of Aaerica. Those standards require tha t 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial atatesents are free from material ~sstatement. 
An audit involves performinq procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's JUdqment, includinq the assel!sment of the rislcl! of 
material aisstatement of the financial statament:s, whetner due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to desiqn audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control. Accordinqly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluatinq the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of siqnificant accounting estimates aade by management, as well as evaluatinq the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 
We believe that the aud!t evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opi nion. 
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Board of Directors 
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. 
Page 2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statement3 referred to above present fairly, in all 
material re3pects, t he financial position of Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. as of June 
30, 2017, and the changes in its net assets and its cash !lows for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of Anarica. 

5~i~ 
Sanders ' Karcher 
Portsmouth, New Hampshire 
January S, 2018 
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HOP& ON HAVEN HILL, INC. 
STATEMENT or FINANCIAL POSITION 

June 30, 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Grant receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

PROPERTY ' EQDIPM3NT, net of accumulated 
deprecia tion of $4,726 

OTHER ASSETS 
Security depos1ts 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIA3ILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
CU~q£NT LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Line of credit, Provident Bank 
Accrued payroll iteiiS 

Total current liabilities 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASStTS 

TOTAL LIABILITI::S AND NET ASStTS 

s 76,680 
48,568 
1, 459 

126,707 

220,846 

3,800 

s Jil.3S3 

$ 5,867 
24,999 
31,160 
62,026 

289,327 

$ JSI1m 

The accospanyinq notes are an integral part of these financial stat~ents. 
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nOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC. 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITitS 
Year ended June 30, 2017 

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES: 
PUBLIC SUPPORT 
Government grants and contracts 
Donations 
?otal public support 

REVENUES 
Interest 
In kind donations 
Miscel l aneous sales 

Total revenues 

Total public support and revenues 

EXP~S£5 
Program services 
General and administrative 
Fundraisinq 

Total expenses 

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICT60 NET ASSETS 

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 
Public support and qrants 
Restrictions satisfied by use 

INCREASE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

INCREASE I N NET ASSETS 

NET ASSE:TS, Beginninq o! year 

NE:T ASSETS, End of year 

$ 564,359 
3H1 958 
87S, 317 

8 
21, 532 

620 
22,210 

898,521 

517,310 
101,215 

746 
619,211 

219,256 

170,206 
170, 206) 

219,256 

10,011 

$ ~a21321 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state~:~ents. 
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Management salaries 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 
Professional fees 
Payroll service fees 
}ldvertising and promotion 
Bank fees 
Retirement service fees 
rood 
Direct services 
Miscellaneous fundraising 
In kind services 
Dtilities 
Vehicle &Xpense 
Security 
Rent 
Repairs and ~aintenance 
Insurance 
Telephone and internet 
Website 
Office and administration 
Travel expense 
Board of director meetings 

HOP£ ON HAVEN HILL, INC. 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Proqram General 
Services and Adnlin 

s 12,582 $ 12,582 
318,438 39,279 
30,078 3,718 
22,783 2,816 
59,047 5, 158 
2,533 -
1, 698 -- 337 

- 2,365 
21,408 -
22,545 -

- -
4,251 4, 367 
4,031 1, 694 
3,793 -

568 -
21,600 6,400 

6,645 3, 475 
19, 628 12,870 

4,800 326 
2,904 1,431 
8,029 2,350 
2, 244 -

432 -
Staff development and training 3,297 -
Licenses and peCIIlits - 1,164 
Interest - 133 
Oepreciation 3,976 750 

TOTALS $ 51.1,.1.1.!!. $ 101.215 

Fund-
Raising Total 

$ - $ 25, 164 
- 357,717 
- 33,796 
- 25,599 
- 64,205 
- 2,533 
- 1,698 
- 337 
- 2,365 
- 21,408 
- 22,545 

746 746 
- 8,618 
- S, 725 
- 3,793 
- 568 
- 28,000 
- 10,120 
- 32,498 
- 5,126 
- 4,335 
- 10,379 
- 2,244 
- 432 
- 3,297 
- 1,164 
- 133 
- ., 726 

$ 146 $ 679.271 

The accompanyi ng notes aro an integral part of these financial state•ents. 
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ROPE ON H~VEN HILL, INC. 
STAT~HENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended June 30, 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received !rom public support 
Cash received !rom interest 
Cash received from miscellaneous sales 
Cash paid for program services 
Cash paid tor general and administrative expenses 
Cash paid for fundraislng expenses 
Cash paid for interest 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOiiS FROM INVESTING ~C?IVITI&S 
Cash paid for property and equipment 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from borrowings 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
Cash at beginning of year 

C~SH AT END OF YEAR 

RECONCILIATION OF CK~GE IN NET ASSETS TO 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ~CTIVITIES 

Increase in net assets 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net 
cash from operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Grant receivable 
Security deposits 
Prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll items 

Total adjustments 

NET CASH PROVIDED ar OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

SOPP:LHEKTAL DISCLOSURE 
Non-cash transact ion included in investing activities 

Donation of property and equip~aent 

$ 839,249 
8 

620 
(512,314) 
(120, 487) 
( 746) 
( 133) 
206,197 

(224,612) 

24,999 

6,524 
70,156 

$ 2§,2DQ 

$ 219, 256 

4, 726 

48,568) 
3,800) 
1, 459) 

4,882 
31,160 
13,059) 

$ 206.197 

s 11.590 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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HOPE OM HAVEN HILL, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STAT&HENTS 

For the Year Ended JUne 30, 2017 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization 
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (the organization) was organized Nove~er 25, 2015. The 
organiution is a level 3. 5 substance use treatment facility serving homeless, 
pregnant and newly parenting mothers. The organization was established to 
provide a nurturing therapeutic home environment for women with substance abuse 
disorder who are , .. king recovery by providing a safe home with comprehensive 
addiction treatr.lent services, fanily therapy, parenting classes, advanca:aant in 
education and life coaching supporting families in their recovery from addiction. 

Basis of Accounting 
Income and expenses are reported on the accrual basis, which means that income is 
recognized as it is earned and upenses are recognized as they are incurred 
whether or not cash is received or paid out at that time. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires manaqament to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported ataounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results 
could differ from those estimates, 

Income Taxes 
Hope on Haven Kill, Inc. is exenpt froa federal income tax under Section 
SOl(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, therefore, has made no provision for 
federal income tax in the accompanying financial statements. The organization has 
been detemined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a private foundation. 

Financial Statesent Presentation 
Hope on Haven Kill, Inc. presents its financial statelllents in accordance with 
Accounting Standards Codification No. 958-210, "Financial Statements of Not-for­
Profit OrganizationsH, Onder ASC No. 958-210, Hope on Haven Hill is required to 
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to 
three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, t~~porarily restricted net 
assets, and per.nanently restricted net assets. AS of June 30, 2017 there were 
only unrestricted net assets. 

Grant Receivable 
The Grant ReceivAble consists of amounts due from the State in support of 
operations. As of June 30, 2017, management considers the grant receivable to be 
tully collectible. 
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

For the rear Ended June 30, 2017 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

subsequent Events 
Subsequent events have been evaluated throuqh January 5, 2017 the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. Beginning the new fiscal year, 
the organization has added several new board members and has hired a new 
Executive Director and bookkeeper. 

The line of credit terms with Provident Bank were modified on July 24, 2017 
to increase the borrowing limit to $50,000. 

Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost for those items which have been 
purchased, and at estimated fair market value for those items which have been 
donated. The cost of .inlp::ovaments is recovered using the straight-line lllllthod 

over estimated useful lives of 10 to 40 yean. The cost of vehicles, turniture, 
fixtures and equipment is recovered using the straight-line method over estimated 
useful lives of 2 to 10 yean. Property and equipment u of June 30, 2017 
consisted of the following : 

Contributions 

Leasehold ill!prov~ents $ 
Furniture and equipment 
Vehicles 
Total property a."ld equip~~ent 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Property and equipment, net $ 

182,605 
13,284 
29,683 

225,571 
4, 726 

229,816 

The Organization records its contributions as unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted, or percanently restricted support depending on the existence or 
nature o! any donor restrictions. 

Donated Services 
Cont:ibutlons o! services are recognized in the financial statements i! the 
services enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are 
provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be 
purchased i! not provided by donation. For the year ended June 30, 2017, donated 
services were valued at $8,618. 

Donated Property and Equipment 
Supplemental cash !lows and non cash investing activities consist of donated 
property and equipment. This property and equipment is valued at fair market 
value. The organization received a donated van valued at $11,500. 

Functional Allocation o! Expanses 
The costs of the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a 
functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the programs and 
supporting services benefited. 
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HOPE ON HAVEN lULL, INC. 
NOTES TO nNANCII'L STAT2MBIITS (a:NriNOED) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

NOTE B - LINE OF CREDIT 

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. has a $24,999 revolving line of credit with 
Provident Bank established to provide working capital support. The agreement 
requires monthly interest only payments of prime plus 1.5\ and is secured by 
all the business assets. As of June 30, 2017 the interest rate was 5.75\ and 
the outstanding balance was $24,999. The balance is due in tull upon lender's 
demand. 

NOTE C - RELATED PARTY AND LEASING ~ 

Hope on Haven 1!.!11, Inc. entered into an operating lease with a former 
EXecutive Director (see Note A - Subsequent Events) to rent a residential 
home in Rochester owned by her as the care facility. The tam of the lease b 
for twenty years with rent of S2,200 per month and a 2.5\ increase every five 
years. This lease includes an option to purchase the residence at any time at 
fair market value to be determined by the average of two independent 
appraisals. 

The Organization is leasing office space from an unrelated party in 
Somersworth, New Hampshire which began March 1, 2017. The lease is for a two 
year term and requires a monthly pa~nt of Sl,600. 

FUture minimun lease payments are as follows for the years ended JUne 30, 

2018. 
2019. 
2020. 
2021. 
2022. 

NOTE D - ACCRUED PAYROLL IT'EMS 

. s 45,600 
39,200 
26,400 
26,400 
26,840 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, accrued payroll items consisted of the 
tollowinq: 

Payroll and payroll taxes 
Earned time 
Totals 

-9-

$ 18,969 
12,191 

$ 31.1§0 



HOE'E ON HAVEN HILL, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

NOTE E - TE'.HPOAAIULY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Temporarily restricted net assets represent contributions !:eceived, 
which are :restricted to expense as designated by the donors. There 
were $170,206 temporarily restricted nat assets that were released 
from donor restriction.!! by incurring expense.!! satisfying the 
restricted purposes tor the year ending December 31, 2017. 

NOTE F - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

A.!! of June 30, 2017, Hope on Haven Hill has no cash balance held by a bank in 
exce.ss of the iliiiOW\t in.!lured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

Hope on Haven Rill derived approxiaately 64\ of its operating revenue from 
government agencies. 

NOTE G - RISK CONCENTRATION AND ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE 

Home on Haven Hill, Inc. derives significant revenue from grants and 
contracts with other nonprofit organizations and goverronent agencies. 
Continuation of certain programs is dependent upon such revenues. 

NOTE F. - CONTRACTS, FEES AND GRANTS !'ROM GOVERNMENT AGENCII!S 

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. receives money under vanous state and federal 
contracts and grants. Under the terns of these grants, the Organization is 
required to use the funds within the grant period for purposes specified in 
the contract. If expenditures of the grant were found not to have been made 
in compliance with the contract, the Organization is requ.ired to repay the 
grantors' funds. Because specific amount~, if any, have not been deterained 
by grantor agency audits or assessed as of June 30, 2011, no provision ha~ 
been made for thi~ cont.ingency. 

Contrac•s, fees and grants from government agencies consist of the following 
for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Department of Health and Ruman Services 
City of Rochester, COBG 

TOTAL 

-10-

$ 461,903 
102,456 

s 56f F 359 
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Sharon Drake 

OBJECTIVE 
Management level leadership position utilizing community relations, program development, housing 

oversight, grant writing, networking, fund development, financial, strategic planning/thinking, collaborative 
processing, board development/management, and managerial experience with opportunity for high 

community impact and personal growth. 

September 2018 to present - Executive Director /lope on Haven Hill, Rochester, NH 
Directly responsible for the administration, development, management and operations of three locations for 
Hope on Haven Hill - an IOP/OP/Office location in Somersworth, a high-intensity residential treatment 
program in Rochester, and a recovery house in Rochester - according to established policies and procedures 

and processes. 
• Directly manages all aspects of $1 .5M dollar annual budget including state and federal funding, 

private foundation and trust funding, grant writing, fundraising, donor solicitation and relations, and 

reporting to all the above. 
• Responsible for all aspects of marketing and visibility ofthe agency and it's programs. 

• Provide leadership and vision to ensure that the mission and strategic plan of the organization are 

carried out. 
• Oversee all day-to-day operations, administration, and fmances. 

• Develop, update, and maintain all policies and procedures for the organization. 

• Recruiting and managing staff. 
• Provide direct supervision to the leadership team of the organization. 
• Assists tbe Board of Directors in developing a financial plan/strategy to fund all programs and 

locations. 
• Works with tbe Board of Directors in mission and vision development, strategic planning and goal 

achievements. 
• Reports directly to the Board of Directors for Hope on Haven Hill on all programs, personnel, 

financial, administration, and other activities. 

June 2016 to September 2018 - CEO Southeuslern Nil Alcohol & Drug Services. Dover, NH 
Directly responsible for the administration, development, management and operations of Southeastern NH 
Services residential programs (28-day and transitional living), outpatient services prob'111ms (including 
women's intensive outpatient program, Dmg Court, I: I and groups, etc.), and the impaired driver program 

according to established policies and procedures. 
• Directly manages all aspects of $2.2M dollar+ annual budget including state & federal funds, private 

foundation and trusts, grant writing, fundraising, donor solicitation and relations, reports to all 
funders/donors, etc. 

• Responsible for building visibility of agency, programs, and public policy positions and community 
impact. 

• Provide vision, continuity, and leadership to ensure that mission and strategic plan arc carried out. 

• Oversees day-to-day operations, administration, and fmances to include development of job specific 

and organization wide policies and procedures. 
• Recruiting, developing, and managing all staff (currently 35 total full and part time staff). 

• Provides direct supervision and leadership to the Management Team who oversees all day-to-day 
operations, programs, and clinical functions (consists of Office Manager/H R Officer, Assistant 

Clinical Director, Clinical Director, and CEO). 



• Assists the Board of Trustees in developing a financial plan to fund programming, including new 
initiatives and strategies that will propel the agency forward (i.e., third party billing, service 
expansion, etc.). 

• Works with the Board of Trustees in mission development, vision development, strategic planning 
and goal fulfillment. 

• Reports directly to the Board of Trustees on all Southeastern NH Services activities. 

November 2008 to June 2016 - CEO, Serenity Place, Manchester, NH 
Directly responsible for the administration, development, management and operations of Serenity Place's 
education programs, withdrawal management program, transitional living programs, intensive outpatient 
program, open access program, and the REAP (DUI) program according to established policies and 
procedures. 

• Directly manages all aspects of$1.6M dollar+ annual budget including state & federal funds, private 
foundation and trusts, grant writing, fundraising, donor solicitation and relations, reports to all 
funders/donors, etc. 

• Provide vision, continuity, and leadership to ensure that mission and strategic plan are carried out. 
• Oversees day-to-day operations, administration, and finances to include development of job specific 

and organization wide policies and procedures. 
• Recruiting, developing, and managing all staff (currently 45 total full and part time staff). 
• Assists the Board of Directors in developing a financial plan to fund programming, including new 

initiatives and strategies that will propel the agency forward (i.e., third party billing, Affordable Care 
Act, etc.). 

• Works with the Board of Directors in mission development, vision development, strategic planning 
and goal fulfillment. 

• Reports directly to the Board of Directors on all Serenity Place activities. 

December 2007 to November 2008- Executive Director, Women 's Business Center, Portsmouth, NH 
• Member organization for over 350 woman-owned businesses. 
• Provide vision, continuity, and leadership to ensure that mission and strategic plan are accomplished. 
• Directly proposes and manages all aspects of the WBC annual budget ($300,000+) including state, 

federal and private foundation grant writing, fundraising, event planning, donor relations, reporting to 
all fundcrs/donors, etc. 

• Manages development and delivery of curriculum related to probrrams for members and the public. 
• Creates and manages database systems to track all counseling, training, membership demographics, 

and donor information. 
• Oversees day-to-day operations, administration, and finances to include development of job specific 

and organization wide policies and procedures. 
• Recruiting, developing, and managing al l staff. 
• Manage the image of the WBC and advocating for women business owners. 
• Increasing WBC visibility through marketing and publications. 
• Reports directly to the Board of Directors. 

March 1996 to August 2007- Program Director, New /lampshire Community Loan Fund, Concord, NH 
NH Statewide IDA Collaborative: Assisted low-income individuals to save more than $1 Million and 
purchase more than $30 Million in assets. 

• Program creation and development which has included policies and procedures, template and forms, 
and handbook. 

• Recruitment of local community partner organizations (more than 20) statewide which has included 
training of local organization staff. 

• Grant writingtfundraising -more than $1.7 million in federal program funds and nearly $6 million in 
public/private funds including CDF A tax credits. 



• Managed development of Access Database Management System for tracking of individual savings, 
match, funds raised, demographic, training, and other information for reporting purposes. 

• Problem-solve and network with all partners through daily contact and/or quarterly Community 
Partner Meetings. 

• Develop and manage annual budgets, controlled expenses, purchased capital equipment when 
necessary, and worked closely with Finance Department on accounting systems. 

• Traveled nationally as an expert in the field. 
Home of"Your Own Program: Assisted 8/low-income individuals to become homeowners. 

• Program development which has included process tor delivering home buyer education to individuals 
with disabilities and their support teams. 

• Created financial packages for potential homeowners and worked closely with lending partners and 
closing agents through the purchase process. 

• Working closely wi th area agencies for developmental services and other vendor organizations 
statewide. 

• Develop and manage annual budgets, controlled expenses, purchased capital equipment when 
necessary, and worked closely with Finance Department on accounting systems. 

• Grant writing/fundraising -more than $1 million in funds for down payment, closing costs, and rehab 
associated to purchase through local and regional foundations and the Federal Home Loan Bank of 
Boston's Affordable Housing Program. 

• Supervise and train all in-house staff associated to program. 
• Maintain and manage extemal relations with financial institutions and funding partners which include 

NH Housing Finance Authority, NH Bureau of Developmental and Behavioral Health Services, NH 
Developmental Disabilities Council, foundations, etc. 

• Understand and educate teams on housing issues as it relates to individual budgets and Medicaid 
funding. 

Transitional Housing and Special Need~ Housing Pror:ram: Assisted local community organizations to 
develop loan request packages to NHCLF Ajier approval of loans, provided long-term technical assistance 
and portfolio management. 

Education: 
• Notre Dame College, Manche~1er, NH - Bachelor of Science Degree in Psychology, Graduate May 1999 
• New Hampshire Technical Institute, Concord, NH- Associate in Science Degree in Human Services, Graduate August 

1994 
• Graduate and Ongoing Student at NeighborWorks® America Training Institutes (transcript of courses completed 

available upon request) 
Other Activities: 

• Past Chair, Governor Appointed Position <m the Emergency Shelter & Homeless Coordination Commission (Member 
since 1994, Chair since 2006) (Commission disbanded 20 II) 

• Certified Instructor National Crisis Prevention & Intervention Institute since 1995 
• 2005 Graduate Institute for Nonprofit Management Antioch New England Graduate School 
• 1995 Graduate Dale Carnegie Course- Highest Achievement Award Recipient 
• 1995 Graduate Leadership Concord, Concord Chamber of Commerce 
• 20 12 Graduate Leadership Manchester, Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce 
• Current Board Member: Hcahhcare for the Homeless/CMC, Manchester, NH 
• Former Board Member PACE (Professional Association of Council Executives), Washin&>ton, DC 



Kerrylee Norton, RN 

Knorton@hopeonhavenhill.org 

Work Experience 

Dates Employed 

7/1/lS·Present Operations Director/Founder 

Hope on Haven Hill, Rochester NH 

Co-Founder of emerging Non-Profit Residential treatment facility for Pregnant Women with Substance 

Use Disorder. Responsibilities include but not limited to, Filing for SOl c'(3), Grant writing, preparing 

and testifying for Variance and Planning Board, Submitting application for l evel 3.S Inpatient 

treatment facility licensure, Prepare policies and procedures and admission criteria, prepare facility 

policies, Coordinate fundraislng and volunteers, Give presentations to local schools, civic agencies, 

businesses and NH allies, Advocate for Prevention, Treatment and Recovery services for NH and care 

for Men and Women who reach out to us while unable to access care in NH and assist them with 

getting support and treatment. After opening supervise and train Recovery support staff. Maintain 

schedule for recovery support for programming schedule of residential program. Implement, monitor 

and supervise medication management of residential programming. Implement, monitor and 

supervise urine drug screenings for residential program. Responsible for day to day operations of 

residential program. 

11/2008-11/13/2015 RN 

Garrison Women's Health Center, Dover NH 

Triage and Infertility Nurse In Busy OB-GYN office. Responsibilities include but not limited to triaging 

all patient calls, New Prenatal 08 intakes, Essure Procedures, Infertility coverage Including call 

weekends, Employee Health, OSHA training and compliance for all employees, new hire training and 

policy and protocol implementation. 

1/2006-4/2010 RN,CPSN 

Atlantic Plastic Surgical Center, Portsmouth NH 

All facets of care for patients undergoing Ambulatory Surgery. Admit patients, Circulate and Scrub 

during surgical cases and Recover patients in PACU. Certified as a Certified Plastic Surgical Nurse with 

National Certification in Skin Well ness. Certified to perform M icrodermabraslon, Chemical Peels and 

Laser Therapy. 



5/1994-10/2008 Maternal Child Health RN/Resource Nurse 

Portsmouth Regional Hospital, Portsmouth NH 

All facets of Maternal Health, including Labor and Delivery, Postpartum Well Baby Nursery, Level 2 

Nursery, Pediatrics, Scrub and PACU for Cesarean Sections, Breast Feeding support, Sibling Class 

facilitator, NRP Instructor, PALS instructor, Resource/Charge Nurse and Staff orientation. 

1/2002-1/2005 Pediatric Nurse 

Portsmouth Pediatric Associates, Portsmouth NH 

Weekend coverage for Triage care for sick visits of all Pediatric patients in a very busy pediatric 

practice. As the only nurse covering on weekends I became very competent in all facets of pediatric 

care and emergencies. 

1/2002-1/2005 Triage Nurse and Childbirth Educator 

Harbour Women's Health, Portsmouth NH 

Triaged all patient medical concerns. Reviewed all Laboratory reports and followed up with patient 

results and treatment protocols. Assisted Dr. Lantinen with infertility patients. Taught and 

coordinated all Childbirth Education programs. 

5/19993-5/1995 Triage Nurse 

York OB-GYN Associates, York Me 

Triage all patient concerns and a.ssist physicians with patient care. 

9/1993-5/1994 Substitute School Nurse 

SAD 60, Berwick ME 

Substitute School Nurse in SAD 60. Worked in all School. Elementary, Middle School and High School. 

Past and Present Certifications: 

NRP, BCLS, ACLS, CPSN And STABLE. Maine State Registered Nurse, License compact state. 

References upon request 



Carey Johnson 

Objective 

My goal is to obtain a position where I can usc my strong interpersonal ski lls, ability to multitask, my attention to detail, a 
positive attitude, and the opportunity to contribute. 

Expcrienc.e 

I 1106/2017 - Present Hope on Haven Hill Somersworth, NH 

Finance & Organizational Director 

• Ensuring time sheets are recorded properly and appropriate payroll processes followed. 
• Oversee, review, and adhere to the budgets 

• Monitor cash flow, accounts, and other financial transactions 

• Create and maintain relationships with service providers and contractors, including banking institutions and 
accountants 

• Update and implement tinancial policies and procedures 
• Developing and administering human resources plans and procedures that relate to company personnel. 

• Maintains employee benefits programs and informs employees of benefits by studying and assessing benetit needs 
and trends; recommending benefit programs to management; directing the processing of benefit claims; obtaining and 
evaluating benefit contract bids; awarding benefit contracts; designing and conducting educational programs on 
benefit programs. 

• Ensures legal compliance by monitoring and implementing appl icable humao resource federal and state requiremeots; 
conducting investigations; maintaining records; representing the organization . 

• Maintains historical human resource records by designing a filing and retrieval system; keeping past and current 
records. 

1 0/06/2015 - 1 0/3 J/20 17 NH Providers Association Concord, NH 

Billing & Crcdcntialing Specialist 

• Completes provider credentialing and re-credentialing applications; monitors applications and follows-up as needed. 
• Enters information necessary for insurance claims such as patient, insurance ID, diagnosis and treatment codes and 

modifiers, and provider infonnation. Insures claim information is complete and accurate. 
• Submits insurance claims to clearinghouse or individual insurance companies electronically or via paper CMS-1500 

fonn. 
• Follows up with insurance company on unpaid or rejected claims. Resolves issue and re-submits claims. 

• Follows HIPAA guidelines in handling patient intonnation. 
• Understands managed care authorizations and limits to coverage such as the number of visits. 
• May have to verity patient benefits eligibility and coverage. 

• Ability to look up lCD diagnosis and CPT treatment codes rrom online service or using traditional coding references. 
• Prepare, process and track all billable invoices to cl ients monthly. 

05/20/2015- 10/01/2015 Pinewood Hcalthcare!Pain Care Somersworth, NH 

Medical Billing Specialist 



• Organize and review all claims for accuracy and completeness before they leave our facility. 
• Submit claims through a clearinghouse electronically and make corrections as needed to rejected claims. 
• Process and mail all claims with the appropriate paperwork for each carrier and type. 
• Conununicatc in a positive and effective manner with staff to ensure the process and procedures are running properly. 
• Input registration information and patient charges from super bills into system and maintain files. 
• Coordinate with office staff and run repo11s to ensure any missed appointments are bandied and charged accordingly. 
• Reviewing accounts and moving funds accordingly. 
• Review and process papeJWork that come into the office from attorneys and patients and handle all requests in a 

timely fashion. 

10/20/2013 - 05/ 19/2015 Healthcare Administrative Partners Portsmouth, NH 

Medical Billing Representative 

• Responsible for medical billing of multiple clients which include both hospital and facility billing. 
• Have a strong understanding of working failed or denied claims with a clearinghouse to resolve issues and get claims 

paid. 
• Able to interpret Explanation of Benefits tor all types of insurances and provide Coordination of Benefits summaries 

as needed. 
• Understanding of primary, secondary, third-party, and Medicare Secondary Payer insurance concepts and working 

with all carriers utilizing all methods of communication. 
• Service accounts as needed for demographics, insurance updating, correcting and reposting of charges, refunds, 

payments, and collections. 
• Have a strong handle of time management and production quotas working out of multiple queues to research and 

resolve any issues with an account. 
• Resolve escalated calls with patients and insurances using excellent customer service skills. 

Data Coordinator 

• Responsible for daily resolution of all edits in Codia for assigned clients, keeping unresolved edits less than 45 days 
rrom date of file creation date, to ensure timely tiling guidelines arc met. 

• Responsible for dai ly uploads into bill ing system as well as manual charge entry. 
• Update subscriber insurance and demographic changes as needed. 
• Utilize bi lling system reports to ensure that all files uploaded are complete and accurate. 
• Identify research and resolve all missing information requi red in Codia and billing system by utilizing access to clieots' 

system. 
• Utilize clients' assigned on-site contact to resolve missing info not available in client computer system using excellent 

customer service skill s. 
• Keep accurate record of infom1ation requests sent to on-site, including date requested, follow-up dates, and into needed. 
• Communicate unresolved issues to supervisor and be a liaison between all parties. 
• Assist and back up the medical bill ing representatives with account collections and maintenance. 
• Work with clients to set up payment plans, special arrangements, and work to reduce client queues and issues. 

07/01113 - 09/20113 Brueckner Group-USA, Inc. Portsmouth, NH 

Junior Accounta nt/Accounts Payable/Receivable 

• Receives and reviews invoices from vendors, matche.s documents, codes and batches, assembles voucher packages for 
approval by appropriate managers, and processes checks and ACH/Wires to send to vendors. 

• Perform other basic clerical duties associated with accounts payable and office operation to include ordering supplies 
and managing inventories. 



• Post transactions to journals, ledgers and other records. 

• Communication with vendors regarding payments verbally, electronic, and written. 

• Receives cash payments and applies credit to customer accounts. 

• Communicating with customers by making collection calls and following up on payments. 

• Follows established procedures for processing receipts and cash, son s and fi les documents after posting. 

• Prepare bank deposits, oversee accounts receivable recordkeeping, ensure cash receipts, claims, or unpaid invoices are 
accounted for properly. 

01/22/07 - 06/30/13 Garrison City Early Childhood Center Dover, NH 

Lead Level K indcrgarten/Pre-K Teacher 

• Knowledge of administrative and clerical procedures and systems such as word processing, managing files and records, 
designing forms, and other office procedures and tem1inology. 

• Excellent knowledge of group behavior and dynamics, societal trenci5 and influences, human migrations, ethnicity, 
cultures and their history and origins. 

• Proficiency at talking to others to convey information effectively. 
• Expertise at selecting and using training/instructional methods and procedures appropriate for the situation when 

learning or teaching new things in accordance with the State ofNH Curriculum Frameworks. 
• In-depth ability to monitor/assess perfonnance of self and other individuals to make improvements or take corrective 

action. 
• Great ability to usc logic and reasoning to identify the strengths and weaknesses of alternative solutions, conclusions or 

approaches to problems. 
• Creating materials to communicate with parents and children on a weekly, monthly and quarterly basis. 

Knowledge and Skills 

• Proficiency in numeric keypad and alpha keypad with excellent data entry skills. 
• Proficiency in operating office equipment of all kinds. 
• Fast Ieamer with the ability to learn and use new applications and programs 
• Proficiency in Centricity and otber clearinghouse programs. 
• Proficiency in Microsoft applications, including Word, Excel, PowerPoint and Outlook 
• Strong multitasking, accessing multiple data bases and sites at the same time. 
• Good communication and customer service ski lls and able to communicate with all levels ofthe organization, and 

external customers. 
• Ability to work under deadlines and time restraints. 
• Ability to read, to interpret, and to carry out oral and written instructions, and to write legibly in English. 
• Ability to plan, to organi ze, and to prioritize work independently, with team or witb supervisory feedback. 
• An understanding of compliance with HIPAA privacy requirements and confidentiality of infonnation. 



Clinical Director 
Position Description & Related Responsibilities 

Hope on Haven Hill (HHH) Mission: To provide a nurturing therapeutic home 
environment to pregnant and postpartum women with substance usc disorders seeking a 
life of recovery. 

Reports To: Executive Director 

The Clinical Director is responsible for: The Clinical Director is responsible for 
providing clinical supervision, and coordination and direction to all HHH staff. The 
Clinical Director is responsible for oversight of all client program implementation and 
changes. Additionally, the Clinical Director will be responsible to ensure that all clinical 
staff from all programs receives cl inical supervision. The Clinical Director will work 
directly with the Executive Director to ensure that policies and procedures are followed, 
communication is maintained with the Board of Directors, and reporting requirements are 
met with all funding agencies. 

Major Responsibilities: 
);.> Direct supervision of agency clinical programs and personnel. 
);.> Quality assurance/improvement in developing and maintenance of all clinical 

records and programs offered by the Agency. 
);.> Assist with grant and proposal writing. 
);.> Maintain compliance with federal, state, and local regulations. 
);.> Oversee screening, training, and supervising of existing and new staff to develop 

and build an effective organization. 
);.> Retain working relationship with organizations, service providers, and other 

agencies. 
);.> Maintain a high level of professional and ethical standards. 
);.> Maintains a caseload working directly with clients as detennined by the Executive 

Director for all programs as needed (high-intensity residential, TOP, OP, Recovery 
Housing, etc.). 

);.> Reports to Executive Director on program development, fiscal budgetary status, 
and proposed operational changes as required. 

);.> Assists in preparation of annual operating budget with Executive Director and 
Management Team members. 

);.> Schedules and leads regular case conferences. Promotes and maintains an 
atmosphere which encourages and facilitates a client review process to ensure 
coordinated, comprehensive, and individualized provision of client services. 

Revised: October 2018 



J;> Ensure that client files arc updated daily, in addition to noting any events or 
occurrences that occur, which includes updates in the WITS system. 

J;> Oversees the training of new employees in the Staff Code of Ethics and 
confidentiality policies. 

lo>- Assists in managing the physical plant(s) - ensuring that all life safety codes are 
followed and implemented. 

lo>- Assists the management of development and implementation of internal policies 
and procedures with the Executive Director. 

J;> Any other duties as assigned by Executive Director and/or Board of Directors. 

Minimum Position Requirements: 
)> Master's Licensure as an Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor (MLADC). 
J;> Master's Degree in counseling, clinical psychology, or related field. 
lo>- Experience in management of staff and directing clinical programs. 
lo>- Minimum of five years of experience to working with alcohol and/or drug 

addicted individuals and/or in the field of substance abuse counseling. 
J;> Experience with diverse client population such as cultural and/or religious 

minorities, co-occurring disorders and indigent socio-economically disadvantaged 
clients. 

}> Ability to analyze and solve problems effectively and timely. 
)- Ability to communicate effectively and respectfully; good inter-personal skills. 
lo>- If in recovery, provide evidence of personal stability as well as adhering to all 

HHH Policies as it relates to recovery. 
J;> Significant experience and supportive of Alcoholics Anonymous (AA) in 

conjunction with treatment programs and with I 2-Step philosophy. 
)- Knowledge of I 2 core functions. 
)- Knowledge of Evidence Based Practices (EBP) and Addiction Severity Index 

(ASI) and ASAM Criteria. 
)> Excellent written, verbal, and computer skills. 
)> Ability to multi-task efficiently. 
)- Demonstrated proficiency in excellent customer service. 
)- Ability to provide input on the creation of new systems and efficiencies. 
)- Confidentiality a must and knowledge of 42 C.F.R. Part 2 and HIPAA. 

Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that 
must be met by an employee to successfully perform the functions of this job. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabi lities to 
perform the essential functions. 

While perfonning the duties of this job the employee is regularly required to sit, walk, 
use hand and fingers, reach with hands, arms and hear. The employee is occasionally 
required to stand, climb or balance, stoop, kneel and crouch. The employee must 
occasionally lift and or move up to 25 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this 
job include close vision, distance and color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception 
and ability to adjust focus. 
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Other Requirements/Information: 
o Full time exempt position. 
o Requires MLADC certification. 
o Requires Master's Degree in counseling, clinical psychology, or related field. 
o Various background checks and medical exams as required by funders. 
o Position based in Rochester, NH. 

I have read the Clinical Director job description and acknowledge the responsibilities 
associated with this position at Hope on Haven Hill, lnc. 

Signature Date 

Printed Name of Employee 

Revised: October 2018 



CONTRACTOR NAME 

Key Personnel 

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from 
this Contract this Contract 

Sharon Drake Executive Director $96,500 0% $0.00 
Kcrrvlcc Norton Operations & Dcv. Director $70 850 0% $0.00 
Carey Johnson Finance & Qrg. Director $60,000 0% $0.00 
Vacant Clinical Director $85,000 0% $0.00 


